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          1  FINANCE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I would like to

          3  welcome everybody to today's joint meeting between

          4  the Economic Development Committee of the City

          5  Council, chaired by my good colleague Jay Donovan on

          6  my right, and the Finance Committee, chaired by

          7  myself.

          8                 As you know, this hearing relates to

          9  the Port Authority's plan for a rail link at John F.

         10  Kennedy Airport. The Port Authority's Plan known as

         11  the Airtrain, was developed as a means of improving

         12  airport access and as an economic development tool

         13  for Southeastern Queens.

         14                 This hearing is one step in a long

         15  process for the Council to make a clear, well

         16  informed decision, on the viability and the

         17  necessity of Airtrain.

         18                 The purpose of this hearing is for

         19  the Council to get a clear understanding of the

         20  economic benefits and cost of the rail link plan.

         21  There are many important and contentious issues

         22  involved with the development of the said rail link

         23  to JFK.

         24                 This hearing will focus upon issues

         25  involving the Airtrain's potential for economic
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          2  development. The project is a massive undertaking

          3  and it will cost millions of dollars. Today we hope

          4  to examine how these funds will be spent and what

          5  the City can expect to see in return for this huge

          6  investment.

          7                 The Committee is interested in

          8  gaining a better understanding of the economic

          9  aspect of the plan.

         10                 In particular, we are curious as to

         11  how the development of the Airtrain will affect the

         12  local economy, what if any future costs to the City

         13  are associated with this system, and most

         14  importantly, what the potential is for the seemless

         15  inclusion of the Airtrain into the regional transit

         16  system and thus, the creation of a true one-seat

         17  ride.

         18                 Today it is our anticipation to hear

         19  from supporters and opponents of the Port Authority

         20  Plan.

         21                 The Committee thanks all of those in

         22  attendance in advance for their time and

         23  consideration, and coming here before us to testify.

         24                 The information that you provide us

         25  will be extremely useful in our examination of this

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            6

          1  FINANCE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  important issue.

          3                 I would like to now turn over the

          4  meeting for an opening statement, to my colleague,

          5  Mr. Chairman, Jay O'Donovan.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you,

          7  Chairman Berman.

          8                 I want to thank the Finance Committee

          9  Chair Herb Berman, my colleague, for holding this

         10  joint hearing. At this time we have members from all

         11  Committees here, both committees here. Councilman

         12  Tom White will be arriving shortly, who introduced

         13  Resolution 587 requesting the Council to conduct

         14  today's hearing.

         15                 Today we will be conducting a

         16  hearing, as my colleague Herb Berman had said, on

         17  the proposed economic impact and cost benefit of the

         18  New York New Jersey Port Authority plan for light

         19  rail link to JFK Airport in the Borough of Queens.

         20                 The Port Authority of New York and

         21  New Jersey has proposed the construction of a light

         22  rail system intermodal transportation plan to

         23  improve access between the New York City Transit

         24  Authority, the Long Island Railroad system to JFK

         25  International Airport.
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          2                 The proposed system is estimated to

          3  cost $1.5 billion, representing $1.2 billion from

          4  passenger facility charges approved by the Federal

          5  Aviation Administration, and $300 million from Port

          6  Authority Capital Funds.

          7                 It is estimated to serve 12.4 million

          8  passengers in its first year of operation with a

          9  daily average of 34,000 passengers, employees

         10  consisting of 23,000 on-airport and 11,000

         11  off-airport trips.

         12                 The proposed LRS is expected to take

         13  a total of five years to be completed, the first

         14  phase by 2002 and the second phase by 2003.

         15                 The Port Authority claims a potential

         16  economic development benefit as a result of this

         17  system, including the creation of 4,150 construction

         18  jobs, 580 million dollars in wages, and 980 million

         19  dollars in sales and other opportunities along the

         20  right of way on 94th Street and Sutphin Boulevard

         21  corridor of Jamaica Station.

         22                 As the Council of the City of New

         23  York is concerned about the potential effects of the

         24  proposed Light Rail System Plan on the quality of

         25  life and economic well-being of Southeast Queens, we
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          2  now, as my colleague Herb Berman states, conduct

          3  this hearing.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you very

          6  much, Mr. Chairman. I would like to introduce the

          7  members of the Council who are so far joining us.

          8                 Councilman Victor Robles, of

          9  Brooklyn, Ken Fisher also of Brooklyn, Council

         10  Member Martin Golden of Brooklyn, Adolpho Carrion of

         11  the Bronx, Councilman Leffler, Sheldon Leffler, and

         12  Council Member Watkins also of Queens. And as the

         13  hearing progresses, we will be joined by others.

         14                 Appropriately, the first person to

         15  testify today should be the Port Authority. Are two

         16  of you gentlemen going to testify?

         17                 MR. WARD: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right. Would

         19  you do me a favor? Put on the mics, if someone could

         20  help them start it. Sergeant-At-Arms? And bring it

         21  close to you so we can hear, and then identify

         22  yourself for the record. This hearing is

         23  electronically recorded.

         24                 MR. WARD: Good morning, Mr. Chairman,

         25  Chairman O'Donovan. My name is Chris Ward, I am the
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          2  Chief of Policy and External Affairs of the Port

          3  Authority of New York and New Jersey. We will have a

          4  series of presentations today. I am joined by the

          5  Chief Architect of the Port Authority of New York

          6  and New Jersey, Bob Davidson. We welcome this

          7  opportunity before this body today and work with you

          8  and explaining how the Port Authority has developed

          9  the Airtrain project, both in terms of the economic

         10  development benefits to the region, significantly

         11  the transportation benefits and the community

         12  benefits of this project we believe will bring not

         13  only to the Southeast Queens, but to the City as a

         14  whole.

         15                 Given the complexity of this project,

         16  we would be delighted today to give a brief slide

         17  presentation on the various components so each

         18  member of the Council and the audience can

         19  understand how this project fits into a much larger

         20  transportation strategy, not only for the region but

         21  for the entire ten state area and emphasizing

         22  throughout our presentation today as an economic

         23  development project it is fundamentally intended to

         24  restore Kennedy Airport to its premiere position as

         25  both an economic development engine from the region,
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          2  but perhaps more importantly, a gateway to New York

          3  City as the nation and the world's capital.

          4                 With that, I would like to begin with

          5  the slide presentation.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Ward, it's

          7  your show. Go ahead.

          8                 MR. WARD: Thank you very much.

          9                 Go ahead, Bob.

         10                 MR. DAVIDSON: Today's presentation

         11  will begin with a program overview. As I mentioned,

         12  Bob Davidson will give you a systems overview. We

         13  will talk about the technology associated with the

         14  plan. We will talk about the various airport access

         15  routes and talk about the various ways that we have

         16  looked at providing access to Kennedy Airport. We

         17  will talk specifically about the Van Wyck

         18  construction. We have heard from the community

         19  boards that we have been in front of with regards to

         20  the sensitivities and concerns with construction,

         21  and finally, we will return to the concern in terms

         22  of the economic development and community benefits.

         23                 At the outset let me recognize that

         24  both the Port Authority and the region and the

         25  elected officials here today have been struggling

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            11

          1  FINANCE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  with how do we provide access to Kennedy Airport. As

          3  we all recognize the landside system in terms of

          4  access to the Kennedy Airport is currently reaching

          5  levels of congestion, which is a disincentive for

          6  use and further development of Kennedy Airport.

          7                 Not only is that transportation

          8  problem a growing concern in getting to the airport,

          9  but we recognize that the land and on-airport

         10  traffic is a further inhibitor to the development of

         11  Kennedy Airport, and that this system is intended to

         12  address both the regional transportation needs in

         13  getting and using and developing Kennedy Airport,

         14  but at the same time allowing Kennedy to function as

         15  a multi-terminal airport facility servicing the

         16  entire world.

         17                 Chairman O'Donovan had mentioned the

         18  amount of passengers and employees using this system

         19  and this is a brief recap of the annual ridership,

         20  again, 12.4 million passengers, average daily

         21  ridership of 34,000.

         22                 Significantly, the on-airport

         23  circulator allowing passengers to connect amongst

         24  connecting airlines for transportation purposes is

         25  23,000, airport access at the Jamaica station is 7
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          2  and Howard Beach is 4,000.

          3                 We have gone through an extensive

          4  process in our application for PFCs, in order to be

          5  eligible for the $1.2 billion funding, that Chairman

          6  O'Donovan mentioned. These were the justifications

          7  within the PFC application, which was found through

          8  the federal process to be eligible for that funding.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Mr. Ward, just

         10  one question, if I may.

         11                 The statistics you just gave, is that

         12  the current ridership? Or is that the anticipated?

         13                 MR. WARD: That is the anticipated

         14  ridership on the first day of operation.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you.

         16                 MR. WARD: And I would emphasize that

         17  on the first day of operation this will be the

         18  busiest transportation linkage of any airport

         19  operation in the country.

         20                 Next slide, please. When we talk

         21  about Kennedy Airport and we talk about what is the

         22  benefit of providing ease of access to the facility,

         23  one of the key things we need to recognize is that

         24  Kennedy Airport, under the Port Authority and

         25  private investment is fundamentally being rebuilt
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          2  today as we speak.

          3                 There is five to six billion dollars

          4  of Port Authority and private capital redeveloping

          5  terminal - the International Arrivals Terminal, a

          6  billion dollar project to create a new gateway for

          7  international arrivals is going forward, the Toga

          8  Project, the Terminal 1 project is up and

          9  operational. We are in current discussions with

         10  American Airlines and Delta Airlines for significant

         11  continued investment and expansion on the airport.

         12  Those programs are going forward.

         13                 In addition, this region is moving

         14  more and more from a port maritime economy to an

         15  aviation cargo port economy, and that Kennedy

         16  Airport is a vital link and that increasingly

         17  state-of-the-art transportation requirements in

         18  terms of next-day delivery and air cargo we believe

         19  is a key industrial job generator, not only in

         20  Southeast Queens but throughout the region.

         21                 Finally, in terms of vendor services.

         22  Kennedy Airport alone is responsible for 40,000 jobs

         23  here within this region. The vendor services that

         24  are provided as it relates to Kennedy Airport is an

         25  increasing business opportunity for Southeast Queens
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          2  and the City as a whole, as that transportation

          3  linkage throughout the world provides value-added

          4  job opportunities here locally. The overall program

          5  is to allow those investments to realize their

          6  maximum benefit for the region, and that without

          7  significant land-side improvements, in terms of ease

          8  of access to Kennedy Airport, Kennedy access --

          9  Kennedy Airport will not realize its full economic

         10  potential.

         11                 Let me start with really what is an

         12  issue which has bedeviled and been a constant

         13  challenge to this region, in how do we provide a

         14  one-seat ride to Kennedy Airport? And believe me,

         15  the Port Authority has long struggled with the

         16  necessary pieces to provide that and we believe this

         17  step, leveraging federal dollars with minimal local

         18  spending is the first key, key step for creating

         19  what this region has long called for in a one-seat

         20  ride.

         21                 What you are looking at on the

         22  right-hand side of that slide is the transportation

         23  linkages today between now and 2003, and if you

         24  will, the area that you see in yellow is the

         25  proposed Airtrain system. As you can see, it has a
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          2  circle on JFK Airport and then connecting into

          3  Howard Beach and connecting into Jamaica.

          4                 At Jamaica, it is interfacing with

          5  perhaps the region's most dynamic transportation hub

          6  connecting with not only the Long Island Railroad

          7  from Manhattan, but Long Island Railroad from Long

          8  Island and the Queens area and then significant mass

          9  transit options through the subway system.

         10                 This platform, into connecting into

         11  Jamaica and Howard Beach, will fundamentally provide

         12  a variety of transportation options to get to

         13  Kennedy Airport.

         14                 Post 2003, as we look at where this

         15  region establishes the one-seat ride, and as you are

         16  well aware, the MTA is currently conducting a study

         17  to determine what will be the necessary other

         18  transportation improvements to bring the linkages of

         19  that existing transportation network to the Airtrain

         20  system. And as you can see, there are a variety of

         21  options to provide a one-seat ride to Kennedy

         22  Airport, following the establishment of the Airtrain

         23  system. And what you see in red is what we believe

         24  is the network of options that a one-seat ride

         25  opportunity can avail itself once we have put in
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          2  place the Airtrain system.

          3                 Absent the Airtrain system, those

          4  routes demonstrated in red will be stopping outside

          5  of the airport and will not have a viable connection

          6  into the airport. That is why we are proposing this

          7  as a platform for further regional growth.

          8                 But what are the challenges for a

          9  one-seat ride? Today the fundamental challenge for

         10  the one-seat ride is the fact that we have three

         11  primary transportation systems - we have the Long

         12  Island Railroad, we have the MTA, through the TA

         13  system, and we have the Airtrain system. Currently

         14  those three systems operate with three different

         15  levels of cars. Those cars are particular in terms

         16  of service design and scope.

         17                 When we designed the Airtrain system

         18  car, we designed it specifically to provide level of

         19  service and the high quality of assurance in terms

         20  of time, distribution, throughout the system, but

         21  one that would allow us to interface with a

         22  subsequent car which would be created, a fourth car,

         23  if you will, to run on the Long Island Railroad

         24  system, the City's MTA system, and the Airtrain

         25  system, and let me digress here for one minute,
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          2  because there have been a number of questions,

          3  particularly out of the Council, as it relates to

          4  why are we purchasing this car, versus the other

          5  cars which might be available.

          6                 The reason why we are purchasing the

          7  Airtrain car today, an incremental cost of about $60

          8  million, is that car with its automated system and

          9  its ability to move throughout the entire circulator

         10  and into Howard Beach and Jamaica, is a car which

         11  will be available to us for its entire useful life.

         12                 At a later date when the fourth car,

         13  the one-seat ride car is introduced, the Port

         14  Authority's current Airtrain car will continue to

         15  provide a level of service on the airport, and the

         16  one-seat ride car, the fourth car, will be

         17  introduced into that network.

         18                 So the Port Authority's concept was,

         19  let it put in place a platform today to interface to

         20  the transportation system to provide the variety of

         21  options to get to the airport, the regional respond

         22  as it has begun to respond in putting the necessary

         23  pieces together for a one-seat ride, and the

         24  solution is a fourth car. But it is important to

         25  recognize that the Airtrain car will continue to be
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          2  a viable service provider for the Airport.

          3                 In terms of program overview, as was

          4  mentioned by Chairman O'Donovan, this project will

          5  cost approximately $1.5 billion. The federal FAA and

          6  approval of the PFC application and finding in fact

          7  that it met the necessary requirements for the cost

          8  benefit ratio under the PFC program, found that

          9  $1.248 billion of passenger facility charge, that is

         10  a $3 fee assessed to each passenger, air passenger

         11  within the region. And then, finally, the Port

         12  Authority's capital plan $300 million of Port

         13  Authority resources, and I would add non-tax-based

         14  resources, self-generated resources for the Port

         15  Authority.

         16                 We would expect that this system

         17  would be interconnecting with Howard Beach in 2002,

         18  and the Jamaica Service established in 2003.

         19                 What I would now like to do is ask

         20  Bob Davidson of the chief architect, to take you

         21  through the overall systems review.

         22                 MR. DAVIDSON: Thank you, Chris.

         23                 To briefly go through the system

         24  overview, what we are going to do is talk about the

         25  components of the actual system, and then explain
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          2  how the services within the overall system work both

          3  on the airport and off the airport.

          4                 This slide on the right is a computer

          5  overlay onto the existing airport environment, and

          6  what you see there is one of our stations with its

          7  elevated connector moving passengers over to a

          8  particular terminal complex.

          9                 In terms of the system master plan,

         10  we have three services. We have the Jamaica Airport

         11  Access service, which is broken down into the Van

         12  Wyck Expressway corridor, and the Airtrain terminal

         13  at the Long Island Railroad Jamaica Station. We have

         14  the Howard Beach Airport circulator and airport

         15  access service. This basically moves on the airport

         16  and links up to the New York City Transit Howard

         17  Beach service, the A Train service, along that right

         18  of way. And finally, we have the central terminal

         19  area, or CTA, airport circulator service that

         20  basically allows us to link up to all of the nine

         21  current terminal buildings and possibly only eight

         22  buildings in the future, once the American complex

         23  is put in place.

         24                 If you look at the slide on the

         25  right, the dual system alignment, that basically
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          2  indicates how this will all work.

          3                 The two large gray circles with the

          4  yellow designations are our two Airtrain terminals,

          5  one at Jamaica Station, and one at Howard Beach New

          6  York City Transit A train station. If you will

          7  notice, there are salmon colored smaller circles

          8  directly adjacent to the larger circles. Those are

          9  our stations, and our stations plug into the two new

         10  Airtrain terminals at both Long Island Railroad,

         11  Jamaica Station and Howard Beach Station in a

         12  similar fashion to the way the stations plug into

         13  the terminal buildings on the airport precinct.

         14                 What is indicated as a dual system

         15  alignment, you see the gray and blue lines that lead

         16  from the central terminal area to the Howard Beach

         17  station complex, and then the single blue line that

         18  moves off of the airport and interfaces with the

         19  Long Island Railroad Jamaica Station complex.

         20                 At Howard Beach, at that edge where

         21  the interface occurs between the Airtrain station

         22  and the Airtrain terminal at Howard Beach, that is

         23  the edge of the airport directly adjacent to the New

         24  York City transit right of way.

         25                 In terms of our vehicle design, the
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          2  slide on the right is a computer image of what that

          3  vehicle will look like. It is a custom designed car,

          4  but as Chris mentioned, it is a light rail, steel

          5  wheel on steel rail car, that is designed with

          6  similar criteria to the Long Island Railroad car and

          7  the New York City Transit car so that in the future

          8  the fourth car can ride on all three systems.

          9                 Although our train will not leave our

         10  system, the fourth car can come onto our system and

         11  thereby create that one-seat ride. We have an

         12  extremely high quality interior environment that is

         13  custom designed to accommodate the movement of not

         14  only airport passengers but baggage and baggage cars

         15  in the train. The cars can hold up to 80 passengers

         16  per car, both seating and standing. Baggage cars, as

         17  I mentioned, will be allowed on our system, in our

         18  trains, our stations and eventually to the terminal

         19  building and the ticketing positions.

         20                 We have a linear induction motor

         21  propulsion system, that will be talked about in much

         22  greater detail as the presentation moves forward.

         23                 Our guideway design is a pre-cast

         24  concrete box girder. You can see this, this is not

         25  our system, this is another system, but we will
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          2  basically be building something that looks very

          3  similar to this, it has a closed concrete deck with

          4  noise parapets. So basically the train, as I think

          5  we have indicated in previous presentations, is a

          6  very quiet train. Any noise that is generated from

          7  that train will be held within the concrete box

          8  girder configuration with the noise parapets.

          9                 Finally, the columns are cast in

         10  place concrete, so you have an overall concrete

         11  guideway design.

         12                 Regarding our stations, we have

         13  heated and air conditioned stations completely

         14  environmentally controlled, so when you arrive at

         15  either of our two Airtrain terminals and interface

         16  from those terminals into our stations, if you are a

         17  departing passenger heading to the airport, you will

         18  be in a completely air conditioned environment,

         19  between the trains and the stations, all the way to

         20  your plane gate.

         21                 We have elevated connectors to and

         22  from the terminals, you saw that in the first slide,

         23  they move over the roadway network. You will have

         24  moving walkways to and from those terminals within

         25  those connectors. You have two large glass-enclosed
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          2  elevators, and two maximum width escalators that

          3  take you through your paths of travel within the

          4  station environment.

          5                 Finally, there are three levels to

          6  this typical station. You have platform connector,

          7  we also have glass-enclosed lobbies and the parking

          8  lot areas so that someone who is arriving at the

          9  airport could park in any of our parking lots and

         10  move up into the system and then move from one point

         11  on the airport precinct to the other.

         12                 In terms of the central terminal area

         13  service, and you are looking at a diagram on the

         14  right that describes the central terminal area in

         15  much more detail than the graphic, you can see our A

         16  terminal buildings, that would be the configuration

         17  of the central terminal area, once the American

         18  Complex is in place. You see that there are six

         19  stations that service these eight terminal

         20  buildings, that loop is about two miles long as you

         21  enter into the central terminal area. It is a dual

         22  loop within the central terminal area. There is a

         23  local loop that allows a passenger to move from one

         24  terminal building to the other, thereby

         25  interconnecting all of those buildings, and we have
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          2  the airport access loop that allows passengers to

          3  come from outside of the central terminal area and

          4  off-airport, as an airport access passenger, and

          5  move to the terminal buildings.

          6                 If you move from terminal one to

          7  terminal eight, you have an eight-minute round trip

          8  around that loop, and a train arrives every two

          9  minutes during peak hour at the hour. When you

         10  arrive at the platform a train will be there.

         11                 There is a significant amount of

         12  development, as Chris mentioned, occurring on the

         13  airport as we speak, and in future developments.

         14                 Just to take you quickly through some

         15  of the investment that has already occurred, the

         16  terminal that is indicated in yellow on the left is

         17  the new terminal one complex, which opened in May of

         18  1998. The Port Authority has also completed

         19  significant construction in this area, and the slide

         20  on the right indicates what this airport will look

         21  like in the future, between the Port Authority

         22  improving the roadway network, building new parking

         23  structures for the vehicles that will continue to

         24  arrive at this airport over the ground access

         25  roadway network. Our train will be moving directly
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          2  in between that land-side access program and the new

          3  terminal buildings.

          4                 You can see, this investment is

          5  already there. We need this system to bring this

          6  airport full circle back up to its world class

          7  status.

          8                 If we move to the IAT, the

          9  international air terminal, you can see that that

         10  building was built significantly land-side, which

         11  allows our system to move right through the terminal

         12  building. It is the only station on the airport

         13  within the central terminal area, where you don't

         14  need a connector to access the actual terminal

         15  building.

         16                 If you look at the slide on the left,

         17  in the lower left-hand corner, you could actually

         18  see the guideway in construction as the

         19  International Air Terminal is in construction. So,

         20  we are already making it happen within the central

         21  terminal area. We need to move out of the central

         22  terminal area and off the airport to complete our

         23  program.

         24                 Finally, the British site. You can

         25  see the British terminal there. It is in
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          2  construction with its own capital investment. Our

          3  system will come right through their parking area,

          4  very similar to the way it does at terminal one. So,

          5  again, significant investment.

          6                 And finally, we have the new American

          7  terminal, which is under consideration. A massive

          8  terminal building, our system will service that

          9  building. You can actually see in this computer

         10  rendering our system arriving at that precinct

         11  between the new parking structure that American will

         12  be building and their brand new terminal.

         13                 When we move outside of the central

         14  terminal area to the Howard Beach service which can

         15  accept to the Airtrain terminal at the New York City

         16  Transit right of way. We can see here that it is a

         17  three-mile elevated and at grade guideway

         18  configuration. As it moves out of the central

         19  terminal area, it actually moves at grade, elevates

         20  back up, as it moves through the airport precinct

         21  and arrives at the Howard Beach station.

         22                 It is about an eight-minute trip from

         23  the Howard Beach station to the first terminal

         24  building, and at peak hour a train will arrive every

         25  four minutes.
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          2                 This is what we are proposing to do

          3  to take the place of the aerial photograph that you

          4  see on the right. That small building sitting

          5  adjacent to our parking area is New York City

          6  Transit head house, where passengers will arrive on

          7  the A Train and move from the A Train mezzanine,

          8  which is directly adjacent to the water area, the

          9  wetlands area, on the left-hand side of the slide,

         10  and circulates through temporary connectors to that

         11  head house area where they pick up a bus which would

         12  take up to 45 minutes to get to the central terminal

         13  area.

         14                 The slide on the left indicates how

         15  our alignment will come through the site and

         16  interface directly with the New York City Transit A

         17  Train.

         18                 This is what people do today, over a

         19  million of them arrive via the Airtrain today, move

         20  to this bus, where they move out to the airport

         21  central terminal area.

         22                 We will be replacing that with our

         23  system where they will able to, once they pay their

         24  fare at the Airtrain fare zone, the direct interface

         25  between the Airtrain terminal and Airtrain station,
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          2  they will move to the airport central terminal area

          3  in eight minutes.

          4                 This is what that will look like in

          5  the future. That is our station on the left plugging

          6  into the new mezzanine rotunda over the New York

          7  City Transit Airtrain station. You can see that

          8  rotunda on the right. That is where you pay your

          9  fare and move directly onto the Airtrain station

         10  platform.

         11                 Finally, in terms of the regional

         12  connection options for the one-seat ride that Chris

         13  began the discussion talking about, what you are

         14  looking at there is how a fly-over from the New York

         15  City Transit right of way, which could either be a

         16  subway connection or a railroad connection, can

         17  interface with our guideway and allow that fourth

         18  car to move on to our system and then move out to

         19  the central terminal area. That fourth car will have

         20  the ability to be manually operated and be fully

         21  automated. As it rides on the Transit rights of way

         22  it would be manually operated, it would flip on to

         23  an automated system that it could run on our

         24  guideway network and then move to the central

         25  terminal area, thereby creating the one seat ride.
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          2                 Moving out to Jamaica, as the system

          3  moves from our federal circle rental car station,

          4  out onto the Van Wyck Expressway, we will pick up

          5  the EJ and Z subway services at the Jamaica Station

          6  Complex, the railroad at Jamaica Station, ten of the

          7  11 branches of the railroad, and numerous City buses

          8  as well.

          9                 The guideway will be elevated along

         10  the expressway, it is an eight-minute trip from

         11  Jamaica Station to the first terminal building, and,

         12  again, a train will arrive every four minutes at the

         13  Airtrain terminal at Jamaica station during airport

         14  peak which overlaps with the transit peak.

         15                 This is what our guideway will look

         16  like along the Expressway corridor. It needs to be

         17  approximately 43 feet to the top of rail above the

         18  Van Wyck roadway bed. That is so we can clear the

         19  various bridge overpasses. There are seven of those

         20  between the Airport and the Atlantic Avenue bridge

         21  overpass which allows our system to move out the

         22  Jamaica Station.

         23                 You can see how the noise barriers

         24  work. Within the guideway network, the Airtrain

         25  right of way in its final configuration is
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          2  approximately 33 feet up at that guideway network

          3  and the slide on the right is a model which

          4  indicates what this will look like if it moves over

          5  a bridge overpass, moving down the Expressway.

          6                 One of the issues that we will be

          7  dealing with and we have begun to deal with is a

          8  beautification program that we hope will

          9  significantly improve the look of the Expressway,

         10  once our system is in place.

         11                 The slide on the right is the

         12  landscaping and beautification that has already

         13  occurred at the airport. We are going to take this

         14  and move it out along the bridge overpass zones and

         15  the service road zones so that we can significantly

         16  improve the environment along those zones in

         17  anticipation of the Airtrain system in place.

         18                 Construction is also an issue along

         19  the Expressway, and that will be discussed in detail

         20  in the later part of the presentation. As we move

         21  finally to the Jamaica Station complex. We needed to

         22  deal with certain strategic criteria to make this

         23  work at Jamaica Station. We need it to deal with an

         24  airport gateway establishment, a sense of arrival at

         25  Jamaica Station, we need it to develop the highest
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          2  quality ease of transfer for the three or four

          3  different patrons who will arrive at Jamaica

          4  station, either by train, subway, bus or City

          5  street. We needed to develop a public presence in

          6  downtown Jamaica, and we needed to address the

          7  existing complex historic landmark status, it is a

          8  state landmark, and all of the work that we will be

          9  doing there has been interfacing with the State

         10  Historic Preservation Office Upstate.

         11                 Finally is an aerial view of the

         12  Jamaica Station Complex with its five platforms

         13  elevated above Sutphin Boulevard. This is what our

         14  Airtrain terminal will be doing with the interfacing

         15  of the guideway coming off the Expressway and

         16  plugging the station into the new Airtrain terminal

         17  complex.

         18                 In terms of what this will do, we

         19  need to bring passengers from below grade at subway

         20  level, that half of our passengers arrive that way

         21  and above grade at railroad level over to the south

         22  side of the complex so that they could move onto the

         23  Airtrain platform. This is a significant addition to

         24  an already existing, extremely active, intermodal

         25  regional Transit hub, and we think adding this
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          2  fourth service will bring this complex up to world

          3  class status at a regional Transit hub.

          4                 Quickly, to take you through the

          5  levels so you will understand the quality that we

          6  are anticipating here at Jamaica Station. This is

          7  the subway level. On the left is what it looks like

          8  today. On the right is what that zone will look like

          9  when passengers arrive in the future.

         10                 Again, maximum with escalators, glass

         11  elevators, the ability to move through

         12  environmentally controlled spaces, all the way to

         13  the Airtrain platform with your baggage cart, all

         14  the way to the airport.

         15                 This is what Sutphin Boulevard

         16  underpass looks like today. This is what it will

         17  look like in the future once we build a brand new

         18  street concourse to allow passengers coming from the

         19  street and from the subway to move along the complex

         20  and access the Airtrain platform fare zone, where

         21  they will then move onto the station and out to the

         22  airport.

         23                 Today the platforms have small, low

         24  canopies, in the zone where all of our passengers

         25  will be moving. In the future we will be creating a
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          2  multi-level platform environment at railroad level

          3  to allow the railroad's mezzanine to be relocated

          4  above track level and to create the path of travel

          5  for our passengers to move to the Airtrain station.

          6                 In terms of the walking distance and

          7  time, as our passengers move through this complex,

          8  we are averaging somewhere in the four to

          9  five-minute range in terms of the time from the most

         10  remote areas of the existing Transit system complex

         11  to our Airtrain platform zone. We have looked at it

         12  both at street level and at the elevated mezzanine

         13  level and you can see everyone arriving at the

         14  Airtrain fare zone slide on the right on the upper

         15  left-hand corner.

         16                 Finally, street presence. The slide

         17  on the left is a photo of what the complex looks

         18  like today, the slide on the right is what it will

         19  look like in the future, creating a significant

         20  presence within the downtown Jamaica area, hopefully

         21  the beginning or providing that economic engine that

         22  will signify the redevelopment of the downtown

         23  Jamaica station area plan and beyond.

         24                 Finally, regional connections. As we

         25  looked at at Howard Beach we have the ability to
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          2  take the Long Island Railroad Service from both

          3  Brooklyn and Manhattan, do the same flyover

          4  strategy, interface with the Airtrain guideway, the

          5  car would go from manual to automated, pick up

          6  passengers at the Airtrain station who are arriving

          7  from other parts of the region and eight minutes

          8  later be out at your terminal building.

          9                 What I would like to do now is turn

         10  the program over to Paul Bakas, who will talk to you

         11  about technology issues, airport access, alternate

         12  routes that have been evaluated and the Van Wyck

         13  Expressway construction strategy.

         14                 MR. BAKAS: Thank you. I am Paul

         15  Bakas, an engineer on the Airport Access Program.

         16                 The first topic is lim (phonetic)

         17  technology which has been raised as an issue because

         18  the contract building design/build contract shows to

         19  you a linear induction motor.

         20                 The contract requirements were very

         21  flexible for many areas where they were totally

         22  inflexible where it came to mandatory requirements

         23  for future compatibility. We had listed requirements

         24  that all contractors had to meet. This contractor

         25  met those requirements - steel wheel, steel rail,
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          2  fully automatic operations, be able to operate short

          3  trains at close headways, highly reliable station

          4  stopping accuracy. The contractor who got awarded

          5  the contract happens to use a linear induction

          6  motor. We investigated that technology to make sure

          7  it had no impediment to the future one-seat ride and

          8  it does not.

          9                 So, any impression that the linear

         10  motor is a technical impediment is wrong.

         11                 The other question was have we

         12  studied other alternatives? And yes, many

         13  alternatives were studied, particularly the Rockaway

         14  Beach branch alternative. We studied an EIS, we

         15  looked at subway and railroad solutions, which are

         16  shown here. Because of financial and cost impacts

         17  and environmental impacts and technical and

         18  feasibility of adding trains to existing systems,

         19  the Port Authority had to develop its own 22-mile

         20  system and could not use this corridor because the

         21  corridor itself does not get into Manhattan. It

         22  falls short of Manhattan and there is not passing on

         23  existing tracks, Transit tracks to bring it into

         24  Manhattan.

         25                 In 1995, the Regional Planning
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          2  Association came to the Port Authority and said

          3  could you look at an alternative to the Van Wyck

          4  corridor? It uses part of the Rockaway Beach branch,

          5  it uses the Long Island Railroad operations under

          6  Atlantic Avenue. We look at this with the RPA, we

          7  looked at the cost, we looked at the impacts and it

          8  had no capital cost advantage, it had a higher

          9  operating cost, we had operators on our trains and

         10  we also had longer distances to run, and it would

         11  have a whole new EIS, but more importantly, the RPA

         12  and Port Authority agreed that this was only a

         13  feasible solution that the Long Island Railroad

         14  actually turned over this right of way to the Port

         15  Authority, which was not likely to happen in the

         16  foreseeable future.

         17                 This slide shows the guideway down

         18  the Van Wyck Expressway, and it answers a technical

         19  question in the ULURP, why is the Port Authority

         20  requesting a 38-foot right of way? And would that

         21  38-foot right of way impact the construction

         22  sequence of having three lanes in each direction on

         23  the Van Wyck Expressway.

         24                 What this slide shows is the actual

         25  foundations are less than 38 feet, but we are
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          2  requesting a 38-foot right of way to prevent future

          3  work alongside the foundations and may impact those

          4  foundations by others, and so we are using an

          5  easement which is 38-foot wide. The actual

          6  construction envelope is much less than that and it

          7  can be built in the Van Wyck Expressway as we

          8  presently have engineered.

          9                 That engineering allows for three

         10  lanes in each direction during peak hours that is

         11  the current capacity to Van Wyck Expressway and

         12  during peak hours it will retain that capacity.

         13                 It also permits pile driving during

         14  daytime hours. One of the biggest issues in the EIS

         15  was the construction along the Van Wyck Corridor and

         16  construction impacts. We had to come up with a

         17  concept that had three lanes in each direction and

         18  had pile driving during the day, not at night.

         19                 And the last issue on this corridor

         20  is we are going to incorporate advanced traffic

         21  control measures during construction and those

         22  measures will stay in place after we leave, given a

         23  better traffic control situation along the Van Wyck

         24  Expressway.

         25                 Are we going to build the Van Wyck
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          2  Expressway? Well, the plan has several phases and

          3  the first phase is to go to the Expressway

          4  shoulders, which presently are raised, have curbs

          5  and they are unsuitable for detouring traffic, and

          6  to rebuild those shoulders. We do that on both sides

          7  in the first six months of the project.

          8                 Then once we rebuilt those shoulders

          9  so we can make a third lane, we will capture the

         10  inner lanes that build our foundations, again

         11  keeping three lanes in each direction during peak

         12  hours, and we will build our foundations and

         13  guideway columns.

         14                 Phase three we will install the

         15  guideway superstructure, in phase four we repave the

         16  roadway surface, leaving a better roadway surface

         17  for the future, and the last phase will install the

         18  tracks and systems on top of the guideway.

         19                 MR. WARD: Before I introduce Cruz

         20  Russell to give a presentation on the Economic

         21  Development and Community Benefits. I need to

         22  emphasize one point that was interrelated to both my

         23  comments, Bob's comments and the final comments,

         24  that Kennedy Airport today is an airport which is

         25  servicing 31 million passengers. We forecast by 2003
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          2  it can service 38 million passengers. Absent a

          3  land-side transportation system, the full capacity

          4  at Kennedy Airport, that capacity which the airlines

          5  are investing billions and billions of dollars of,

          6  will not be realized.

          7                 The air-side, the terminal capacity

          8  of Kennedy Airport is 45 million passengers, but our

          9  study, confirmed by the FAA, indicates absent a

         10  land-side transportation system, which gets people

         11  to that airport, we will not be able to realize the

         12  full air-side potential of Kennedy Airport. So, when

         13  Chairman O'Donovan speaks to the economic

         14  development benefits of this project, it is found

         15  not only in the daily ridership, not only in the

         16  vendor opportunity, not only in terms of leveraging

         17  the amount of private capital, it is found

         18  fundamentally in Kennedy Airport being in a position

         19  to serve the amount of air traffic which it demands,

         20  and with absent this system, that realization will

         21  not be made.

         22                 With that, let me turn this over to

         23  Cruz Russell, who will give a brief description of

         24  the Economic Development community benefit we have

         25  been working on with the various community boards.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 MR. RUSSELL: Thank you, Chris.

          4                 I would just like to say a couple of

          5  things going into the presentation which sort of

          6  speak to the issues of what happens when you build

          7  infrastructure and whether or not that truly

          8  represents economic development opportunity.

          9                 In effect, we will be putting

         10  billions of dollars worth of construction in place,

         11  both at Kennedy Airport and as far as the light rail

         12  system itself is concerned.

         13                 As Chris has referred to, that

         14  infrastructure, when it comes into play, whether it

         15  is the toga project, whether it is those things

         16  associated with development that is already in place

         17  by the terminal one group, additionally American

         18  Airlines and others, to be able to maximize the use

         19  of those resources within the New York New Jersey

         20  community becomes a fundamental issue for the Port

         21  Authority and I think for the City of New York.

         22                 What we are most concerned about is

         23  making sense out of developments that have already

         24  taken place as far as key commitments that have come

         25  on line in terms of building infrastructure,
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          2  additionally taking a look at those things that are

          3  playing out as far as the Jamaica center community

          4  is concerned, and also discussing ways in which

          5  local residents can be participants in what we think

          6  is a burgeoning economy within Southeast Queens that

          7  is airport-related and takes advantage of the

          8  strategic location of the Queens community. With

          9  that, let me just take a couple of seconds and do

         10  what I think are the fundamental things that are

         11  playing as far as the community itself is concerned.

         12                 As you are aware, the Jamaica area

         13  was the historical downtown of Queens, and as such

         14  it has a tremendous amount of transportation

         15  resources, both New York City subway, surface

         16  transportation, the Long Island Railroad and

         17  additionally with the developments that we are

         18  bringing on line, the Airtrain project which will

         19  connect Kennedy Airport to the Jamaica community.

         20                 With that, what we believe is a

         21  critical issue is to make sense out of development

         22  activities that are already being committed to on

         23  the part of key entities and the potential of those

         24  sites around the Airtrain project.

         25                 Luckily what we have are plans that
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          2  are already in play, I would characterize them as a

          3  decade worth of master planning work done by the

          4  Greater Jamaica Development Corporation, which speak

          5  to a master plan which is intended to put into place

          6  the new Jamaica Center, the Jamaica Center of the

          7  future. It is not predicated upon retail activity,

          8  but it is focused on service-related activities and

          9  it is fundamental to what we think is the second

         10  coming of Jamaica.

         11                 With that included come on line

         12  things like the FDA facility, the New York City Help

         13  Center, the Family Court and the branch library in

         14  Jamaica that you see going up there.

         15                 Critically speaking, here is what it

         16  is that the Airtrain project is designed to get

         17  done:

         18                 It is designed to connect the airport

         19  economy to the communities in Southeast Queens, and

         20  to put in place a platform under which projects that

         21  have been proposed over the course of the last

         22  decade come to fruition and that comes to the

         23  millions of dollars worth of potential sites that

         24  are within the Jamaica Center area. It additionally

         25  begins to put into play what I would characterize as
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          2  a host of speculative development activities that

          3  begin to play around transportation assets when they

          4  are currently designed, when they evolve in concert

          5  with what it is the community has as its own

          6  intrinsic strengths, and move forward to make sure

          7  that you end up with employers who benefit clearly

          8  from the fact of their location and local residents

          9  who also are very much participants in the

         10  development of those activities.

         11                 What you have to the right on that

         12  slide is a rendering -- excuse me, not a rendering,

         13  but an actual -- this is an actual photograph of

         14  development that has taken place in the London area.

         15  This is the wharf area in London and what you have

         16  there is a transit system that goes right through

         17  the middle of the complex.

         18                 In effect, when it comes to

         19  speculative development activities, we expect that

         20  the Airtrain project within the hands of private

         21  developers who could potentially put in place

         22  hotels, allied operations that speak to service

         23  facilities, additionally things such as training

         24  centers and other elements of an economy that sort

         25  of becomes airport space, but takes advantage of the
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          2  Southeast Queens community, you have the potential

          3  to replicate what it is that is taking place in

          4  London.

          5                 We also are very clear on the fact

          6  that in terms of the way in which our economies

          7  function, and I guess go back to a simple numerical

          8  fact, the two largest aviation markets and centers

          9  in the world are London, England, and New York City.

         10                 In effect what you are looking at is

         11  the same thing that plays in London can happen in

         12  New York. For it to happen in Jamaica, the Airtrain

         13  project and its linkages to the Long Island railroad

         14  become fundamental and essential.

         15                 What we ended up taking a look at was

         16  ways in which the community can end up being prime

         17  participants in this economic development activity.

         18  In effect, we had a dialogue that took place during

         19  the course of the ULURP process as we went through

         20  community boards 9, 10 and 12, we were able to put

         21  into place a list of conditions and specifics that

         22  began to speak to what makes for a participation

         23  plan that will begin to assure that local residents

         24  are able to reap the benefits of the economic

         25  development activity that we think will follow.
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          2                 In effect what happens is a dollar

          3  flips three times when investment is made on

          4  critical infrastructure. The impact of how that play

          5  all up in the air unless you come up with a plan

          6  that makes it so the community itself can take

          7  advantage of the opportunities that are at play.

          8                 What we have done is taken a look at

          9  capacity building, and in effect we have come up

         10  with three areas that we think are critical and

         11  important when it comes to being able to do an

         12  effective job of making sure that the community ends

         13  up being participants and recipients of benefits

         14  associated with the project.

         15                 They include a business development

         16  strategy, strip development along Rockaway

         17  Boulevard, and an Aviations II Program at York

         18  College.

         19                 I will take a couple of minutes on

         20  all of those. In effect what we found is there is a

         21  strong entrepreneurial presence in the Southeast

         22  Queens community and in effect if we were able to

         23  put into place more resources to make it so that

         24  local businesses were able to compete with national

         25  entities when it comes to retailing opportunity and
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          2  service businesses and service businesses that are

          3  required in order to manage the economy locally,

          4  that we would end up with a great gain for the local

          5  community.

          6                 We have been engaging key local

          7  entities within Southeast Queens to be able to

          8  support and sustain local businesses when it comes

          9  to being able to benefit from the key elements of

         10  the economy that we think are going to play around

         11  the airport construction, around Airtrain

         12  construction and additionally around other

         13  activities that will take place in terms of the

         14  buildings and structures I referred to.

         15                 Additionally we took a look at what

         16  happens, as we characterize the Rockaway Boulevard

         17  Corridor. As you may be aware, Rockaway Boulevard is

         18  in very close proximity to Kennedy Airport. It has

         19  yet to reap in any kind of formal form the benefits

         20  of being so close to the airport.

         21                 In effect, local elected officials

         22  and community leaders have asked us to take a look

         23  at ways in which we might be able to put in place an

         24  effective agenda to begin to bring the airport

         25  economy off of airport, onto the strip close to
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          2  Rockaway Boulevard, so as to create a service area

          3  strip and additionally begin to take allied

          4  aviation-related activities and place them within

          5  the Rockaway Boulevard Corridor Area. We are pleased

          6  to be working with elected officials on fleshing out

          7  what that plan will look like, and we think it

          8  really represents a great platform for economic

          9  opportunity within the local area.

         10                 The third piece that I think is

         11  critical is something that we characterize as an

         12  aviation institute, and it takes advantage, it is

         13  one of the greatest assets within the Southeast

         14  Queens Community and that is York College. What we

         15  would like to do, and have been engaging York

         16  College in at present, is putting together a

         17  curriculum that is intended to make it so that not

         18  only is Kennedy Airport the gateway in terms of the

         19  traveling public, but becomes the gateway to job

         20  opportunities within the aviation industry.

         21                 As you are aware, every key airline,

         22  both international and domestic, carries passengers

         23  in and out of Kennedy Airport. Without an effective

         24  academic base that makes it so that local residents

         25  will be educated and prepared to take advantage of
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          2  opportunities within that industry, and I am

          3  referring to opportunities that are existent in New

          4  York City, as well as systemwide opportunities,

          5  which local residents said to us in effect we send

          6  our sons and daughters away to colleges, all across

          7  the country in order for them to get quality jobs

          8  within these industries, it would be very

          9  appropriate and important for an educational

         10  institution within the community to be able to

         11  provide that same level of expertise to local

         12  residents so they can take advantage of airport

         13  opportunities.

         14                 We are engaging York College and

         15  putting in place an aviation institute program that

         16  will take advantage of York's core competencies and

         17  business management and additionally those things

         18  that have to do with support services that are

         19  required by the aviation community in order to

         20  manage its affairs.

         21                 In effect what we have done is put

         22  together what we think is a fundamental project that

         23  really begins to address the capacity building and

         24  will assure economic empowerment on the part of

         25  local residents.
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          2                 Another critical element that we took

          3  a look at, and this has to do again with what I

          4  characterize as the community benefits element of

          5  the project, is to take a look at ways in which

          6  during the course of construction the Airtrain

          7  project will be as minimally invasive as possible

          8  when it comes to the way in which we do construction

          9  and affect people's lives.

         10                 Working again with the community

         11  boards, I think that we have come up with a program

         12  that begins to address the critical issues that are

         13  at play, one of which is those things that I would

         14  characterize as potential of collateral damages,

         15  associated home-owners potentially during

         16  construction, although we believe there is a very

         17  modest opportunity for those kind of things to

         18  occur, we have put in place an insurance program and

         19  have additionally worked with local residents to

         20  make sure that in terms of those things that have to

         21  do with their property, which is their fundamental

         22  asset, they are able to make sure they will end up

         23  with property that are not damaged during

         24  construction and that we are taking care of their

         25  fundamental needs on their account.
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          2                 Additionally, we took a look at those

          3  things that have to do with traffic diversion and

          4  tried to make sure that in terms of public safety

          5  issues, and additionally those things that have to

          6  do with the ability of residents to receive medical

          7  attention and other critical elements, that anything

          8  that has to do with activities that play in terms of

          9  traffic diversion do not negatively impact the local

         10  communities.

         11                 That is something that we did not

         12  just from the point of view of taking a look at the

         13  critical elements closer to the Van Wyck Corridor,

         14  we in effect put into place an entire strategy that

         15  speaks to monitoring traffic activities with

         16  baseline accounts within Southeast Queens, going

         17  forward with an ongoing aggressive program of

         18  monitoring and engaging the community if there are

         19  any issues that play out around traffic diversion

         20  that negatively impact the quality of the local

         21  environment.

         22                 We also have taken a look at ways in

         23  which we can also begin to deal with the potential

         24  of noise and visual impacts that are associated with

         25  this major construction.
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          2                 What Bob Davidson showed you was some

          3  things that play in terms of our enhancement program

          4  around the Van Wyck. We will be going forward with

          5  an aggressive formal program that puts into play not

          6  only those things that have to do with the

          7  beautification component, but begin to put into

          8  place an upgraded environment around the Van Wyck

          9  that is intended to deal with noise and visual

         10  impacts that are associated not only with the

         11  Airtrain project, but ongoing issues that local

         12  residents brought to us in terms of the way in which

         13  the Van Wyck Corridor and the Van Wyck Highway

         14  itself impacts their local community.

         15                 We have yet to complete that because

         16  it will go through a phase of discussion with local

         17  officials, but we are clear on the fact that we will

         18  end up with a program that begins to make sense in

         19  terms of those critical elements and meetings.

         20                 Finally what we have done is

         21  established, through the course of interactions with

         22  home-owners along the Van Wyck, the community boards

         23  and elected officials a way of taking a look at the

         24  way that we would actually begin to make sure that

         25  we are engaging the community in an ongoing fashion.
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          2                 What you have here in front of you is

          3  a list of a chart that shows how we have segmented

          4  the community, the meetings that have taken place

          5  already within that community, we are thus engaging

          6  small groups of local residents in discussions

          7  around critical elements associated with the

          8  project, getting feedback from them and moving

          9  forward, and additionally it will act as our ongoing

         10  mechanism along with key committees that have been

         11  in place with the community boards to make sure

         12  there is an ongoing dialogue in terms of the way the

         13  project is being developed and to make sure that any

         14  concerns over the course of the construction period,

         15  that there is a meaningful way in which all of those

         16  concerns can be addressed.

         17                 With that I will close and we are

         18  available for questions. Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you very

         20  much. Could we have the lights? We will give

         21  everybody a few seconds to get accustomed to the

         22  lights again.

         23                 Thank you, gentlemen. While we are

         24  waiting for everybody's eyes to come back, may I

         25  announce the members who have since arrived.
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          2                 We have Council Members Dear of

          3  Brooklyn, Eisland of the Bronx who just went next

          4  door. There is a Committee meeting going on next

          5  door. Council Member Clarke of Brooklyn, Council

          6  Member White of Queens, Council Member Eldridge of

          7  Manhattan, Council Member Spigner of Queens, Council

          8  Member Michels of Manhattan, and Council Member

          9  Miller of Manhattan, and Council Member McCaffrey of

         10  Queens and Council Member Rodriguez of Brooklyn.

         11                 Did I leave anyone out?

         12                 Okay, I have a couple of questions,

         13  if you would indulge me for a moment.

         14                 That was an extraordinarily

         15  interesting presentation, and I understand that the

         16  Port Authority has made the Economic Development of

         17  the Jamaica business district one of the rationales

         18  for the construction of the Van Wyck El, and you

         19  have extensively gone into that issue.

         20                 Now, based upon your ridership

         21  estimates, there will be an additional 7,000

         22  passengers daily that will utilize Jamaica as a

         23  transfer to the Van Wyck El. I believe by your own

         24  estimates, 2,600 of these riders will be JFK

         25  employees, leaving only 4,400 air travelers moving
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          2  through the station; is that accurate?

          3                 MR. WARD: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay. Of these

          5  7,000 or 4,400, depending upon which figure you want

          6  to believe will be transient enough to leave the

          7  station, how many do you estimate will actually

          8  leave the station and go into downtown Jamaica and

          9  utilize the stores and the business area in Jamaica?

         10  And what will be the incentive for them to do that?

         11                 MR. WARD: Well, let me answer that

         12  question in two ways.

         13                 Obviously, our intent is not to

         14  divert those passengers who are looking for a quick

         15  seemless way to get to Kennedy Airport. The whole

         16  design of the Jamaica Station is intended to provide

         17  that seemless connection for the transportation

         18  system.

         19                 Having said that, however, the

         20  concept which I think Cruz Russell demonstrated in

         21  the Canary Wharf analogy in London, is that when you

         22  have a transportation hub that links together five

         23  or six different systems, whether from Long Island

         24  Railroad, the subway system and our system, you seek

         25  collateral economic development, whether it becomes
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          2  a hotel service center, so perhaps an international

          3  traveler leaving Kennedy Airport has a business

          4  meeting at a hotel that is developed there, or that

          5  for those passengers which have time and have the

          6  ease of access, that there would be an opportunity

          7  to leave the Long Island Railroad to have dinner in

          8  a restaurant and have an opportunity --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: So, in other

         10  words, if I may, the anticipation or the benefit to

         11  be derived by Jamaica is really on the come.

         12                 In other words, it is your

         13  anticipation or hope that collateral development

         14  will take place, but there is no specific plans, nor

         15  are you aware of any specific nor are you aware of

         16  any specific plans to develop the area?

         17                 MR. WARD: Yes, we are very aware of

         18  plans to develop the specific area, and I think

         19  working with the Jamaica Development Corporation is

         20  exactly the type of approach that the Port Authority

         21  is looking for.

         22                 Working with local elected officials

         23  in that development corporation, they have put

         24  together a plan which is looking at the available

         25  sites for development, and in looking for an
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          2  assembled plan which would look at mixed use

          3  development, plan development in the Port

          4  Authorities there in a supportive role to ensure

          5  that the design and function of the Jamaica Station

          6  facilitates that type of development.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Just to be more

          8  specific, has any hotel expressed interest in coming

          9  to that area yet?

         10                 MR. WARD: Well, there has been

         11  outreach by the Jamaica Development Corporation to a

         12  series of hotels and those conversations are

         13  ongoing.

         14                 The specific design of the Jamaica

         15  station has an air rights opportunity to bring a

         16  hotel or to bring in some other mixed use. Given the

         17  preliminary nature of this discussion, we are not in

         18  a position to say that a specific hotel has

         19  expressed a specific interest in development, but

         20  clearly out of Jamaica Development Corporation there

         21  is a plan and an opportunity to access that type of

         22  interest.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, I

         24  understand where you are coming from, and it seems

         25  to me that there is an anticipation and a hope and I
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          2  understand that this is the way to go, or it

          3  probably is the way to go, but there is beyond that,

          4  nothing that has been definitively determined.

          5                 MR. WARD: Well, in terms of the

          6  hotel, no. But I think as the slide showed you that

          7  Bob Davidson went through, the complete

          8  rehabilitation of Sutphin Boulevard, that dark area

          9  underneath the overpass and the retail opportunities

         10  with the rejuvenated access into Jamaica Station is

         11  exactly the type of transportation improvement that

         12  accesses people to bring new investment in terms of

         13  retail options along with Sutphin Boulevard. So, in

         14  addition to the larger development plan, there is

         15  consistent with that street level, retail, mixed use

         16  opportunities in and around the Jamaica Station.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right. Well,

         18  I certainly hope that you are right. Certainly

         19  Jamaica is entitled to that rediscovery.

         20                 All right, now, in recent articles in

         21  both Crains and in New York times claim the Port

         22  Authority has slowed down American Airline's plans

         23  to spend more than I believe $600 million in private

         24  funds on a new terminal.

         25                 Now, assuming the accuracy of those
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          2  articles, unless they are not accurate, why would

          3  Port Authority inhibit the expenditure of such a

          4  large amount of money for the development of its

          5  terminals?

          6                 MR. WARD: Let me state clearly that

          7  the Port Authority has not inhibited the investment

          8  of both American Airlines or any of the future

          9  projects.

         10                 Given the billion dollars that

         11  American Airlines is proposing to spend on Kennedy

         12  Airport, the number of issues that need to be

         13  examined to ensure, as Bob Davidson went through,

         14  that the building design of the light rail system,

         15  the terminal layout in terms of their gates, all of

         16  those issues are currently being sorted through. But

         17  there is no way, and I believe a series of letters

         18  have been sent from Executive Director Bob Boyle, to

         19  elected officials who have expressed this concern,

         20  there has been no delay by the Port Authority on

         21  American Airline's project or any other project.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Well, I certainly

         23  hope that what you are saying is accurate, but this

         24  Crain's article says Port Authority puts the brakes

         25  on the JFK terminal and today's Times makes
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          2  reference to the same occurrence.

          3                 I know I personally will be

          4  incredibly upset if an opportunity to rehabilitate

          5  the terminal was in any way inhibited in order to

          6  foster a plan that still has yet to go.

          7                 MR. WARD: Let me say that the Port

          8  Authority and the Executive Management, from the

          9  Chairman to the Executive Director, share that very

         10  concern.

         11                 The New York Times article that you

         12  are referring to is with regard to some very

         13  complicated lease negotiations with maritime

         14  customers and the New Jersey terminal sea, land and

         15  air, but there is no connection in terms of those

         16  negotiations and aviation development at Kennedy

         17  Airport.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, I hope so.

         19                 The Airtrain project, according to

         20  the presentation, is anticipated to cost about one

         21  and a half billion dollars in round figures. The

         22  Port Authority will be financing the project with

         23  300 million of its own funds, and 1.2 million in

         24  round figures from the $3 passenger facility charge,

         25  the PFCs --
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          2                 MR. WARD: Correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Which is

          4  collected in each of the three Port Authority

          5  airports.

          6                 The Van Wyck Expressway portion of

          7  the project alone, as I understand, will cost about

          8  600 million; is that accurate?

          9                 MR. WARD: All costs in O and M and

         10  financing, as well as capital costs, correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: The construction

         12  of the light rail system will consume all of the PFC

         13  imposed revenue collected at the Port Authority

         14  Airports to at least the Year 2009; is that correct?

         15                 MR. WARD: That's correct.

         16                 If I just may, there are some

         17  innovative bond financing alternatives out of

         18  federal PFC programs that we are currently

         19  investigating in order to leverage further Port

         20  Authority investment.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: But that is not

         22  before us yet, is it?

         23                 MR. WARD: No, it's not.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay. So,

         25  predicated on the plan that is before us, the
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          2  information that I just set forth is the reality.

          3                 MR. WARD: Correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

          5                 The expenditure of these funds will

          6  likely delay obviously, unless you have other plans

          7  that we don't know about yet, or postpone many of

          8  the projects already identified by the Port

          9  Authority in its five-year improvement plan; is that

         10  also accurate?

         11                 MR. WARD: I am sorry, are you asking

         12  me will it delay?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Yes, will it

         14  delay other plans?

         15                 MR. WARD: No, absolutely not.

         16                 I think one of the innovative aspects

         17  of this project is accessing the federal program of

         18  PFC money 1.2 billion dollars, we have freed up the

         19  financial capacity of the Port Authority to

         20  undertake a myriad of other projects that in no way

         21  will delay any other transportation-related project

         22  in New York or in New Jersey.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Well, that begs

         24  the question then, if you didn't have the PFC money

         25  available, would the Port Authority pay for it out
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          2  of its own revenues, and its own money or its own

          3  borrowing capacity?

          4                 MR. WARD: Well, I am pleased to say

          5  that we didn't have to face that question given the

          6  availability of federal funds.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I understand

          8  that.

          9                 MR. WARD: Currently the Port

         10  Authority could, under its existing financial

         11  capacity, pay for this project on its own. At that

         12  point, Chairman, you would be looking at the

         13  potential trade-offs of projects that otherwise not

         14  have been able to go forward. The innovative aspect

         15  of the PFC program is the federal recognition that

         16  airports require reinvestment from the federal

         17  perspective, and that is why we designed their

         18  application to access those funds.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: So, if I

         20  understand your testimony, then the five-year

         21  capital improvement plan will not in any way be

         22  inhibited by the use of the PFC money for this

         23  program?

         24                 MR. WARD: Absolutely not.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: That's good news.
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          2                 Okay, I have other questions but we

          3  will now proceed.

          4                 Mr. Chairman, Mr. O'Donovan, do you

          5  want to preside for a moment?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chairman.

          8                 What percentage of the 1.5 billion

          9  estimated cost for the Airtrain system is

         10  specifically set aside for economic development

         11  activity?

         12                 MR. WARD: Out of the $1.5 billion

         13  contract that we have with the Airtrain team,

         14  approximately $125 million has been set aside for

         15  women, small minority-owned businesses, within the

         16  five boroughs. Our intent, as we have been working

         17  through the community, maximizing that program for

         18  Southeast Queens.

         19                 I think as Cruz Russell was

         20  demonstrating, our vision of a project of this size

         21  is to bring the maximum economic development into

         22  the community which is most impacted by that, and

         23  that is why we set up a series of business

         24  conferences and direct outreach for contractors

         25  located in Southeast Queens.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you.

          3                 Council Member Eisland. The

          4  Chairwoman of Land Use, incidentally.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Good morning.

          6                 MR. WARD: Good morning.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: I have heard

          8  many technical explanations, and I think it would

          9  behoove us to understand what the future of this

         10  project would bring as far as the ultimate goal of

         11  many people which is a seemless one-seat ride.

         12                 I have had explanations at the way

         13  the trackage and the station is being configured

         14  that it would not be compatible with the trains that

         15  are envisioned there and various other concerns. I

         16  think that has been one of the goals for many of us

         17  for a long time, a seemless ride.

         18                 Can you tell me what we can envision

         19  ten, 20 years from now, and what kinds of

         20  modifications would have to be made to the

         21  infrastructure that would be put into place in the

         22  next couple of years.

         23                 MR. WARD: Sure, and I think that is,

         24  at the outset of my testimony, that is the

         25  fundamental challenge which has guided the Port
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          2  Authority in developing the Airtrain Project.

          3                 Let me start at the end, that in the

          4  Year 2012 and 2013, after the necessary

          5  transportation improvements to the Long Island

          6  Railroad system and the east side access program, as

          7  well as further improvements to the MTA system, this

          8  region could have a fourth car, a new car, an

          9  innovative car, in the same way that the Airtrain

         10  project is an innovative car, and would travel on

         11  both the Long Island Railroad, the MTA system and

         12  the Airtrain system. That fourth car, if you will,

         13  will provide this region with the most flexible

         14  one-seat ride to access Kennedy Airport.

         15                 The transportation linkages, the rail

         16  infrastructure that we have put in place at the

         17  airport is compatible, and I need to make this

         18  clear, is compatible with the Long Island Railroad

         19  system and the MTA system. The only barrier that we

         20  face for linking those systems is the fourth car.

         21                 The key questions then become, what

         22  are the systems improvements to the rail networks to

         23  make that fourth car a reality? And I think through

         24  the leadership of Senator Shuman and other elected

         25  officials, in looking at the East Side Access
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          2  Program or improvements to the Long Island Railroad,

          3  we will be able to in 2012, 2013, have that fourth

          4  car connected with the Long Island Railroad, MTA and

          5  Airtrain providing that one-seat ride.

          6                 Today, however, that fourth car does

          7  not yet exist, we look for the innovations such as

          8  the Bombardier Company or other rail car providers

          9  to come up with that technology.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON EISLAND: Have they given

         11  any indication that, number one, they are actually

         12  working on that? And number two, do they have any

         13  time frames?

         14                 MR. WARD: Well, I think as Paul was

         15  mentioning, that the technology is necessary to

         16  bring that car into reality exists today. We are not

         17  looking beyond the planning horizon for rail car

         18  technology, and that the discussions with car

         19  providers whether it is Kawasaki, Bombardier are

         20  ongoing, so they would understand what are the

         21  necessary designs and requirements of that car. But

         22  I need to emphasize the technology, as Paul was

         23  walking through in terms of Lim motors, in terms of

         24  the rail infrastructure, is there today to provide a

         25  fourth car in a one-seat ride.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: So would this

          3  fourth car render the rolling stock that we would be

          4  adding to the system, would it render it non-usable,

          5  or would this become compatible with the rolling

          6  stock that will be purchased?

          7                 MR. WARD: It would become compatible.

          8  And the question that you ask, if I may, is the

          9  fundamental regional question that is always posed

         10  to the Port Authority. In your acquisition of the

         11  cars today an the reintroduction at a later date of

         12  a fourth car, are you in effect wasting money in

         13  buying a car today?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: You put that

         15  very well. Thank you.

         16                 MR. WARD: We learn over time, and the

         17  answer to that is, no.

         18                 First off, the car that we are

         19  acquiring today, costing approximately 60 to 65

         20  million, our whole fleet will be available to us for

         21  its entire useful life, and that it will continue --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Which is

         23  what?

         24                 MR. WARD: About 25 or 30 years.

         25                 That car, following the introduction
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          2  of the fourth car, will continue to circulate on

          3  airport, in fact, enhancing then the level of

          4  service of the inter-terminal transfers on Kennedy

          5  Airport.

          6                 Given the nature of that system and

          7  the fact that it is an automated system, the

          8  introduction of the fourth car, with sufficient

          9  headway, will allow both systems to continue to

         10  circulate on airport.

         11                 Therefore, the $62 million which we

         12  are investing in this car system will be available

         13  throughout its useful life, pending the completion

         14  of the one-seat ride the fourth car will interface

         15  with our system.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: My last

         17  question on this topic is, the configuration of the

         18  station in Jamaica, is that configuration compatible

         19  for the future? Is it aimed in the right direction,

         20  so-to-speak?

         21                 MR. WARD: Yes, it is.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Those are the

         23  concerns that have been expressed to me.

         24                 MR. WARD: The design for the terminal

         25  and the layout of the track is pointed in the right
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          2  direction to allow at a later date an interface, as

          3  Bob Davidson was showing, with the Long Island

          4  Railroad at Jamaica, or an MTA connection at Howard

          5  Beach. And our design of our portion of the system

          6  is in a sense there to receive both of those

          7  systems.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you.

         10                 A member of the Economic Development

         11  Committee, Councilman Carrion.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chairman.

         14                 I don't know if you can hear me

         15  clearly.

         16                 Let me begin by first making a

         17  comment about planning, sound planning, and I see a

         18  couple of gaping holes here that I think are begged

         19  by your presentation that maybe we could address.

         20                 The underlying premise as you stated

         21  earlier in your testimony was that some day we

         22  should have a one-seat ride; is that so?

         23                 MR. WARD: Correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: You stated

         25  that?
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          2                 MR. WARD: This region has long looked

          3  for and this region has long demanded a one-seat

          4  ride to Kennedy.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Okay. And,

          6  so, given that premise, everything that you do in

          7  this planning process should emerge from that

          8  premise?

          9                 MR. WARD: Correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: And that goes

         11  to time lines, cost benefit, the actual cost of a

         12  one-seat ride, alternate routes for that one-seat

         13  ride, ridership estimates for that one-seat ride,

         14  what is the market for that one-seat ride. And then

         15  I guess in my mind we would then scale back to this

         16  option that the PA is proposing and show how it fits

         17  into that larger plan.

         18                 But what I see is that there is no

         19  larger plan, that you have shown some alternatives

         20  that you argue are weak at the moment or undoable

         21  because of technology or that the actual lines don't

         22  reach the intended destinations, et cetera, et

         23  cetera.

         24                 And you lock yourself into assuming

         25  that the one-seat ride in 2012 or 2013 is going to
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          2  require us using the existing infrastructure, absent

          3  of whatever changes might occur in that

          4  infrastructure. So, there is a sort of hope and

          5  faith that somehow technology will catch up and we

          6  will figure this out later. That is what I get.

          7                 And so we have this $1.2 billion and

          8  we say, okay, maybe we will make a first attempt and

          9  then sort of claw around into the future and figure

         10  out how we are going to do this.

         11                 Have you costed out a one-seat ride

         12  in all of the alternatives?

         13                 MR. WARD: Well, let me answer that

         14  question in a couple of ways.

         15                 First off, the planning process at

         16  the Port Authority went to fundamentally start it

         17  with your goal and this region's goal. In looking at

         18  the transportation linkages, we needed to understand

         19  what are the pieces that can be put together today

         20  in order to interface with the system that you are

         21  referring to, and that is fundamentally the design

         22  of the Airtrain project. It is, as Councilwoman

         23  Eisland asked, is it capable of receiving the

         24  one-seat ride alternative? Having said that, I need

         25  to be clear that the regional questions in terms of
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          2  cost, the regional questions in terms of ridership

          3  to take the Long Island Railroad System or the MTA

          4  system and bring it to Kennedy Airport will raise

          5  some very important questions in terms of what is

          6  the community you are serving, how much are you

          7  willing to pay for that, and what is the level of

          8  service you are providing to riderships throughout

          9  the whole region? Our concept was to provide bodies

         10  such as the City Council, elected officials, the

         11  opportunity to make that decision after the

         12  construction of the Airtrain project.

         13                 Because absent the Airtrain Project,

         14  any of those other one-seat ride alternatives would

         15  not be viable. And so you are aware, the MTA with

         16  the Port Authority, is currently conducting the

         17  detailed analysis of what would be necessary for a

         18  one-seat ride from Manhattan, from Atlantic Center

         19  in Brooklyn, into the Jamaica Station or the Howard

         20  Beach Station, and I will be clear that those

         21  alteratives will not come cheap to this region. The

         22  East Side Access Program spearheaded by now

         23  ex-Senator D'Amato, is a 2 to 3 billion dollar

         24  project which will not be completed probably at the

         25  earliest until 2010 and perhaps as late as 2013.
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          2                 That will be one piece which will

          3  allow the connections to Jamaica to be possible.

          4                 There will be on the Long Island

          5  Railroad system and the TA system similar series of

          6  substantial investments to provide the rail capacity

          7  to access the Airtrain project.

          8                 Our approach is the worst thing we

          9  could end up doing is not building a platform, to

         10  not build the Airtrain project, and not provide

         11  decision-makers the opportunity to decide that that

         12  is the level of services required and that

         13  investment is necessary, because as I said, if we

         14  didn't have the Airtrain Project, that whole debate

         15  would be moved.

         16                 So, when you talk about from a

         17  planning process, our concept was access federal

         18  dollars, use Port Authority resources, leave the

         19  region available with a platform to bring that

         20  one-seat ride technology. But it would be unfair and

         21  perhaps misleading to not make clear that the

         22  one-seat ride alternatives, which are being

         23  investigated by the MTA, come at a cost both in

         24  terms of capital and ridership and level of service

         25  to both Long Island Railroad passengers and TA
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          2  passengers.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: So, the short

          4  answer is that you haven't costed out the one-seat

          5  ride. And that fundamentally you are saying take a

          6  leap of faith by creating this connection to the

          7  existing system and we will figure the rest out

          8  later.

          9                 Essentially, I mean when you reduce

         10  it to its fundamental parts, that is what it is.

         11                 MR. WARD: I would just disagree with

         12  you on the leap of faith. I would also disagree with

         13  you on that we have not costed out.

         14                 While the MTA study is not final, the

         15  level of expenditures that we are envisioning for

         16  the one-seat ride are a multi-billion dollar

         17  project. And in terms of the leap of faith, the very

         18  application which we provided to the FAA and the

         19  ridership numbers and the justification of this

         20  project are self-sustaining in and of themselves. It

         21  provides us today, through 2011 and 2012, the ideal

         22  connections to an existing transportation system --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Understood.

         24                 MR. WARD: Even if we don't get a

         25  one-seat ride. And I think we need to be clear here,
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          2  and this has been a long-standing issue. There is

          3  not a perfect one-seat ride that exists for this

          4  region. Whether you are taking a taxi, whether you

          5  are taking a subway, whether you are making another

          6  connection, people travel throughout this region

          7  making a variety of connections in a variety of

          8  ways.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: But the

         10  underlying premise is that there should be a

         11  one-seat ride from the central business district to

         12  the airports in the area.

         13                 Again, you know, I think we go back,

         14  and I will try to shorten this, we go back to the

         15  fact that we haven't costed out a one-seat ride,

         16  literally costed out, saying this is what the entire

         17  pie is and now we have the 1.2 billion piece of that

         18  pie in current dollars.

         19                 And maybe we can't do that, maybe

         20  scientifically we can't do that.

         21                 MR. WARD: We can do that. The MTA is

         22  currently studying that. We are aware that it will

         23  range in the multiples of the billions of dollars

         24  investment.

         25                 But what I need to make clear is that
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          2  having built the Airtrain system, the cost benefit

          3  ratios and the opportunities for connecting that

          4  one-seat ride are more cost effective having built

          5  it than not done it, because fundamentally, the

          6  connections, whether it is the Long Island Railroad

          7  or the MTA are the only connections which will be

          8  available to create a one-seat ride. That is why our

          9  system interconnects with those two networks.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Mr. Chairman,

         11  just indulge me for one more second.

         12                 When you were here last and you came

         13  before the Land Use Committee, I asked about the

         14  ridership estimates and how you arrived at them, the

         15  methodology of your study that supports the

         16  investment supposedly, in theory.

         17                 And I found them to be relatively

         18  weak and there was a statement that you would come

         19  back to us with more details about your methodology.

         20                 Can you tell us how you arrived at

         21  these numbers? These ridership numbers.

         22                 MR. WARD: Sure. I think one of the

         23  things that I should make clear, the methodology for

         24  the justification of the Airtrain project is found

         25  within the federal PFC application requirements. It
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          2  is not a federal transit authority cost benefit

          3  ratio, rather it is an airport service requirement.

          4  Using the cost benefit ratios detailed within the

          5  FAA guidelines, we did a series of detailed

          6  ridership surveys, actually going out and asking

          7  people if the service were available, if this

          8  service were available at this price, would you take

          9  this system? And that detailed ridership survey

         10  taking place over an extended period of time

         11  demonstrated to us at the day of opening we will

         12  have sufficient ridership under FAA guidelines to

         13  approve this project.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: To shorten

         15  this, let me just say, could you provide us with

         16  that portion, very specific portion of your study,

         17  the ridership estimates.

         18                 MR. WARD: The methodology.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: If you have

         20  the profile of the surveyees, the people who were

         21  surveyed.

         22                 Thank you. I will come back later.

         23  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Carrion.
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          2                 Ms. Watkins.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chairman.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You are welcome.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Good

          7  afternoon, guys. Good morning. It seems like

          8  afternoon.

          9                 Let's go back to this one-seat ride

         10  and the fourth car. Some of my colleagues have asked

         11  the questions, some of the questions I had in mind.

         12  But will you do the scenario for us. Someone is

         13  coming from Manhattan to take a trip to London, and

         14  they are coming from Midtown, the way you envision

         15  it, the plan that is set for completion in 2002 or

         16  2003, what does the traveler do?

         17                 MR. WARD: The traveler would arrive

         18  at Penn Station.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Okay.

         20                 MR. WARD: Assuming we are in the

         21  central business district of Manhattan.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Okay.

         23                 MR. WARD: The traveler would arrive

         24  at Penn Station perhaps by public transportation,

         25  walking or cab, would then get on the Long Island
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          2  Railroad system, take, depending on the time, pay

          3  anywhere from $3 to $5 a ticket from, currently from

          4  Penn Station to Jamaica. Our concept is to roll that

          5  price into a single price ticket to take you all the

          6  way out to Kennedy Airport, it is approximately an

          7  18-minute trip from Penn Station to the Jamaica

          8  Station. At that point entering an airport

          9  environment and the Jamaica Station Terminal, if

         10  they were a Long Island Railroad passenger they

         11  would traverse the Jamaica Station Platform, again

         12  the longest trip from a walking perspective is five

         13  minutes. They would then get on the Airtrain

         14  vehicle, which would be there at peak hours, every

         15  two minutes, and then you would have an eight-minute

         16  ride to the terminal of your choice. And that level

         17  of service, that ridership certainty of travel is

         18  fundamentally what air travelers are looking for.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Okay. Now,

         20  continuing the scenario, let's assume that I want to

         21  come from upper Manhattan. I am not near LIRR, what

         22  do I do?

         23                 MR. WARD: Well, for example, if you

         24  were on the A Train in Upper Manhattan, you could

         25  take the A Train all the way down to Howard Beach
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          2  and then interface with the Howard Beach station,

          3  and depending on where you were getting on on the A

          4  Train system, you would take that system to Howard

          5  Beach and then you would have the similar

          6  aviation-like experience --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: And if I am

          8  coming from Bed Stuy or East New York, the same kind

          9  of thing, right?

         10                 MR. WARD: Absolutely.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Suppose I am

         12  coming from Baldwin?

         13                 MR. RUSSELL: That is the Long Island

         14  Railroad in reverse. You would be taking the -- I

         15  can't  remember which branch that is, which takes

         16  you through Rockville Center, directly into Jamaica

         17  Station.

         18                 MR. WARD: And if I may, one of the

         19  things I wanted to emphasize that I didn't is, and

         20  your question is a good one, the level of services

         21  predicated upon the concept of an aviation

         22  experience, and one of the things that we are

         23  specifically working on is, allowing the passenger

         24  to check their bag at the point of destination,

         25  whether it is the Jamaica station, or perhaps even
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          2  at Penn Station.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: But we

          4  recognize of course that if we live in Cambria

          5  Heights or if we live in any place in central

          6  Queens, this is not going to work for us.

          7                 However, let's go back to the persons

          8  who are taking the A Train, even the person that is

          9  taking the Long Island Railroad from 33rd Street.

         10                 I have to take my bags with me on the

         11  subway or on the railroad. When I get to Howard

         12  Beach or Jamaica Station, what happens to the

         13  passengers and the baggage?

         14                 MR. WARD: Our concept is that at

         15  those locations, primarily Jamaica, given our

         16  ridership number, that you would be able to check

         17  your bags through your final destination.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: So, I get off

         19  of whatever carrier brought me there.

         20                 MR. WARD: Correct. Exactly.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: And then I

         22  check my bags and I get on something else, and that

         23  something else is not on the same level?

         24                 MR. WARD: Well, depending, if you

         25  were coming from the subway you are moving at below
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          2  grade obviously and circulating upwards, either by

          3  escalators or elevators. If you are on the Long

          4  Island Railroad, you are moving one level and

          5  traversing across to the AirTrain.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: And I am

          7  carrying my bags.

          8                 MR. WARD: Well, the concept is that

          9  there would be a central location to diminish the

         10  amount of bag carriage, and we are working with the

         11  airlines to determine that optimum location within

         12  the overall terminal.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: And if I am

         14  coming off from London, going back, we have to do

         15  sort of the same thing. And when that concerns me

         16  more, because if I live in New York and I am

         17  traveling out, I kind of know how to manage the

         18  system. If I am coming from Kansas City, London,

         19  Hong Kong, when I get on the rail-link, when I get

         20  off at JFK, 99 chances out of 100, once I get on

         21  that link, I expect, and when I get off, I am going

         22  to be in Midtown Manhattan.

         23                 MR. WARD: Well, I think one of the

         24  things that we think is a key opportunity here is

         25  that for airlines marketing their service into New
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          2  York City, when you leave Frankfurt or when you

          3  leave Buenas Aires, or when you leave Kansas City,

          4  that airline will be marketing to you, when you

          5  check your bag prior to the conclusion of the

          6  one-seat ride, when you check your bags and you

          7  arrive at Kennedy Airport, you will see clearly a

          8  sign and people and the sky caps and the red cap

          9  ambassadors that we have there will direct you to

         10  the Airtrain and they will have marketed the fact

         11  that you will be sitting in the middle of the best

         12  transportation hub in this region and you can pick

         13  up your bag at that location. The airlines will use

         14  this as a market tool.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WATKINS: Okay. Just

         16  let me quickly ask this: Obviously somebody is going

         17  to have to take a subway or a taxi or a something,

         18  so don't even answer me, but why would I not just

         19  get on the carry bus?

         20                 The other thing is, is there a date

         21  certain -- first of all, do you have a commitment

         22  for the money for this one-seat ride? And if you

         23  have the commitment that there will indeed be a

         24  fourth car, what date certain is that commitment?

         25                 I have learned since I have been here
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          2  that the only promises that are real are the ones

          3  where I can follow the money. Do we have money for a

          4  commitment and money built in for that one-seat

          5  ride?

          6                 MR. WARD: The answer is no.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Golden, you

          8  have a brief statement that you wanted to make?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Chairman. Thank you, Chris Ward and the gentleman,

         11  for the excellent presentation that you have done

         12  here today.

         13                 MR. WARD: Thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: And you

         15  pointed out the pros and cons, the realities of the

         16  one-seat ride. You showed the losses and the gains,

         17  economic gain, short and long term, jobs,

         18  businesses, you showed us the equation in New York

         19  and England and how we are number one in the arrival

         20  and departing airlines, and how we plan to move in

         21  the near future and increasing that ridership and

         22  contributing to the future growth of the New York

         23  City transportation system, its airlines systems,

         24  and just a side bar, the hub port that you were

         25  presently working on. You have gone a long way in
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          2  convincing this City Councilman that this is a good

          3  project, not only for Queens, but for the City of

          4  New York and I am looking forward to more testimony,

          5  and thank you. You have done a great job here today.

          6                 MR. WARD: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Miller.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: I have a

          9  couple of questions that I wanted to get to. Just to

         10  return to the line of questions that Council Member

         11  Watkins asked you with regard to the baggage check;

         12  did I understand you to say that when you are coming

         13  from Buenos Aires you would actually check your bags

         14  not to JFK, but actually to Jamaica station so that

         15  you would come off the flight and then you would

         16  proceed to Jamaica station where your bag would have

         17  preceded you; is that correct?

         18                 MR. WARD: Yes. Let me be clear that

         19  there are an enormous number of logistic and

         20  security issues, as you can well imagine. Airports

         21  now are a very sensitive environment. That is our

         22  concept and that is what we are talking to the

         23  aviation industry about.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Obviously that

         25  would require that there would be an entire US
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          2  customs facility in Jamaica Station. So if you are

          3  coming from Buenos Aires, you have to go through

          4  customs.

          5                 MR. WARD: Right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: You have to go

          7  through customs with your bags, so you would

          8  actually have to have, there would be an entire

          9  customs facility in the Jamaica station?

         10                 MR. WARD: As I said, the level of

         11  approval and security to make sure those bags have

         12  met customs requirements is exactly what we are

         13  going for.

         14                 Obviously if you have been to Kennedy

         15  Airport customs environment, you cannot take that

         16  enormous piece and bring it out to Jamaica, but the

         17  concept is to find ways of maintaining that custom

         18  security and provide the customer that level of

         19  service to Jamaica. That is the goal, that is not to

         20  say it is a possibility or a reality today.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: So, the answer

         22  to that is, yes, there would be a -- if this

         23  happens, and you are saying it is going to happen,

         24  that there would be a customs facility in the

         25  Jamaica station. Because you can't do it without a
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          2  customs facility, right?

          3                 MR. RUSSELL: What you would probably

          4  end up doing is you would be coming through the

          5  customs at Kennedy Airport. What you ask is a

          6  question of where would I actually be picking up my

          7  bag, you would be picking up your bag in Jamaica.

          8  There would probably be the requirement that you

          9  make contact with your bags at your customs station.

         10                 What we are trying to do is to work

         11  out a system.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: So you are

         13  saying you would pick up your bag in JFK?

         14                 MR. RUSSELL: That's correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: You would then

         16  go through customs in JFK, you would then let go of

         17  your bag and they would meet you again at Jamaica

         18  Station?

         19                 MR. RUSSELL: What Chris is referring

         20  to is a host of options that can play around getting

         21  you and your bags from your foreign location to the

         22  Jamaica station. That is what it is that we are

         23  referring to.

         24                 There are some things that have to be

         25  done in terms of making sure that the required
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          2  customs interactions take place. As to how that

          3  plays, that is a subject of --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: So, what you

          5  are saying then is really you wouldn't have to make

          6  the decision when you arrive at the airport in

          7  Buenos Aires, whether you are checking your bag to

          8  JFK or Jamaica Station, you make the decision after

          9  going through customs in JFK that now, well, you

         10  know what, I am going to take the Airport Link so

         11  here is my bag and I will see it at Jamaica Station.

         12                 MR. RUSSELL: Those are options.

         13  That's correct.

         14                 What we are saying is you would have,

         15  you could potentially have the opportunity to do

         16  that, and in Buenos Aires, make your decisions when

         17  you are in flight, you have a host of options in

         18  terms of how to get yourself --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Okay. But I

         20  don't understand who you possibly can have the

         21  option to see you bag in Jamaica Station if you are

         22  not going to have a custom facility in Jamaica

         23  Station because you can't go through US customs

         24  without your bags. You have to have your bags.

         25  Otherwise you say, there is nothing in my bag, don't
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          2  worry about it, I will go through customs here and I

          3  will see you later, that is just not how the customs

          4  works.

          5                 MR. WARD: I apologize if I was

          6  misleading in terms of the impression that you were

          7  able to simply pick it up at Jamaica.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Right.

          9                 MR. WARD: Clearly there is a

         10  requirement for customs and security which need to

         11  be maintained through the system.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Right. There

         13  is no apology necessary --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Miller is our

         15  customs expert.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Yes. I am

         17  going to let that go.

         18                 The staff here did a report they

         19  worked very hard on and I compliment them on it and

         20  one of the things they mentioned is there is

         21  currently, over the next five years there is the

         22  Port Authority's Capital Plan for the LaGuardia and

         23  for JFK is about a billion dollars, and you are

         24  saying that one of the good things about this is

         25  that the PFC funds will allow us to not endanger
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          2  that capital budget for JFK and for LaGuardia at

          3  all, right?

          4                 MR. WARD: Right.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Is that

          6  correct, a billion dollars over the next five years

          7  for LaGuardia and JFK? What is the capital budget in

          8  the five-year plan for LaGuardia and for JFK? What

          9  is the amount for JFK?

         10                 MR. WARD: Off the top of my head, I

         11  think JFK, for Port Authority funding and financing

         12  alone is approximately $3 billion to $4 billion of

         13  Port Authority resources leveraging approximately $3

         14  billion to $4 billion of private money.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Over the next

         16  five years?

         17                 MR. WARD: The next five to seven

         18  years, correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Okay.

         20                 So, here is the question for you: One

         21  of the objections that, if I understand it, it has

         22  been raised by some transportation advocates and by

         23  some residents who are objecting to this, and I am

         24  speaking now purely of the Van Wyck part, because I

         25  think that generally speaking everybody is in
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          2  agreement that the 900 million or so that is for the

          3  Howard Beach and on JFK property is excellent.

          4                 So, to talk just to the Van Wyck, one

          5  of the objections that has been raised is that the

          6  design of it has been constrained by the necessity

          7  of using the PFC fund.

          8                 For example, you can't have a stop

          9  half way along -- for local residents along the Van

         10  Wyck, because if you did it wouldn't be purely

         11  airport focused, and apparently, from what I

         12  understand, some of the stub ending at Jamaica

         13  Station is also necessary in order to be able to

         14  access the PFC funds.

         15                 My question to you would be, is that

         16  the case? And if it is the case, why wouldn't it

         17  make sense then to do the best possible design to

         18  integrate as best as possible with all of the other

         19  existing transportation systems, and then shift 600

         20  -- so you would shift 600 million out of the three

         21  to four billion that you are talking about from a

         22  capital budget for the Port Authority for JFK, shift

         23  it out, and use the passenger facility funds for 600

         24  million on site?

         25                 Do you see what I am saying?
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          2                 MR. WARD: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: I said that

          4  poorly.

          5                 MR. WARD: But I see what you are

          6  saying.

          7                 I think the question you have to ask

          8  yourself is, in terms of the connection to the

          9  regional transportation system, where is that

         10  optimum location, which is, we believe, the Jamaica

         11  facility, the eligibility of federal funds exactly

         12  like you had said would had not been eligible if

         13  there had been an intervening stop at that location.

         14  The question becomes from a cost benefit

         15  perspective, is that intervening station worth it to

         16  forego the $1.2 billion that the federal government

         17  provides and that the transportation needs for that

         18  location in terms of access to Kennedy Airport,

         19  since you are within the Jamaica station and the

         20  geography of Kennedy Airport, you are essentially

         21  there, the likelihood of that being a positive cost

         22  benefit ratio to forego the 1.2 million dollars was

         23  from our determination an inefficient use of our

         24  access to federal funds.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Okay, maybe I

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            93

          1  FINANCE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  said it too poorly.

          3                 I would love to get an answer to this

          4  question, let me try to rephrase it again.

          5                 I am not sure that I understand that

          6  to be the alternatives. What I am saying here is,

          7  you have 1.2 billion in federal funds, you have

          8  estimated the part on the airport grounds, the link

          9  around the airport and the link at Howard Beach at

         10  being 900 million and then you have got the Van

         11  Wyck, as I understand it, at 600 million; is that

         12  correct?

         13                 MR. WARD: Right.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: So we are not

         15  talking about imperiling 1.2 billion, we are talking

         16  about 600 million here that is the Van Wyck portion,

         17  300 of it is already Port Authority funds, right?

         18  And 300 of it is through the passenger facility;

         19  isn't that correct?

         20                 MR. WARD: I didn't follow the

         21  numbers. I don't know where you came up with the 300

         22  --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: The passenger

         24  facility funds are equal to 1.2 billion we are

         25  talking about here.
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          2                 MR. WARD: Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: And the total

          4  cost of this entire project is 1.5 billion, and the

          5  Port Authority has committed to making up the

          6  difference between the 1.2 and the 1.5, right?

          7                 MR. WARD: Correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: So we are

          9  really talking about, in terms of federal funds, to

         10  go towards the Van Wyck extension, it is really only

         11  300 million.

         12                 So what I am asking is, because there

         13  is no question that passenger facility funds can go

         14  to the link that is on the airport grounds and to

         15  the Howard Beach extension, so if we are talking

         16  about the Van Wyck, what I am asking you is, if

         17  there are designed -- if we are constrained in the

         18  design of the Van Wyck extension in terms of having

         19  it be -- I am not saying don't choose Jamaica as

         20  your end goal, but I am saying from my

         21  understanding, and I am happy to be disabused of

         22  this notion, part of the reasons that there are

         23  challenges to the one-seat ride down the road is

         24  that it has to be a stub ending in Jamaica and that

         25  you can't have, for example, a stop half-way along
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          2  for the local residents because it has to be purely

          3  airport and some of these other things; why wouldn't

          4  you then take 300 million out of the capital budget

          5  that you are saying is three to four billion for the

          6  Port Authority and transfer it? So that the

          7  passenger facility funds could go to pay for $300

          8  million worth of improvements that the Port

          9  Authority is already contemplating on at JFK.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: If I may, Mr.

         11  Miller, effectively aren't you asking as to whether

         12  or not, what are the alternatives, if you didn't go,

         13  or you didn't do that part of the program, what

         14  would you otherwise use the money for?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: No. What I am

         16  saying is that we have had testimony that the design

         17  of the system is constrained by the ability of

         18  passenger facility funds to only go to a certain

         19  type of system, and what I am asking is, if that is

         20  the case and that we are constrained by these

         21  designs, and I think it is always a good thing not

         22  to be constrained by certain of these sorts of

         23  semi-artificial notions, why wouldn't you just use

         24  the money for the passenger facility fund to finance

         25  something that the Port Authority is already going
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          2  to finance, and then have a less constrained design

          3  criteria for the Van Wyck extension.

          4                 MR. WARD: When we put together our

          5  application, our application was seeking to do two

          6  things. It was first to use Port Authority

          7  resources, the local match, to leverage the largest

          8  amount of PFC funding available.

          9                 And in putting that application

         10  together the key questions were, will the ridership

         11  numbers for PFC application, one, be sufficient?

         12  Will it be connecting into the appropriate systems,

         13  and that opening up the envelope our Port Authority

         14  resources for other connections, fundamentally

         15  jeopardized our opportunity to access the 1.2

         16  billion dollars.

         17                 And the concept is that following

         18  that system is where the other system improvements

         19  take placed, but that it was in our judgment in

         20  working with the FAA, that the application was, in

         21  its entirety, allowed us to leverage the 1.2, and

         22  while it is easy to talk about flipping a dollar

         23  here and moving a dollar there, the overall project

         24  needed to proceed in its entirety in order to be

         25  eligible for that 1.2 billion. And that if there had
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          2  been further modifications, or as I think you are

          3  indicating, some type of connections, it would have

          4  been done at no risk. It would have been done at a

          5  risk and we would not have been eligible for the

          6  full 1.2 funding.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: So you are

          8  saying if you didn't get --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Miller,

         10  please end the questions.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Okay.

         12                 So, you are saying if you didn't get

         13  the Van Wyck extension, then you can't have any

         14  money at all from the passenger facility?

         15                 MR. WARD: No, what I am saying is, is

         16  that to ensure that we would have the Jamaica

         17  Station because that is fundamentally the platform

         18  for the one-seat ride and this region will never

         19  have it, if we didn't access that we would not have

         20  been eligible for PFC funding.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right, thank

         22  you, sir.

         23                 Mr. White.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Thank you very

         25  much, Mr. Chair.
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          2                 Thank you, gentlemen. For purposes of

          3  this meeting, I would like to let my colleagues know

          4  that the system out of the airport is running

          5  through the heart of my district, which is the Van

          6  Wyck Expressway. And I have been at many meetings,

          7  and I want to recognize concerned citizens from the

          8  district who are in the audience who are here to let

          9  their voices and sentiments be known. So, I want to

         10  recognize your presence for the record.

         11                 We have had a series of meetings in

         12  the community, as you have demonstrated on the

         13  screen. One of the concerns, and, well, many of the

         14  concerns and then we will put it on the record at

         15  this joint hearing, is:

         16                 Number one, the community's concerns

         17  about medical service delivery.

         18                 Access to transportation to and from

         19  work.

         20                 Three, transportation, coming in and

         21  out of the community, as alternatives to using the

         22  Van Wyck Expressway, and the home-owners along the

         23  route of the proposed AirLink, in the presentation

         24  you said that those issues were addressed and

         25  concluded and plus you had meetings with individuals
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          2  who lived along the impact area; could you be a

          3  little more specific on that?

          4                 MR. WARD: Sure.

          5                 Let me turn this over to Cruz

          6  Russell, who is really responsible for putting that

          7  key part of the project together.

          8                 MR. RUSSELL: Councilman, you are

          9  making reference to what I think were some of the

         10  critical points that came out of the community board

         11  discussion, and that was in terms of medical

         12  services and just general access to the community,

         13  whether or not the community would remain, would

         14  have the quality of service, or the level of quality

         15  that is associated with services at present.

         16                 What we went through is a host of

         17  discussions with all of the participants who were

         18  required to provide those services, in particular

         19  Jamaica Hospital, who worked out a plan with us that

         20  was designed to make sure that they were able to

         21  maintain the level of service associated with the

         22  services they provide at present.

         23                 Additionally, we went through a

         24  discussion with the DOTs, both State and Local DOT,

         25  to make sure that in terms of a traffic management
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          2  plan that we were putting in place a system that

          3  would make it so that in terms of what we consider

          4  to be diversion that would take place coming off of

          5  the Van Wyck at some periods, that the corridor

          6  itself would be able to manage that traffic and that

          7  there would not be an overflow in terms of traffic

          8  that is within the community.

          9                 What we have come up is a plan, and I

         10  think that the other thing that was sort of critical

         11  is that the hospital, as well as the DOT, are

         12  required actually to sign onto our plan to make sure

         13  we have something that is credible in terms of being

         14  able to provide service.

         15                 The other issue that you referenced

         16  is the point of whether or not in the course of

         17  engaging local residents we have had the opportunity

         18  to actually take into account their concerns

         19  regarding anything that has to do with property

         20  issues and with critical things that can happen in

         21  the course of construction.

         22                 That is an ongoing discussion that is

         23  taking place. What we have been able to establish is

         24  that in terms of a basic insurance management

         25  program, and something that deals with what I would
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          2  characterize as a hair trigger system, to deal with

          3  any kind of problems that could occur that are

          4  construction-related, that we have a management

          5  system in place to deal with that.

          6                 So, in effect what I think that you

          7  have is assurances around that this is not just the

          8  fact that the Port Authority comes to the table and

          9  says to you that we have put a plan in place, but

         10  that the people who are responsible for actually

         11  providing the service are going to be signing onto

         12  that program and we will also be comfortable with

         13  the fact that we have a plan that works.

         14                 MR. WARD: If I may add to that, I

         15  think one of the key things that we recognized at

         16  the outset was an organization the size and breath

         17  of the Port Authority as well as a project of this

         18  size, it needed to have a face in the community,

         19  that is why in Bob Davidson's slides you have seen

         20  literally a series in chronology meetings, meeting

         21  with the very people who live adjacent to the Van

         22  Wyck in small settings to discuss exactly how this

         23  project will go forward, as Cruz said, to address

         24  the insurance issue, to address the transportation

         25  issues, and to address the health and safety issue.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay. Now, the

          3  projected potential for job creation is that the

          4  Air-Link will create 4,150 construction jobs, at an

          5  estimated cost of $580 million in wages. How is this

          6  going to impact in the area? I am going to try to

          7  put these questions together in terms of the

          8  economic benefit.

          9                 There is a report that the Economic

         10  Development Committee and the Finance Committee put

         11  together, and in that report it states the problems

         12  Jamaica is experiencing in attracting tenants to

         13  office space and markets are complex and will not be

         14  easily resolved, and that people are leaving the

         15  Jamaica area but coming back, however, the private

         16  sector decision-makers continue to have reservations

         17  about the area and while they are no longer

         18  divesting, they are not reinvesting in the area

         19  significantly.

         20                 How would that Jamaica Airtrain

         21  station impact on that as well?

         22                 MR. WARD: Sure. Let me dispel one

         23  notion here that Jamaica is in a period of decline.

         24  I think as Cruz was laying out, you have seen a

         25  series of major investment and location decisions in
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          2  terms of the FAA, the FDA, the Queens Library that

          3  we are in fact beginning to see the resurgence of

          4  Jamaica and in fact the whole concept of the

          5  Airtrain project is to take advantage of that

          6  resurgence and create Jamaica as another downtown.

          7                 Fundamentally the City of New York

          8  developed itself based on its transportation

          9  linkages to bring people to work or take people

         10  home. What this system ends up doing is it is

         11  interfacing with this tremendous transportation hub

         12  at Jamaica Station, and having people move in and

         13  out of that system you are going to have clearly

         14  economic development incentives for private

         15  investment to attract whether it is a hotel, whether

         16  it is retail, whether it is office space and a

         17  support service mode.  The type of economy that the

         18  City of New York has today is fundamentally driven

         19  by our ability to provide ease of transit access to

         20  business centers. That is fundamentally what the

         21  Airtrain system will do for Jamaica center.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay, so the

         23  commitments on those four points that were in the

         24  slide presentation, I believe one was the

         25  reconstruction of Rockaway Boulevard.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            104

          1  FINANCE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2                 MR. WARD: That's correct.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: The other one

          4  was a project with York College dealing with

          5  aviation?

          6                 MR. WARD: Correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: And there are

          8  some incentives in that area, I believe, for off

          9  airport, that was passed when the airport was built

         10  that a number of community groups are not taking

         11  advantage of and that is some tariffs or return of

         12  merchandise or broken merchandise, duty stations and

         13  things like that, that have never actually come out

         14  into the community.

         15                 MR. WARD: Exactly.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: They stayed on

         17  the airport.

         18                 MR. WARD: That's exactly it. What the

         19  Airtrain does is pull that economic activity out of

         20  Kennedy Airport, bring it into Jamaica Center.

         21                 Moreover, as you mentioned, the Port

         22  Authority is looking now that Kennedy Airport should

         23  function within the entire part of Southeast Queens

         24  so the notion of a trade zone extending into Jamaica

         25  is also part of the plan.
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          2                 But further, I think one of the

          3  things in hearing from the community board, is

          4  Rockaway Boulevard has not benefitted from that type

          5  of activity pulling, exactly like you said, the

          6  support services that the airport requires.

          7                 Our concept is to work with local

          8  elected officials and work with local community

          9  business leaders and community leaders to develop

         10  the Rockaway Boulevard as the next level of Kennedy

         11  Airport as you leave the actual airport today.

         12                 That, we believe, is the purpose of

         13  transportation facilities, whether it is Kennedy,

         14  whether it is Jamaica, is to bring people into a

         15  transportation environment that creates jobs.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: That is your

         17  commitment?

         18                 MR. WARD: That is our commitment.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay, one other

         20  thing. Those 4,000 --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Final question,

         22  Mr. White, please?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Yes.

         24                 Those 4,150 construction jobs, who is

         25  the GC and how many people of the community are
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          2  going to be part of that job?

          3                 MR. WARD: This is Tony Crociola, who

          4  is the Project Manager.

          5                 The GC for the Airtrain component,

          6  not the Jamaica Station, which we will be bidding

          7  separately in looking for the type of community's

          8  interaction with that project, the GC is Slattery

          9  Skansca.

         10                 One of the things that we established

         11  at the outset was a liaison with Southeast Queens, a

         12  direct contact, people who are meeting daily for

         13  both contracts associated with the project or

         14  employment opportunities.

         15                 We have hosted a series of job fairs,

         16  we have hosted a series of workshops with local

         17  businesses in order to provide them with the

         18  necessary expertise to apply for these types of

         19  projects. We have worked directly with the Slattery

         20  Skansca to identify those specific contracts within

         21  their overall program, which is available for work

         22  in Southeast Queens contracting communities.

         23                 Mike Masiah, who is here as well, has

         24  been working directly with a series of economic

         25  development offices and Slattery Skansca to ensure
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          2  that the maximum amount of work coming out of this

          3  1.5 billion flows back into Southeast Queens. And I

          4  think we have had, as you may know, a series of key

          5  initial successes in that operation.

          6                 I must emphasize that it is ongoing

          7  and one of the commitments we made to the community

          8  board is that a task force from each one is

          9  established to continue to monitor that job creation

         10  and contract opportunity throughout the three to

         11  five years of the construction of this project.

         12                 The York College concept is to not

         13  let the job opportunities languish from a

         14  construction thing, but rather to build a permanent

         15  linkage to the community in terms of job training

         16  and curriculum development of York College.

         17                 So, as Cruz Russell was mentioning,

         18  those local residents who are looking for training

         19  to access a career in the aviation world will have

         20  the necessary academic credentials in order to get

         21  that job.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Well, one of

         23  the things that I would look forward to doing, Mr.

         24  Chair, in the interest of time, I would like to have

         25  a meeting with the significant persons, with

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            108

          1  FINANCE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  Slattery as well as the Port, to take a look at how

          3  far you have gone in terms of identifying those

          4  companies or individuals in the community that are

          5  going to benefit from the 4,150 jobs.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I would so

          7  encourage that meeting, by all means.

          8                 MR. WARD: We would be delighted, and

          9  I think one of the messages that we have tried to

         10  send throughout this process, it is fundamentally

         11  representatives, such as yourself, Councilman, who

         12  are the linkage between the Slattery Skansca team

         13  and job opportunities back into Southeast Queens,

         14  and it is officers such as yourself who can best

         15  facilitate that dialogue.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Okay. Thank you

         17  very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, sir.

         19                 Mr. McCaffrey.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Let me just

         21  say to my colleague, I have been here before and I

         22  have heard the doubletalk of the Port Authority and

         23  I hear it again.

         24                 I had to go to the Hunt's Point

         25  issue, and once again I hear the same vagueness.
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          2                 Let me ask the question, tell me

          3  right now, how many jobs from the 4,100 construction

          4  are guaranteed for the community? How many exactly?

          5                 MR. RUSSELL: There is no specific

          6  guarantee --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: There is no

          8  guarantee, okay. Fine. So say that. You can't

          9  guarantee a single job right now, can you?

         10                 MR. RUSSELL: I didn't say that

         11  either.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Can you

         13  guarantee a single job?

         14                 MR. RUSSELL: You asked whether there

         15  was a guarantee?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Right.

         17                 MR. RUSSELL: And the issue of whether

         18  or not there is a guarantee for the community, there

         19  is no specific guarantee.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Okay, fine.

         21                 MR. RUSSELL: The converse of that, in

         22  terms of whether local residents will receive jobs

         23  is something that we are actively working on.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: How many

         25  local residents are going to receive jobs?
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          2                 MR. RUSSELL: We are working

          3  vigorously --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: I know. I

          5  heard this when we went to the Hunter's Point

          6  project, and the same gobbly-gook then, the exact

          7  same words, it didn't turn out to be true.

          8                 Right now as you come before folks,

          9  what you are dangling is these baubles out there,

         10  very shimmery, glittery items out there, but when

         11  substance comes down to it, you can't guarantee a

         12  single thing.

         13                 Let me ask you, if for example this

         14  proposal were not to move forward, would the Port

         15  Authority continue in terms of the York proposal?

         16                 MR. WARD: In terms of the?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: York

         18  College proposal?

         19                 MR. RUSSELL: We have made a

         20  commitment to York College.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Okay, so no

         22  matter what, that will move forward. So that is not

         23  even part of this package anymore. Whatever happens,

         24  that is not going to be jeopardized. No one should

         25  be concerned about that, okay.
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          2                 Gentlemen, let me ask you, in terms

          3  of the policies that my colleague, Mr. Miller, was

          4  raising in terms of customs, at the moment what is

          5  the specific, in place today, as we speak, concept

          6  in terms of baggage? Are you going to be able to in

          7  terms of that issue of customs be able to check in

          8  bags at Kennedy only, or can it be at Jamaica as of

          9  today?

         10                 I know you have a number of options

         11  but I am asking as of today what are the set of

         12  circumstances.

         13                 MR. RUSSELL: As of today there is not

         14  in placer a system to address the baggage issues

         15  that have been raised by you and the Council member.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Okay.

         17                 Now, gentlemen, let me ask you in

         18  terms of the Economic Development issue, the issue

         19  in terms of the 4,100 jobs, that would come from any

         20  construction of a heavy duty nature, would it not?

         21                 MR. RUSSELL: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Okay.

         23                 So, we are spending money, so again,

         24  in terms of development of construction jobs, if we

         25  were to spend this on airport entirely, in terms of
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          2  the type of construction, the number of jobs is

          3  likely to be either the same or very close to the

          4  same?

          5                 MR. WARD: I think the answer to that

          6  is, I appreciate the question, the level of

          7  construction that the Port Authority is proposing at

          8  Kennedy Airport, the $4 billion that the Port

          9  Authority is proposing, as well as private

         10  investment, will in fact create the same level of

         11  job opportunities. I think from the Port Authority's

         12  perspective, that absent the Airtrain project, not

         13  only will we not have a transportation solution to

         14  the airport, but we won't have created those

         15  additional 4,100 jobs.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Now, let me

         17  ask you, so if we were to take the money from the

         18  fund generated by the passengers, what would we do

         19  with those dollars?

         20                 MR. WARD: Pardon me?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: What would

         22  we do with those dollars?

         23                 MR. WARD: Well, PFC funding is

         24  available for a variety of --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: So, would
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          2  you do anything with those dollars, other than the

          3  Port Authority money itself that you say is going to

          4  go into the airport?

          5                 MR. WARD: Again, I guess I did not

          6  make clear, the concept of investment is not

          7  either/or. The concept of investment is to continue

          8  to lever additional dollars creating additional

          9  infrastructure and creating additional jobs, absent

         10  a particular example of what we might be spending

         11  PFC money on, the policy of the Port Authority is

         12  for this region's benefit, leverage the maximal

         13  amount of federal dollars available for airport

         14  improvement projects.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: I

         16  understand that. But my question for you is on the

         17  construction, can those dollars be spent for

         18  construction projects?

         19                 MR. WARD: Correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Okay, so

         21  they could be spent for that. It is not as if that

         22  money would then not be used, could not be used?

         23                 MR. WARD: We have used PFC funds for

         24  Newark, LaGuardia, Kennedy for other

         25  non-Airtrain-related projects.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Gentlemen,

          3  in your analysis you indicate that in essence, of

          4  the travelers who would come to Jamaica, and I think

          5  this is very important because many of us look at

          6  this from an economic development point of view, as

          7  being really the only major benefit potential, in

          8  your own analysis it indicates that of the 4,400

          9  individuals, only nine people would walk to and from

         10  the Jamaica train station to nearby destinations.

         11                 MR. WARD: Again, the Port Authority

         12  is struck by your question, inasmuch as much of

         13  today has been spent discussing how do people get to

         14  Kennedy Airport in a quick, efficient manner. The

         15  concept of Airtrain is to get them from whatever

         16  destination, Lower Manhattan, Brooklyn, Queens or

         17  Penn Station, to Kennedy in a timely fashion.

         18                 If there is a ridership, or if there

         19  is a discretionary travel time opportunity for that

         20  person to walk to a local retail establishment, that

         21  is an additional benefit to us all, and that if

         22  there is a local community resident who is going to

         23  Kennedy Airport who can walk to the Jamaica station,

         24  that is an additional --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: No, no.
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          2  Your analysis does not talk about walk to. It is in

          3  the process of coming from Manhattan and going to

          4  Kennedy, that nine individuals would end up going

          5  into the rest of the Jamaica area.

          6                 MR. WARD: Right. This is why your

          7  question is a good one, and most of today's

          8  discussion is how do you get people from a central

          9  business district, or a location to Kennedy Airport

         10  in the most seemless fashion.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Right. So,

         12  we would then say that the immediate impact of this

         13  to local, small commercial activities in and around

         14  the Jamaica area would be negligible?

         15                 MR. WARD: No, I would not at all. I

         16  would think if you look at --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Well, of

         18  the nine individuals, what are they going to come

         19  and bring treasury bills with them that they are

         20  going to give to merchants?

         21                 MR. WARD: If they were so inclined.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: I would

         23  love them. I would like them by name. I will meet

         24  them at Penn Station first before they head out.

         25                 MR. WARD: I think if you look at the
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          2  design of the Jamaica Station and if you look at

          3  Sutphin Boulevard and you look at the landscape and

          4  streetscape that is currently around Jamaica

          5  Station, the complete rehabilitation and the ease of

          6  transfer and the use of that facility is

          7  fundamentally what transportation projects have done

          8  for the City throughout --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: But,

         10  gentlemen, your own analysis says that nine of those

         11  4,400 are going to shop locally in the area.

         12                 MR. WARD: On the other hand, the

         13  development of the Jamaica Station, in terms of that

         14  location, will attract retail investment, will

         15  attract private investment and the community, as all

         16  transportation projects, will have benefitted from

         17  that state-of-the-art aviation like facility.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: But,

         19  gentlemen, let me ask you now, is there anything

         20  that prevents any of the scenarios that Council

         21  Member Watkins, in a very practical manner,

         22  presented to you, to really discourage the business

         23  traveler?

         24                 Or someone who is like, for example,

         25  let's say they have got a 5:30 flight from JFK to
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          2  San Francisco on American Airlines. They have two

          3  pieces of luggage. They are now leaving from 72nd

          4  Street and East End Avenue, okay? Tell us the level

          5  of convenience for those?

          6                 Because Council Member Watkins raises

          7  a very valid point here. Tell us how convenient that

          8  is for those folks.

          9                 MR. WARD: Well, let me start by

         10  saying that you raise a good question.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: I know

         12  these are good questions. You are not raising any

         13  good answers.

         14                 MR. WARD: The business traveler,

         15  which is carrying two bags, to Kennedy Airport,

         16  could access either Penn Station or access --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: All right.

         18  So, he or she takes a subway or a taxi to Penn

         19  Station from that location, or the subway.

         20                 MR. WARD: Or the E train.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Right. The

         22  E Train is not on the East Side, it is 72nd and --

         23  the E Train is at 72nd and York Avenue?

         24                 MR. RUSSELL: The E Train would

         25  connect by IRT at 52nd Street, in which case that
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          2  traveler --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Okay, so

          4  no, okay let's take this a few steps. I have walked

          5  out of my apartment at that location, tell me what I

          6  am doing.

          7                 MR. WARD: You are taking a cab to the

          8  connection to the E Train, or if you so choose you

          9  go into Long Island Railroad.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Okay. So,

         11  now I have taken one step. Now I get to the Long

         12  Island Railroad. At rush hour now, the Long Island

         13  Railroad --

         14                 MR. WARD: You are there in 18

         15  minutes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: With all of

         17  those folks who are running to Long Island --

         18                 MR. WARD: You are there in 18

         19  minutes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: The folks

         21  in the construction industry, by the way, those

         22  jobs. They are all out there by the way.

         23                 But anyway, now we end up getting

         24  onto the Long Island Railroad at rushhour.

         25                 MR. RUSSELL: Right. You are at
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          2  Jamaica Station in 18 minutes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Right, in

          4  rushhour.

          5                 MR. RUSSELL: With your two bags.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Okay, now I

          7  get to the connection at Jamaica, which in and of

          8  itself is a crowded facility, although the

          9  configuration obviously it would work out where you

         10  would have dedicated locations directly into the

         11  connections, I would assume.

         12                 MR. WARD: Correct. You have now

         13  entered an aviation-like environment, you are now

         14  checking your bag, you are now stepping into a

         15  customized car with a baggage --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Right, I

         17  understand.

         18                 MR. WARD: -- If you so decide, or

         19  check, and you are then at your terminal --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Tell me how

         21  that is a convenient and attractive concept in terms

         22  of the travel.

         23                 MR. WARD: Okay, this is fundamentally

         24  the issue, when people talk about a one-seat ride

         25  and ease of transfer.
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          2                 New York City is a multi-dimensional

          3  city which has transportation needs throughout the

          4  five boroughs. You can leave from central Manhattan,

          5  you can leave from lower Manhattan, you can leave

          6  from Brooklyn, Queens, you can leave from Long

          7  Island. The point of the Airtrain system is to

          8  interconnect to the transportation linkages which

          9  exist today and provide the fastest, most economical

         10  way to get to the airport.

         11                 Unless you happen to live right next

         12  to Penn Station, which, you know, a very small

         13  percentage of this entire City does, you never have

         14  what you are alluding to, some magical one-seat

         15  ride.

         16                 A one-seat ride is fundamentally a

         17  transportation solution which will always require,

         18  and it is the same in London, it is the same in

         19  Chicago. Unless you are born next to that station

         20  you will face the transportation linkages to take

         21  you to that connection. That is why when we looked

         22  at designing the system, we sought to maximize for

         23  all of the City and Long Island, those connections

         24  which provide --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: And that is

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            121

          1  FINANCE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  why you have 4,400 individuals, a ride that is

          3  probably about $20 plus in this system.

          4                 MR. WARD: Going back to Councilman

          5  Gifford Miller's question, we conducted a detailed

          6  user survey in terms of on day one would you be

          7  willing to take this system, and that level of

          8  ridership will establish this system as the premiere

          9  airport access system in this country from day one.

         10                 And I think one of the things, when

         11  people talked about whether --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: What does

         13  that mean? What does the premiere access mean?

         14                 MR. WARD: The level of ridership and

         15  the level of service.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: And do you

         17  dispute the 4,400 number?

         18                 MR. WARD: No.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Okay.

         20                 So, that is the best that these

         21  systems can offer, with the amount of money that is

         22  going to be spent here?

         23                 MR. WARD: I think that when you look

         24  at the amount of ridership and the on-airport

         25  circulator and you are ignoring --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: I have no

          3  problem with that whatsoever. None whatsoever.

          4                 MR. WARD: -- The level which allows

          5  Kennedy Airport to realize its full level of

          6  ridership on day one will be realized.

          7                 And I think as transportation

          8  projects in this City have demonstrated before, when

          9  people talk about will they actually take it, what

         10  you end up finding out as we did at Newark Airport,

         11  we forecasted that the Newark Monorail servicing

         12  Newark Airport would be at capacity in approximately

         13  five years. Within one year that system had reached

         14  capacity.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Gentlemen,

         16  let me just ask one last question. Why should the

         17  people in Southeast Queens believe the type of

         18  commitments that the Port Authority makes now, which

         19  the folks in Western Queens having heard realized

         20  never came to pass?

         21                 MR. WARD: I think that the community

         22  in Southeast Queens has seen the Port Authority

         23  consistently in their neighborhood, making

         24  commitments and delivering on those commitments.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: All I can
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          2  say to the folks is be aware of the experience,

          3  because from the west it did not go well, and I can

          4  only hope that the Southeast is better.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, Mr.

          7  McCaffrey.

          8                 Ms. Clarke.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Chairman.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You are welcome,

         12  Ms. Clarke.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I would just

         14  like to say that Brooklyn is joined to its hips by

         15  Queens and so I want to get my questions in here.

         16                 From the presentation you made I saw

         17  some of the economic, as well as what I would

         18  consider some of the social and probably the

         19  environmental questions that the community would

         20  have addressed.

         21                 I would like to get some more details

         22  on how you have interfaced with the community

         23  itself. When I look at the residents of the area who

         24  are sitting here, many of whom probably own their

         25  homes across the expressway, many of whom are
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          2  probably retired now and probably can't even think

          3  of moving anymore, I would just like to find out how

          4  have you addressed their concerns, number one, both

          5  for the social impact that it may have on them, the

          6  environmental impact that this project may have on

          7  them, so that I get a sense of where you are going

          8  with these persons who I see sitting here, none of

          9  whom I know, but can well understand their concerns.

         10                 MR. WARD: Sure. Let me start and then

         11  I will ask Cruz to respond in more detail.

         12                 I think emblematic of the Port

         13  Authority's approach to this project was recognizing

         14  that a large scale project, such as the Van Wyck

         15  Expressway, would, in fact, have community impacts

         16  and would need to be addressed. And for that reason

         17  we have hosted a series of small community meetings

         18  with homeowners who live adjacent to the Van Wyck to

         19  talk perhaps most importantly about a seemless

         20  insurance program, so should there be, and we don't

         21  believe there would be, any impacts of this

         22  construction on their homes, that that repair and

         23  that rehabilitation takes place without impact on

         24  them locally. That is our approach in terms of being

         25  in the community and talking to them directly in
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          2  terms of how the project moves forward, but it takes

          3  place within a much larger context that I would ask

          4  Cruz Russell to respond to.

          5                 MR. RUSSELL: Councilwoman, what we

          6  really have been trying to do is to put in place a

          7  program that would at the very least make it so

          8  those assets which I referred to earlier in the

          9  course of my presentation, that we do not negatively

         10  impact the community.

         11                 The one thing that we heard from

         12  local residents was that we needed to be acutely

         13  mindful of the fact that most of their equity and

         14  what it was that they wanted to pass on to their

         15  children, was based upon homeowner equity.

         16                 We took a look at ways in which we

         17  would be able to put, as Chris has referred to,

         18  programs in place that would provide them with

         19  maximum security during the course of construction,

         20  but then additionally we tried to take a look at in

         21  what ways we could actually enhance that local

         22  community during the course of our presence.

         23                 One thing that is very important to

         24  note, particularly as far as the environmental issue

         25  is concerned, when we are discussing and touting
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          2  those elements that have to do with mass

          3  transportation, they are in tended to make it so

          4  that impacts that would play around the Van Wyck,

          5  which are obviously of negative import, mean that

          6  the issues of air pollution, and issues that play

          7  around environmental issues within the community,

          8  that we would be actually affirmatively impacting

          9  the community over the long term.

         10                 By putting mass transit in, we are

         11  taking cars off of the road. By taking cars off the

         12  road, we are taking particulates out of the air, and

         13  we are therefore creating a better environment.

         14                 We also tried to take a look at ways

         15  in which we would be more effective in making sure

         16  that during the course of construction and what it

         17  is that we left, there would actually be an enhanced

         18  community environment.

         19                 That speaks to putting boulevard

         20  lamps up along the Van Wyck corridor, additionally

         21  making sure that everything that has to do with

         22  improvements speaks to not just those elements that

         23  are on the roadway itself, but impact the local

         24  residents who are on the other side of the street.

         25                 We also, in the course of those
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          2  discussions, became acutely clear that residents not

          3  just on the Van Wyck itself, but blocks in in the

          4  interior from that road, felt as if they would be

          5  impacted by those kind of things that play during

          6  the course of construction.

          7                 That is why we have been engaging the

          8  community throughout the course of the discussion in

          9  ways in which we can do a more effective way of

         10  dealing with traffic issues, and hopefully putting

         11  in place a more effective management program.

         12                 The other thing that I want to refer

         13  to is, when we talk about that capacity building

         14  piece that plays around economic development, that

         15  is designed to be a community empowerment mechanism,

         16  that will in effect make it so that both businesses,

         17  individuals and the children of those communities,

         18  in terms of the way in which the educational

         19  institutions relate to local residents, that all of

         20  those elements come into play in some kind of

         21  coherent form for Southeast Queens and for the City

         22  of New York itself.

         23                 I will say one thing, because I think

         24  this is important to note. In the course of my

         25  interactions, and I think that as Chris has said, I
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          2  think that we have been vigilant as much as the

          3  public entity can be when it comes to going at it in

          4  the community and talking, one thing that we are

          5  really impressed by is that there are multitudes of

          6  people who have been informed about the projects and

          7  have concerns. We have done our best in terms of

          8  interacting but I believe there is more to be done.

          9  We haven't talked to all key parties, and in certain

         10  ways there is more to be discussed in terms of the

         11  ways we can make the project effective.

         12                 But for a project that is still in

         13  the process of approval, yet they have shovels in

         14  the ground on significant elements of construction,

         15  I think that we have done a fairly good job in terms

         16  of making sure that we are out there.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Will there be

         18  any local stops along that area so that the

         19  residents of that area who want to go to the airport

         20  will have access? Is there any consideration for

         21  access?

         22                 Do these groups of persons -- you

         23  know, we relieve the area of automobiles maybe, but

         24  will there be any outlet for access to the airport

         25  for the residents of this area?

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            129

          1  FINANCE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2                 MR. WARD: Let me answer that

          3  question, and it is really a follow-up to Councilman

          4  Gifford Miller's question.

          5                 In order to be eligible for the 1.2

          6  billion of federal funding, it would not be possible

          7  for us to build an intervening transfer, or

          8  intervening station between Jamaica and Kennedy

          9  Airport.

         10                 However, I think my earlier answer

         11  was intended to convey that the transportation

         12  opportunities at Jamaica remain enormously important

         13  and viable for that entire community. But at this

         14  point we would not have been eligible for money if

         15  there had been an intervening station.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: My final

         17  question is about minority and woman-owned

         18  participation in this project.

         19                 I know whenever we hear of these big

         20  projects we get excited that at least we are going

         21  to get our feet in the door, and then by the time

         22  the contracts start to bid, you understand that you

         23  don't have the necessary bonding, you don't have

         24  this. So, all of the excitement that is built up in

         25  terms of participation, no accommodation is made so
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          2  that a minority woman, even with skills and talent,

          3  can get through the door, never mind the men who

          4  take care of everybody else. You know, is there any

          5  way for joint ventureship, ways in which you are

          6  going to make sure that we don't have to come and

          7  lay down in front of the tractors in order to get a

          8  minority on the spot to work?

          9                 MR. WARD: Let me answer that

         10  question, and it gives me an opportunity to correct

         11  an earlier statement.

         12                 This project and this contract has a

         13  project goal of $150 million. Previously I said $125

         14  million -- it is $150 million of minority, small

         15  women-owned businesses to access this contract. And

         16  we have made a concerted effort of both establishing

         17  liaisons with the contractor, as well as with

         18  elected officials in community-based organizations

         19  in Southeast Queens to address the very issue that

         20  you have raised. Because it is only through the

         21  delivery of that economic development benefit that

         22  Southeast Queens most benefits from this project,

         23  and I will ask Mike Mesiah, who is head of our

         24  Office of Business and Job Development to speak

         25  specifically to our programmatic approach.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: He might know.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, Ms.

          4  Clarke.

          5                 Mr. DiBrienza.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: He didn't

          7  answer yet.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I am sorry. I

          9  thought you said yes and that was the end of it. My

         10  apologies.

         11                 Sir.

         12                 MR. MESIAH: Good afternoon, Council

         13  Members.

         14                 We have been involved in developing I

         15  think a package of programs that would help minority

         16  women and small businesses considerably, beyond the

         17  Airtrain even. We have put in place a contract with

         18  Jamaica Business Resource Center to help provide

         19  technical detail, technical support, technical

         20  assistance to minority businesses, to help them walk

         21  through the contracts that might be made available

         22  where they will have experts right on staff to give

         23  them an extensive support on an ongoing basis

         24  throughout the contracting period.

         25                 In addition, if they get a contract,
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          2  we have contracts with the Regional Alliance for

          3  Small Businesses to provide them with consultants on

          4  an ongoing basis when they get the contract to help

          5  them through any difficulties or troubled periods

          6  that they might run into.

          7                 We feel that not only are we

          8  providing goals in terms of   contract dollars, we

          9  are providing the support systems, in terms of

         10  finance, we joined New York State's Link Deposit

         11  Program where that program provides discount loans

         12  to businesses. We put $10 million into that program

         13  in the hope of small businesses being able to obtain

         14  loans at a discounted rate of up to three percent.

         15                 So, we try to approach this thing in

         16  a comprehensive way to ensure that businesses are

         17  not only accessing through the goals that are

         18  established, but they have built their capacity to

         19  be thriving and vibrant in the future.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Chairman.

         22                 Thank you very much.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, Ms.

         24  Clarke.

         25                 Mr. DiBrienza.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Thank you,

          3  Mr. Chairman. I will be brief.

          4                 I just want to clarify a couple of

          5  things that are sort of reminiscent of years ago and

          6  other roles that we could debate some issues, but we

          7  won't go too far because it is a late hour already

          8  on the hearing, Mr. Ward.

          9                 MR. WARD: Thank you, councilman.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Three

         11  distinct parts to this project, correct? One is

         12  completely within the airport; one is the link to

         13  Howard Beach and the other is the plan to elevate it

         14  along the Van Wyck, correct?

         15                 MR. WARD: Correct.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: The reason

         17  I ask that is from, unlike my colleague who likes to

         18  sort of move things along without much detail, I am

         19  not convinced by your presentation that there is any

         20  logic to the third part of this package.

         21                 So, I just want you to know that as

         22  good as the presentation may be, there is still some

         23  real detailed factual questions, economic questions

         24  and impact questions that I submit to you are not

         25  sufficiently answered to justify that segment.
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          2                 I mean, eventually there will be Land

          3  Use reviews, finance and economic development

          4  reviews beyond today, but I don't want you to leave.

          5  I would do you a disservice if you left thinking you

          6  have answered all of the questions. For example, the

          7  overall cost for that third segment, is it as much

          8  as $600 million?

          9                 MR. WARD: All in, yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: The overall

         11  length of time, is it somewhere between two and five

         12  years to do this project?

         13                 MR. WARD: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: And the

         15  amount of disruption to the, you know, all of the

         16  folks who live along the Van Wyck corridor, with no

         17  immediate benefit, no transportation benefit, let me

         18  correct that. I mean there is no stop, there is no,

         19  like, well, at least I can after all this trouble go

         20  upstairs and get on a train and go somewhere,

         21  absolutely none; is that correct? Transportation

         22  stop.

         23                 MR. WARD: Correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: This notion

         25  about this is an economic development project for
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          2  Southeast Jamaica, I am not so sure I understand

          3  either.

          4                 My colleagues in more detail

          5  described the lack of one, you know sort of one

          6  stop, one train, the baggage problems and the like,

          7  but even assuming you could, if that were the norm,

          8  have to take another train or the baggage was

          9  handled, although I don't see any details for it, I

         10  am not so sure that the travel that is involved

         11  going to then have the right to say, well, you know,

         12  we have some time to kill, let's get off and go to a

         13  mall or go to a shop or help, you know, sort of the

         14  economic development of Southeast Jamaica, which is

         15  necessary and important for us to engage in as a

         16  City and as a region, as it is for all of our

         17  neighborhoods, but do you have any documents that

         18  trace or track or predict this ancillary economic

         19  development benefit other than suggest that it will

         20  happen.

         21                 MR. MESIAH: What we would like to

         22  provide to you then is the planning document which

         23  is coming out of the Queensborough President for the

         24  Jamaica Project and specifically looking at what are

         25  the necessary component pieces to assemble that
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          2  location for both a mixed use retail and perhaps

          3  service economy basis and there is in fact growing

          4  out of a community-based organization just such a

          5  plan the Greater Jamaica Development Corporation,

          6  and we would be delighted in consultation with the

          7  Queens Borough President to provide that to you.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Right. My

          9  only sense is that -- I would like to see a

         10  document, because I cannot believe that that overall

         11  emerging plan, which no doubt has lots of

         12  interesting and important components, somehow lives

         13  or dies based on this $600 million elevated one-stop

         14  one exit train component that you are pushing.

         15                 I mean, it is really in some ways

         16  what maybe has to be done for Jamaica -- on its own,

         17  I am not so sure why, you know, your part is

         18  essentially connected to that overall development

         19  plan for Jamaica.

         20                 I don't get it.

         21                 MR. WARD: Councilman, and I

         22  appreciated your introduction, we have perhaps been

         23  here before in different roles and different times.

         24  I am only struck by your leadership and your

         25  guidance as it relates to transportation and how
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          2  transportation, whether it is a maritime industry,

          3  whether it is an aviation industry or whether it is

          4  a mass transit industry, is fundamental to the

          5  economy of the City of New York.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Right.

          7                 MR. WARD: And access for a variety of

          8  residents is paramount in transportation planning.

          9  That is why we designed the connection from Kennedy

         10  Airport to that local transportation hub to allow

         11  the ease of movement throughout the City for the

         12  largest number of potential riders. Having

         13  established that, the paradigm of economic

         14  development in the City of New York has always been

         15  and will continue to be the transportation linkages,

         16  whether it was at the initial period with the

         17  extension of the subway out into your communities,

         18  or the extension of other transportation linkages

         19  throughout the region. That is how this New York

         20  City economy continues, has expanded and will

         21  continue to expand and that is the fundamental

         22  premise of the Airtrain connection at Jamaica.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Well, I

         24  don't disagree with everything expect the last

         25  sentence. And not that you don't believe that is the
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          2  connection. Let me say it another way. Absolutely

          3  true, transportation is critical to economic

          4  development, absolutely true to maximize linkages, I

          5  am just not so sure the folks on the train that, you

          6  know, ultimately use this train, are the folks that

          7  are going to not create the economic, initial

          8  economic investment, but are going to keep it going.

          9  I don't see that connection.

         10                 Those passengers aren't the folks who

         11  are going to -- I mean, the theory about why that

         12  transportation throughout the City is important, why

         13  alternatives are important, why linkages are

         14  important, I don't have a problem with. I just don't

         15  think it is connected in the same way to the

         16  ongoing, sort of thriving, what could be a thriving

         17  economic sort of hub, and then not the audience are

         18  going to use it, and therefore I am not so sure that

         19  it's a good rationale.

         20                 You may say for your project, your

         21  third part, you may say it is the only way, you may

         22  say it is the best way, you may say it is the only

         23  way to move those 4,400 passengers, I am just not so

         24  sure you gain as much as you think you gain by

         25  connecting it to that. But that is my reading of the
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          2  documents and there will be more to come on this. My

          3  time is up right now, so I just wanted to alert you

          4  to that.

          5                 I think this is extremely

          6  problematic, and that is not to say that you

          7  shouldn't continue to spend a maximum amount of your

          8  own money and federal money on improvements, that we

          9  shouldn't engage in major capital improvements and

         10  job generating projects throughout the City, and not

         11  unlike what my colleague Walter McCaffrey said,

         12  there are other ways to spend the money that will

         13  probably generate jobs, and it is not unlike

         14  arguments I have with the real estate developers

         15  when I argue all the time that you can still build a

         16  building, it doesn't have to be the tallest block in

         17  the world to create jobs, you can build small, low

         18  rise, up and down, you know, interesting looking

         19  buildings and still put people to work. So, the

         20  reason I make that point is not a reflection on you,

         21  but I know there are those in the audience who would

         22  ultimately say if you question this, you somehow do

         23  not support economic development, job generating

         24  activities, and nothing could be further from

         25  accurate, and I know you don't believe that but I
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          2  wanted to mention that.

          3                 MR. WARD: Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chairman.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Thank you,

          7  Mr. DiBrienza.

          8                 I want to thank the Port Authority

          9  for all of the time that you spent here. It has been

         10  much appreciated, your presentation, it was

         11  certainly interesting.

         12                 Thank you very much, gentlemen.

         13                 MR. WARD: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right, now, I

         15  would like to call Roger Cohen, of the  Air

         16  Transport Association.

         17                 Mr. Cohen, if there is anybody you

         18  want up there with you, by all means.

         19                 Would you each identify yourselves,

         20  please, for the record.

         21                 MR. COHEN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         22  My name is Roger Cohen. I am with the Air Transport

         23  Association in Washington. With me today --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Cohen, one

         25  moment.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COHEN: Chair Berman

          4  and Chair O'Donovan, I wanted to thank you very much

          5  for this opportunity today. I realize the hour is

          6  late and you probably want to hear from other

          7  people, so we will limit our testimony to just

          8  responding to some additional points that were

          9  raised by the members here today.

         10                 With me today is Barry Newman with

         11  the law firm of Sharp Pitman Potts and Trobridge,

         12  and Steven Bailey who is with the Hart Environmental

         13  Consultants, they would be glad to answer any of

         14  your questions.

         15                 Let me just tell you briefly, the Air

         16  Transport Association represents the interests of

         17  the scheduled commercial airline industry in the

         18  U.S. before congress, federal agencies, state

         19  legislatures and government bodies.

         20                 The membership includes 23 domestic

         21  airlines and five foreign airlines to transport more

         22  than 95 percent of the passenger and cargo traffic

         23  in the United States.

         24                 Let me just --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Am I right in
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          2  saying that you are therefore a private advocacy

          3  group?

          4                 MR. COHEN: Yes, we are.

          5                 We are totally member funded by our

          6  members.

          7                 A couple of points that I would like

          8  to respond to on the economic development which were

          9  raised just most recently by Councilman DiBrienza,

         10  right today as we understand it, there are 220,000

         11  people who traversed Jamaica's station on a daily

         12  basis utilizing the connections there, and so we I

         13  guess question, as I think Councilman DiBrienza did

         14  and others have shared, what the additional 7,000

         15  passengers a day would do to stimulate the economic

         16  development.

         17                 Also, I would like to point out on

         18  the jobs issue that was raised by Councilman

         19  McCaffrey, that we have a chart that would show, and

         20  I will just summarize it, that by using federal

         21  transit administration or local union rates, the

         22  Port has increasing touted the number of

         23  construction --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Excuse me, Roger,

         25  I think --
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          2                 MR. COHEN: There is a copy of this

          3  chart. It is at the back of the testimony. It would

          4  be page six.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: It would be

          6  easier on our eyes.

          7                 MR. COHEN: The fact, however, that

          8  the construction of elevated structures like the Van

          9  Wyck El is among the least labor intensive types of

         10  rail construction activity. The vast majority of

         11  funds needed for this project will be spent on

         12  capital and financing and that the real labor

         13  component that a typical on-airport project, such as

         14  a runway, a terminal, a taxi-way or so forth, is

         15  about double the amount of jobs the same dollar,

         16  double the bang for the buck, in terms of jobs if

         17  the money is spent on a typical airport construction

         18  project, as opposed to a prefab construction-type

         19  elevated structure as the Van Wyck El, so we wanted

         20  to enter that into the record.

         21                 Let me also just mention briefly,

         22  skipping around in my testimony, about the

         23  permission that the PFCs may or may not be.

         24                 The Port Authority has applied to the

         25  FAA for permission to use the PFCs for this system,
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          2  and although the FAA initially approved the

          3  application, the US Court of Appeals just recently

          4  has invalidated that approval. As of today there is

          5  no authorization to use PFCs for this system.

          6                 The Port Authority is proceeding in

          7  the planning and construction of this system at its

          8  own, and I might add, at the City and State's

          9  financial peril.

         10                 Interestingly, the court specifically

         11  invalidated the application based on the

         12  justification based on the ridership. So that is now

         13  back at the FAA for on remand and Barry would be

         14  glad to answer any questions on that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I don't quite

         16  understand. That was the reversal of the Authority

         17  based on legal grounds, technicalities, factual

         18  grounds? Could someone enlighten me?

         19                 MR. NEWMAN: The remand was based upon

         20  the fact that the ridership justification and the

         21  projections that you heard mentioned this morning by

         22  the gentleman from the Port, that the LRS system

         23  will enable the airport to realize its capacity of

         24  45 million air passengers a year. They did not

         25  invalidate the merits of that, but they sent it back
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          2  for public for comment. They found that the FAA had

          3  not allowed public comment. But as a result of that,

          4  the Court of Appeals has invalidated and annulled

          5  the FAA's approval of PFC funding, pending that

          6  reevaluation and allowance for public comments on

          7  that issue.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, sir.

          9                 MR. COHEN: Let me also point out that

         10  if the FAA does ultimately reapprove PFC usage for

         11  the Van Wyck El, there will not be any PFCs left to

         12  fund other needed improvements at Kennedy and

         13  LaGuardia Airports.

         14                 And PFCs, I might point out, were

         15  authorized by Congress in 1990 for three specific

         16  purposes: To preserve or enhance the safety,

         17  capacity or security of the national transportation

         18  system, to reduce noise or to enhance competition

         19  between or among airlines.

         20                 Now, in terms of noise mitigation,

         21  right now over 1.5 billion, interesting number, it

         22  is pretty close to what has been here, is being

         23  spent on PFCs nationwide on noise mitigation

         24  purposes by other airports around the country. But

         25  the Port Authority has not applied to the FAA to use
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          2  any of, even one dollar, of its PFCs, for noise

          3  mitigation.

          4                 The PFCs can also be used for runway

          5  and airport roadway improvements that are not

          6  currently funded through the PFC.

          7                 For example, other airports in

          8  Atlanta, $198 million of PFCs dedicated to acquire

          9  land for a new runway, which will save $75 million

         10  annually in delays in Atlanta.

         11                 In Las Vegas, a billion and a half

         12  dollars in PFCs, again that same number, is being

         13  used for improvements to the airport infrastructure,

         14  including $200 million for an automated passenger

         15  conveyance to get people from the terminals, remote

         16  terminals in Las Vegas, out to the roadways. Baggage

         17  claim improvements, $54 million. In Seattle, Tacoma,

         18  $370 million is being used for a new runway. And $72

         19  million in Seattle for noise mitigation program. But

         20  at the Port Authority not one dollar of these PFCs

         21  through the Year 2009 is being proposed for these

         22  types of improvements.

         23                 Let me sum up by saying that the

         24  airlines are not opposed to rail links at airports,

         25  we are not against creating jobs, we are not against
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          2  any of the things that you have heard today as being

          3  benefits of this project.

          4                 We have worked, the airlines have

          5  worked with municipal government, with Transit

          6  Authorities and airport or operators around the

          7  country to develop sensible airport links that serve

          8  no local need. One-seat ride, yes it is a one-seat

          9  ride in Washington, D.C., it is a one-seat ride in

         10  Chicago, it is a one-seat ride in my home town of

         11  Cleveland, Ohio, Atlanta, St. Louis, these have been

         12  the results of the cooperative efforts between the

         13  airlines and the local authorities. ATA and its

         14  members have offered and have remained willing to

         15  work with the Port Authority, City and State Transit

         16  officials to develop a sensible airport rail-link

         17  and to assist in obtaining the necessary funds to

         18  finance those links.

         19                 I would like to finalize and then

         20  answer your questions, with just, since the Port

         21  Authority raised the specter and you all had

         22  significant amount of questions about the ability to

         23  check baggage on this system, and there is something

         24  we do know a little bit about and that is handling

         25  or sometimes characterized as mishandling bags, let
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          2  me provide some industry insights into the reality

          3  of these airline baggage procedures.

          4                 I think Council Member Gifford Miller

          5  raised the issue about customs, clearly if you were

          6  to check your bag at the Penn Station or Jamaica,

          7  you would need to have customs facilities there. It

          8  is just obvious to do that.

          9                 I think also, as you were shown in

         10  the presentation today, these rail cars that are

         11  going to be operated on this system, I didn't see

         12  any accommodation for baggage, whether it is

         13  underneath or onboard, but this really raises two

         14  very interesting questions.

         15                 The Port Authority had initially laid

         16  out some proposals that the bags would be checked

         17  and then put on a truck and trucked from Jamaica

         18  Station or Penn Station out to the airport. This

         19  raises the question of if the train gets there a lot

         20  faster than the truck would get there, or so the

         21  passenger could conceivably arrive at the airport,

         22  check his bag, goes on a truck, he could wind up, he

         23  or she could wind up at Jamaica Station at eight

         24  minutes, and be waiting at Jamaica Station for

         25  however long it would take the bag to get there.
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          2                 The other issue, which I think just

          3  is very indicative of the kind of really serious

          4  safety and operational concerns that exist today in

          5  this environment about security, the first question

          6  I believe every passenger is asked as he or she

          7  checks the bag is has that bag been in your

          8  possession all the time? And I don't see a way that

          9  anybody could answer in the affirmative of that

         10  under the procedures as sketched out today by the

         11  Port Authority.

         12                 So, we want to let you know that we

         13  are willing to work with everyone to try and make

         14  life easier for our passengers and certainly baggage

         15  is one of our main concerns, but I think that every

         16  layman here in this building could understand the

         17  kind of serious concerns that are out there before

         18  anything like this could even be put forth as a

         19  reality as part of this LRS system.

         20                 With that, we would be happy to

         21  answer any of your questions, and allow for other

         22  folks here who may want to share their views on it.

         23                 Mr. Chairman, thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I just have one

         25  very brief question, I have to go outside for a
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          2  moment. May I assume that since the airlines that

          3  you represent are profit-making organizations, that

          4  if this development was deemed by them to be

          5  profit-making you would be more supportive of it?

          6                 Do they anticipate that this will

          7  enable them to make greater profit?

          8                 MR. COHEN: It is pretty clear that we

          9  believe that this project does not make economic

         10  sense, otherwise we would not have sought to

         11  invalidate it through the federal court system.

         12                 Clearly if this project made sense,

         13  it is notable that at any point in the last 40

         14  years, the Port Authority could have proposed this

         15  and done this without the PFCs, because it had the

         16  ability to raise its funds to do that. Those funds

         17  are paid for primarily by the Airport tenants which

         18  are the airlines.

         19                 Yes, we try to be profitable. Airport

         20  costs, it is interesting to note that you raise that

         21  question, airport costs over the last decade have

         22  been the industry's fastest rising cost, and right

         23  now the New York Airports are among the highest,

         24  most expensive to operate in in the United States.

         25                 JFK I believe is the single highest

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            151

          1  FINANCE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  per passenger cost airport in the United States,

          3  higher even than the New Denver Airport.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Councilman

          5  Miller.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chairman.

          8                 Let me just try to get a couple of

          9  things straight in my mind. First of all, with

         10  regard to the overall proposals, are you opposed to

         11  everything that the Port Authority is proposing, or

         12  is it just the Van Wyck segment that you are

         13  proposing?

         14                 MR. COHEN: The invalidation on the

         15  Port, and correct me if I am wrong here, was of the

         16  whole project. However, the fundamental issue for

         17  our industry is the expenditure of the $600 million

         18  for what is being called the Van Wyck El. That three

         19  mile link extending from the airport to Jamaica.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: So, basically

         21  speaking, you are supportive of the 900 million that

         22  would create a monorail around the airport and to

         23  the long term parking and to the Howard Beach

         24  extension?

         25                 MR. COHEN: I think that we have on
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          2  many occasions indicated to the authorities and to

          3  the officials that that would be an investment that

          4  we would support, and would likely not challenge in

          5  federal court.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Do you have

          7  any opinion or proposal on what would be the best

          8  rail link to the central business district?

          9                 I mean, if the Van Wyck is not, in

         10  your view, a good alternative, is it the fact that

         11  it is your money, or is it the fact that you just

         12  don't think it will work?

         13                 MR. COHEN: The issue of the Van Wyck,

         14  and we are not Transit experts, but in this

         15  community, the issue of --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: You are not

         17  rail transit experts.

         18                 MR. COHEN: We are not rail transit

         19  experts. We hope we are air transit experts.

         20                 In other communities, here in New

         21  York when this proposal was brought forth, it was

         22  the members of the community, transit groups, the

         23  community groups, others, concerned citizens, who

         24  came to us and said that this, in their view, didn't

         25  make any sense. As we began to look at it, we looked
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          2  at it I think in the same way that many of you have,

          3  and raised some serious concerns whether this would

          4  address the issue of airport access.

          5                 In other communities, and the best

          6  example are two that are ongoing right now, one in

          7  San Francisco, one in Portland, the airports there

          8  came to us and said, hey, we have got plan A, plan

          9  B, plan C, which one can we fund, which one works

         10  the best? These aren't always easy negotiations,

         11  because there are issues of precedence, there are

         12  legal issues, there are real operational issues, but

         13  in each of these communities, most notably San

         14  Francisco and Portland, which are right now on the

         15  drawing boards, we have worked with the community

         16  there to come up with a system that, yes, we will

         17  fund, and, yes, it will get people to the airport

         18  faster, quicker, better. This was one that we

         19  believed, based on what we heard from the community,

         20  that it didn't work.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: I am trying to

         22  follow that.

         23                 I mean, I can't believe that -- I

         24  mean, if the airlines thought that it was in their

         25  best interest, the fact that certain members of the
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          2  community didn't support it, I can't believe would

          3  sway them, but what I am asking is, does that mean

          4  that in your view and the airlines' view, that there

          5  is no viable rail access possible, or that you just

          6  don't know of one, or do you have a preference?

          7                 MR. COHEN: We believe that there is

          8  one better than this, and we are willing to work

          9  with the community to find whichever one that.

         10                 I think it is a very interesting

         11  point that a recent federal study to the FAA

         12  indicated that LaGuardia, more than any other

         13  airport in the United States, had a market for

         14  direct rail access, to the central business

         15  district. LaGuardia Airport, not Kennedy but

         16  LaGuardia. Because of the nature of the bags and

         17  everything that you have talked about, the kind of

         18  mission that LaGuardia serves. And I understand that

         19  there are plans now right underway to investigate a

         20  one-seat ride to LaGuardia Airport.

         21                 This project, the one that is before

         22  you today, utilizes every PFC dollar at LaGuardia,

         23  Kennedy and LaGuardia Airports through the Year

         24  2009, and so that even if there were a way to, a

         25  good scheme to get LaGuardia connected on a one-seat
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          2  ride to the central business district, there

          3  wouldn't be one dollar of PFCs available to fund

          4  that link. Whereas, clearly it is our view that all

          5  of the money on the airport, creating the

          6  infrastructure, the station, the links on the

          7  airport grounds itself, are clearly PFC eligible,

          8  which we have supported in every other community

          9  which we operate in.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Okay.

         11                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Councilwoman

         13  Clarke.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you very

         15  much, Mr. Chairman.

         16                 I am trying to get clear in my mind,

         17  because I have read and I understand that there has

         18  been always a lot of criticisms about JFK as a

         19  central airport and how poor it is as an airport.

         20                 Would this new link and all of this

         21  new development bring it up to the kind of

         22  state-of-the-art airport that you know that it ought

         23  to be and if not, the objections that you have,

         24  would it be better off that a for-profit

         25  organization took over and did that, or do you
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          2  think, what do you think is the shortcoming of the

          3  Port Authority in its vision of what it is doing?

          4                 MR. COHEN: The Port Authority I think

          5  does a very good job, its staff does a good job of

          6  managing -- managing airports in this region is a

          7  tough business and I think the staff is extremely

          8  dedicated. We fundamentally view that the money

          9  would be better spent at Kennedy, improving the

         10  aviation infrastructure, however, separately,

         11  separately it has already been in the news and you

         12  have heard about it today where the major airlines

         13  serving Kennedy Airport are going to be

         14  independently investing their own private capital, a

         15  billion dollars I believe is the figure that has

         16  been used for American Airlines, Delta's project is

         17  of a similar scope, United, TWA, others have

         18  projects on the drawing board that will

         19  significantly create more jobs, bring Kennedy

         20  Airport up to speed, make it the kind of world class

         21  gateway that it was and should be and should

         22  continue to be. It is still the leading airport for

         23  transatlantic travel in this country.

         24                 The industry has changed, where at

         25  one point it might have been the only one or one of
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          2  two or three, it is now one of probably two dozen

          3  with non-stop service to Europe.

          4                 So the nature of this world and this

          5  business have changed dramatically over the last 20

          6  years, that is a fact of life.

          7                 But right now our member airlines are

          8  willing to put up their private capital to improve

          9  Kennedy Airport, there has been no dispute about

         10  that.

         11                 The issue is the spending of this

         12  $600 million, we believe it would be much better

         13  spent, make Kennedy a much better airport if it were

         14  spent on the airport than rather than on this Van

         15  Wyck El, which has by its own nature, and I think

         16  you have pointed out, is of limited utility.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Councilman

         21  Carrion.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you,

         23  Mr. Chairman, and Mr. Cohen.

         24                 If we follow your logic and your

         25  scenario that you keep the on-airport loop and it is
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          2  a good thing, it is sound, it is good for the

          3  passengers and for the employees and for circulation

          4  and traffic, and we follow the logic that the PFC

          5  funds have no impact on the capital improvements.

          6  According to the Port Authority, they said that, you

          7  know, using these PFC funds has no impact on the

          8  capital plan, that they have a capital plan, that it

          9  remains intact, are you then suggesting that we take

         10  the remainder of this money and put it into

         11  LaGuardia Airport to improve access over there?

         12                 MR. COHEN: There are certainly

         13  alternative ways to spend the money and that is an

         14  issue that is sorted out at Kennedy and LaGuardia

         15  and at other airports around the country between the

         16  airport proprietor with the Port Authority and the

         17  tenant airlines.

         18                 At the end of the day, the airlines

         19  at the Port Authority really have no veto power per

         20  say over how the Port Authority spends money.

         21                 But I think it is noteworthy to point

         22  out that that Port Authority capital plan is funded

         23  100 percent by the airport users, airport users.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Right.

         25                 MR. COHEN: That is based on the fees
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          2  that the airlines pay, other tenants pay and so

          3  forth, whatever federal taxes are involved in the

          4  airport operations and the maintenance.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: No, I

          6  understand you can't impose on the Port Authority.

          7  But just for the record, if you think it is a good

          8  use of these funds that come from the customers,

          9  your suggestion is that it might be a good idea?

         10                 MR. COHEN: I think that the fact that

         11  all of the dollars at LaGuardia, the PFCs at

         12  LaGuardia, that none of them are being reinvested

         13  back into LaGuardia --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: So, those PFC

         15  dollars at LaGuardia would be used --

         16                 MR. COHEN: Could be used in a variety

         17  of ways.

         18                 Among those ways it could be used

         19  would be to build the airport infrastructure

         20  for a rail-link at LaGuardia, and that would be a

         21  legal, authorized use of the PFCs.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Maybe I don't

         23  understand something.

         24                 The PFCs that we are talking about,

         25  the 1.2 billion, is strictly derived from JFK?
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          2                 MR. COHEN: No, it is derived from all

          3  of the airports.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Oh, okay. So

          5  we are taking from other airports to --

          6                 MR. COHEN: It is an airport system,

          7  the Port Authority operates three commercial

          8  airports, and the funds would be used from --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: From all

         10  three airports for the benefit of one.

         11                 MR. COHEN: Yes, on this project. The

         12  application of this particular project.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Okay, thank

         14  you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you,

         16  gentlemen.

         17                 MR. COHEN: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Richard

         19  Anderson, the New York Building Congress, and Frank

         20  McArdle, General Contractors Association.

         21                 Mr. McArdle.

         22                 MR. McARDLE: Mr. Chairman, Mr.

         23  Anderson had to leave unfortunately due to the press

         24  of another appointment, so his testimony has been

         25  submitted to the Committee for its consideration and
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          2  I want to take a couple of minutes to give you my

          3  views. We have a written statement here, but I would

          4  like to expound on a couple of issues that have been

          5  covered this morning.

          6                 I first of all want to commend you

          7  and Council Member Berman and all of the members of

          8  the Council for convening here today. This is an

          9  absolutely critical issue in the view of the heavy

         10  construction industry and the building trades in New

         11  York City, because we see this as a commitment to

         12  improve the transportation system.

         13                 Lots of people talk about plans that

         14  they would like. We like to look at things that can

         15  be built today, and quite frankly, this is the

         16  program that can be built today because there is

         17  funding to build this program available now.

         18                 The most important point from my

         19  viewpoint is that the New York side of the river is

         20  clearly in competition with New Jersey for jobs.

         21  There is a regional competition, let's not kid

         22  ourselves. You have seen it blow up most recently in

         23  the debate over the Port Authority's future, that

         24  the two governors are engaging in.

         25                 We are in competition on this side of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            162

          1  FINANCE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  the river with a state government that has made a

          3  conscious effort to invest in transportation links

          4  in North Jersey. It has built a monorail that

          5  connects the terminals to the parking lot at Newark

          6  airport. I have used it. It has enabled Newark to

          7  exploit its development potential, and now they are

          8  going one step further.

          9                 They are building a connection to the

         10  Northeast corridor, so their monorail can receive

         11  passengers traveling on commuter rail or on Amtrack,

         12  whoever chooses to stop there so they can in fact

         13  come from Penn Station to that station and change to

         14  the monorail.

         15                 They, in essence, will have in place

         16  that which the Port Authority is proposing here. And

         17  they are doing it because they believe it is

         18  important. And I think we will all agree that in New

         19  Jersey they are not investing foolishly. They see

         20  that link as an absolute critical link to exploiting

         21  other transportation investments that they are

         22  making. They are building Allied Junction, they are

         23  in fact building a light rail system from downtown

         24  Elizabeth to downtown Newark, they are positioning

         25  themselves so that the light rail development along
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          2  the waterfront and the light rail development in

          3  Newark and the northeast corridor connection and

          4  Allied Junction will facilitate their development of

          5  office buildings and let's not kid ourselves, they

          6  fully intend to tenant those office buildings with

          7  jobs that would develop in New York if they hadn't

          8  provided this infrastructure.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: And let me ask

         10  you this, Mr. McArdle. Who in that community is

         11  opposed to that particular project? Is there anybody

         12  there?

         13                 MR. McARDLE: Generally speaking in

         14  New Jersey, they have had no community opposition

         15  because of the job generating potential. There is no

         16  question about that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: And what about

         18  the group that had just left that testified before

         19  you?

         20                 MR. McARDLE: Oh, that is most

         21  interesting. ATA didn't come out in favor of that

         22  project either.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Because it is

         24  off site.

         25                 MR. McARDLE: Because it is
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          2  off-airport.

          3                 Now, they didn't oppose it legally,

          4  which is interesting. They kind of woke up to their

          5  legal fight when it came to this side of the river.

          6  Isn't that interesting?

          7                 ATA has not told you this morning,

          8  and I want to make this very clear, that ATA is

          9  prepared to support any off-airport investment,

         10  everything is on-airport. And quite frankly, ATA

         11  does not seem to be as sensitive to this side of the

         12  river as they were to New Jersey. One has to

         13  consider that.

         14                 Our concern is what can be done. And

         15  we want to see it done here, because we want to see

         16  this side of the Port developed. It is very simple,

         17  very straightforward.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you, Mr.

         20  McArdle.

         21                 Committee for Better Transit. We have

         22  a number of people, I believe.

         23                 George Haikalis.

         24                 MR. HAIKALIS: My name is George

         25  Haikalis, and there are several of my colleagues
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          2  that will be joining me here.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Would you

          4  bring them up, please.

          5                 I would imagine that each and every

          6  one of you have generally the same statements to

          7  read?

          8                 MR. HAIKALIS: We are not going to

          9  read statements, we are just going to touch on a

         10  couple of highlights, each of us from a different

         11  perspective.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you.

         13  Continue.

         14                 MR. HAIKALIS: I am a transportation

         15  consultant to the Committee for Better Transit. I am

         16  a civil engineer and transportation planner, and I

         17  have been involved in transportation planning in

         18  this region for 36 years, served as the director of

         19  research at the Tristate Regional Planning

         20  Commission, where among other things, we did benefit

         21  cost analysis of airport projects.

         22                 In addition to myself, we have Jack

         23  King from the Rockaway Transit Coalition, who will

         24  speak toward the issues of the economic development

         25  on the Rockaways. Bill Guild who will talk about how
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          2  to finance the project using the existing funds,

          3  finance an alternative, that I am going to describe,

          4  and then Mr. Al Papp who will discuss the

          5  state-of-the-art of world class cities and their

          6  transportation, air-links from the center city to

          7  the airports.

          8                 I will try to be very brief. The

          9  Committee for Better Transit has been around since

         10  1962. They are very much interested in making public

         11  transit better. You might ask, well, why would we

         12  oppose a transit link? And what we are concerned

         13  with is we are not opposing a transit link, we are

         14  in favor of a much better system, and the system you

         15  have the material for, there are a couple of maps in

         16  my handout and then there is a detailed report

         17  called the Apple Corridor Report, which I hope you

         18  will read.

         19                 Your staff has been very kind to

         20  communicate with us and your report that you have

         21  produced covers many of the points that we have

         22  here. But I really want to emphasize the issue of

         23  the Apple Corridor plan, as we call it, which calls

         24  for restoring the Rockaway cut-off, which is a

         25  City-owned piece of property. In any other city in

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            167

          1  FINANCE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  the world people would die for a railroad line like

          3  that, the bridges are in place, the embankments are

          4  in place, only one bridge is missing, and it would

          5  provide the opportunity for an extremely high

          6  quality access system from the Manhattan business

          7  district to the airport.

          8                 We think that the central piece of

          9  this is completing the Long Island Railroad access

         10  to Grand Central. That is the Governor's pet

         11  project, he is going to do everything he can to get

         12  it completed. We are anxious to help him by trimming

         13  the cost by two thirds, and you will see as part of

         14  our hand-out, specific ways to do that. We have had

         15  discussions with Councilman Miller and others about

         16  how to have this done, but also as well as cut the

         17  cost and cut the time so that it actually could be

         18  completed within one or two years of the Howard

         19  Beach and on-airport system.

         20                 We think that these pieces fit

         21  together. This was the original Rockefeller plan.

         22  Rockefeller had presidential ambitions, otherwise we

         23  would be riding on this system right now.

         24                 Provides a high speed ride, 21

         25  minutes, 15 and a half miles, and it produces a
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          2  world class access system that will be not second

          3  rate to any in the world.

          4                 We also are proposing a one-seat ride

          5  from Kennedy to Jamaica but the way the RPA plan had

          6  it, not on the Van Wyck El, but through Woodhaven

          7  Junction there is another drawing that shows that,

          8  and we would welcome a discussion. It is not a

          9  question of do you serve Jamaica or not, it is do

         10  you serve Jamaica by way of the Van Wyck Elevated,

         11  or do you serve it by way of Rockaway line as a part

         12  of a much bigger and better project, which we

         13  believe is fundable and doable.

         14                 Restoring the Rockaway line also

         15  provides a high speed access to the Rockaways, which

         16  is why it was built to begin with, and we will hear

         17  a few minutes about that. And one heartening thing

         18  is that the MTA is actually exploring the Committee

         19  for a better transit plan, in a secret $2.7 million

         20  one-seat ride study, which members of our Committee,

         21  and I don't believe members of your Committee, have

         22  any any participation in.

         23                 The economic development negatives of

         24  the Van Wyck El plan are of course it fails to

         25  provide a one-seat ride to Manhattan. We feel this
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          2  is a tremendous risk that we are losing permanent

          3  jobs at Kennedy Airport, not just to Newark Airport,

          4  but to airports around the country. Because without

          5  the umbilical cord that links Manhattan Business

          6  District, which is our engine, our economic engine,

          7  70,000 hotel rooms for the visitors that come to New

          8  York, 600 million square feet of office space, this

          9  is by far the most concentrated business district in

         10  the United States and perhaps the world and it

         11  desperately is seeking a connection to our

         12  international gateway, our global gateway.

         13                 The Port Authority's project is only

         14  going to produce 7,000 riders a day, and we already

         15  heard about the nine coming out of the Jamaica

         16  Business District, it is a very high cost per ride.

         17  $600 million, that is about $27 per trip, just the

         18  capital cost of this project. That is an incredible

         19  sum to invest in a pathetically low volume, and the

         20  reason the volume is low is because people won't use

         21  it as some of the Council Members have described. It

         22  hurts local residents, they can look at it but

         23  cannot use it. It is going to cause a decline in

         24  property value, you will hear more about that from

         25  other people. It is disruptive to construct, it
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          2  causes delays on a crowded expressway, the

          3  Automobile Club will let you know what they will

          4  feel about that. It adds greatly to the cost of

          5  doing business in New York City.

          6                 It is going to take more time to get

          7  to the Airport. The air cargo activity, which is

          8  truck dependent, and the only expressway, truck

          9  expressway is the Van Wyck Expressway, is going to

         10  be shot in the foot. Right now while this project is

         11  going on, and it is really not going to provide the

         12  kind of stimulus the Jamaica Business District

         13  needs.

         14                 The Port Authority and the FAA who

         15  are partners in this project have already turned

         16  their backs on Jamaica. The Port Authority has

         17  selected an on-airport site for their new luxury

         18  hotel, and the FAA has chosen not to build in

         19  downtown Jamaica but at the edge of the airport.

         20                 We believe our Committee for Better

         21  Transit Plan will provide a better access system to

         22  Jamaica because it doesn't reach just the western

         23  edge of the business district there, but goes right

         24  to the center and has the opportunity to continue on

         25  to points in Long Island.
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          2                 Just a word on the compatibility

          3  issue, there have been a lot of things said about

          4  it. Linear induction motors, no one in his right

          5  mind would build a system to have two different

          6  technologies, rotary motors and linear motors.

          7                 Port Authority runs an uptown path

          8  and a downtown path, they all use the same rotary

          9  technology. There is no point in building a linear

         10  induction motor, cars that are incompatible, it is a

         11  way to insult the Mayor and the Governor by doing

         12  that.

         13                 If they had specified Long Island

         14  Railroad compatible cars to begin with, no one would

         15  have known the difference and could be all set for

         16  the next stage of this.

         17                 Now I would like to ask Jack King to

         18  say a word about the Rockaways and how important

         19  restoring the Rockaway line is to that community.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you.

         21                 MR. KING: Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Okay, identify

         23  yourself, sir. What attachment is this? Do you have

         24  an attachment to this one?

         25                 MR. KING: My name is Jack King, I am
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          2  Chairperson for the Q Rail, or the establishment of

          3  the Rockaway line. Reactivation of the Rockaway line

          4  is very important to the Rockaways. It covers the

          5  area from Far Rockaway, right through Breezy Point,

          6  and the reestablishment of the Rockaway line would

          7  enable people to get from the Rockaways to Midtown

          8  Manhattan in about 40 minutes, saving 40 or 50

          9  minutes from the current way that it is going now.

         10                 Businesses have inquired and asked to

         11  come into the Rockaways, but the big problem is

         12  access and not being able to get to the Rockaways.

         13  If we reestablish the Rockaway line, by the way, is

         14  saving a tremendous amount of money, it would cost

         15  $150 million in that area from White Park Junction

         16  to Regal Park, rather than the $600 million talking

         17  about that stretch. And it is sorely needed, because

         18  if we can redevelop the Rockaways, we are a credit

         19  to the rest of the City and the state, we would

         20  bring in taxes, we would employ much more people,

         21  and the Rockaway line can handle 35,000 people or

         22  70,000 round trip daily. That is the estimated

         23  amount. This is the future of the Rockaways, the

         24  future of the Borough of the Queens and the City,

         25  because it will bring in so much money, especially
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          2  with jobs, which they intend to have come in, and

          3  also with businesses, we hope to build up Far

          4  Rockaway, East 20th Street. At one time that was

          5  flourishing and now it is dead, but with the

          6  anticipation of the TechniDome and other businesses

          7  coming in, it will be like a domino effect in the

          8  Rockaways, and we look forward to them coming in.

          9  And the Rockaways again would flourish and there are

         10  so many people that are unemployed there, we have

         11  the highest rate of unemployment in Arvern and Far

         12  Rockaway, and if we can bring down that 22, 23

         13  percent down to six percent level with the different

         14  jobs, of course there would be jobs for part-time

         15  students, high school and college level, during the

         16  season. But there are much plans by our elected

         17  officials, and I expect business to come in, and the

         18  way it can come in to us, if we have the

         19  reactivation of the Rockaway line.

         20                 As I said before, it would take about

         21  40 minutes, the car would make five or six stops

         22  going into Manhattan, Midtown Manhattan. So, we are

         23  pleased to have the ability for you to hear our

         24  case, and for you to think about it. The savings of

         25  the money alone is astronomical.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you. And

          4  we are listening.

          5                 Sir.

          6                 MR. GUILD: Yes, good afternoon. My

          7  name is William K. Guild. I have been asked to speak

          8  very briefly on certain economic implications of the

          9  Port Authority plan.

         10                 I hope you have this three-page paper

         11  that I gave to the bailiff. The first sheet is --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN:

         13  Sergeant-At-Arms, not bailiff. We would be in the

         14  wrong place.

         15                 MR. GUILD: All right.

         16                 There are a couple of dwellers, a map

         17  and a couple of cards attached to this, and the last

         18  thing is a chart which shows, it is actually an

         19  analysis of the funding for all of this that I did

         20  over a year ago, based on the record of decision by

         21  the Federal Aviation Administration under which this

         22  whole project has proceeded to this point. And even

         23  though it is now vacated, there is the strong

         24  possibility that some or all of it will be

         25  reinstated and that is all we have to go on that.
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          2                 I really would like to skip over the

          3  first part of what I had in my prepared remarks to

          4  get right into something that Council Member Miller

          5  was talking about. Under the complex funding scheme

          6  initially concocted by the Port Authority and

          7  substantially endorsed by the FAA, as qualified by a

          8  1997 agreement between the State of New York and the

          9  City of New York, $300 million in appropriated funds

         10  legally available to the state will be applied to

         11  capital costs of the central terminal area segment

         12  of this project.

         13                 Now, it is this segment, a double

         14  loop right in the middle of the central terminal

         15  area, which Mr. Cohen, representing the ATA, told

         16  you a few minutes ago is clearly eligible for PFC

         17  funding. Yet, under the Port Authority proposal,

         18  their capital funds are to be used for that portion

         19  of it. While, PFC funds are to pay for the entire

         20  $598 million, which the off-airport Jamaica leg will

         21  use up. Now, how that gets from being Port Authority

         22  money to state the money is the agreement that is

         23  referred to, if you have my written statement, it is

         24  referred to in a footnote. It is an agreement

         25  entered into in September 1997 between the State and
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          2  the City.

          3                 Now, if the Jamaica segment of

          4  Airtrain simply is not built, $598 million of PFC

          5  funds can be made available for legitimate airport

          6  projects.

          7                 We would immediately urge shifting

          8  300 million of that into the CTA loop, replacing

          9  those funds that the Port Authority was going to put

         10  up, which ultimately would be reimbursed by the

         11  State of New York.

         12                 That would free up the State's

         13  contribution for other transportation purposes, and

         14  our first transportation purpose would be

         15  restoration of the Rockaway Beach Branch, with a

         16  connection at or near Howard Beach, a track

         17  connection, to provide direct one-seat airport

         18  access, this would also provide the long overdue

         19  general Transit improvements for central and

         20  southern Queens as proposed in CBTs Apple Corridor

         21  Plan and which Mr. King was just talking about.

         22                 At the City Planning Commission

         23  hearing just yesterday, the representatives of the

         24  Port Authority testified, for the first time, at

         25  least the first time I had heard them, that fares,
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          2  which incidently are to be charged only to Transit

          3  riders entering or leaving the system of Howard

          4  Beach or at Jamaica --  well, plus the nine walk-ons

          5  at Jamaica every day -- that these fares are

          6  expected to cover something more than half of the

          7  anticipated $21 million annual operating and

          8  maintenance cost of this system, that the balance is

          9  to come mainly through savings from elimination of

         10  present service facilities, including, by the way,

         11  the free shuttle bus now provided at Howard Beach,

         12  this suggests a host of new questions for these

         13  committees, among them how elimination of the

         14  Jamaica leg, the most expensive and least patronized

         15  segment of the project, would affect projected O and

         16  M costs.

         17                 Eliminating the Van Wyck Elevated

         18  route to Jamaica can make capital funds available to

         19  create a truly world class rail link between

         20  Manhattan and Kennedy Airport, and attractive rail

         21  access link in turn will draw the ridership

         22  necessary to sustain its own operating and

         23  maintenance costs.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you.
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          2                 MR. PAPP: Thank you very much. My

          3  name is Albert Papp, and I served for over a year as

          4  the Airport Access Coordinator for the Committee for

          5  Better Transit.

          6                 My remarks this afternoon are

          7  primarily going to be focused and directed toward

          8  international and domestic successful air-rail

          9  interfaces.

         10                 What we heard this morning from the

         11  Port Authority, I guess I can categorize simply as a

         12  21st Century etsel. Though it will work all right,

         13  the wheels will turn, the doors will open, and the

         14  trains will run, there is only fly in the ointment,

         15  and it is a very important fly in the ointment, it

         16  is an extension of the build it and they will come

         17  philosophy. Unfortunately, if we believe the numbers

         18  that the Port has put out, no one is going to be

         19  there. They will not come. We have gone over this

         20  issue before.

         21                 I do want to say that in every other

         22  major city of the world, in our new world economic

         23  marketplace, those cities who have chosen to build

         24  an airport access system have chosen a one-seat ride

         25  to the commercial center business core from the
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          2  outset. There is no promise in the Port Authority

          3  plan that the connections to the subway or to the

          4  Long Island Railroad will ever be built within the

          5  lifetimes of the people here today.

          6                 Among the many worldwide solutions

          7  adopted for airport access, some form of rail link

          8  has become the accepted, if not the preferred

          9  method, around the world. According to the

         10  authoritative railway international, there are now

         11  62 world airport air-rail systems in operation in

         12  the world with another 116 in various stages of

         13  discussion, planning or construction.

         14                 The most popular and successful of

         15  these systems are already operating in London,

         16  Tokyo, Frankfurt, Munich, Amsterdam, and I could go

         17  on for too many hours here. But the one thing they

         18  all share in common is that a one-seat ride was

         19  shared from the outset and that integration with

         20  existing light rail, heavy rail, metro rail, was

         21  there from the outset. It was not some

         22  pie-in-the-sky build and we will come system.

         23                 I want to briefly, and I say briefly

         24  because I have given you several handouts with six

         25  attachments this morning, examine three cities -

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            180

          1  FINANCE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  London, Hong Kong and San Francisco. And I have say

          3  these three for a very simple reason, they are all,

          4  the first two, London and Hong Kong have been put

          5  into operation this last year, in '98, and San

          6  Francisco is now being built and it is a City in the

          7  US that is very similar demographically and

          8  geographically to New York City.

          9                 Let's look first at London. And I

         10  would like to just mention before I start that when

         11  Mr. Cruz Russell of the Port put his slides on the

         12  screen this morning, what he showed was the Docklins

         13  Light Railway. It was not, I repeat, the Gatwick

         14  Express, which is regular British rail tracks to the

         15  airport, nor the recently opened, which I am about

         16  to talk about, Hethrow Express. And while we are on

         17  that, since the linear induction motor issue did

         18  come up, it is being used in several cities of the

         19  world, Scarborough, Canada, Van Couver has a large

         20  system and Quala, Limpoor and Malaysia.

         21                 Now, it should be noted, and it is

         22  also in your package under the airport access

         23  issues, that Quala Limpoor has just decided to build

         24  a 100 mile an hour plane to the train, and you know

         25  what? It is not going to use the linear induction
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          2  motor. In fact, nowhere in the world has the linear

          3  induction motor been used as an access to a regional

          4  airport. Quala Limpoor could have built on to its

          5  existing system, similar to the Airtrain with a

          6  linear induction motor, but instead it decided to

          7  use seaman's technology from Germany in a regular

          8  rotary engine car that will travel at 100 miles an

          9  hour.

         10                 Let's look at Hethrow. It was

         11  inaugurated on June 23rd by Prime Minister Tony

         12  Blair. It cost in US dollars $745 million. It will

         13  provide 15-minute frequencies to Hethrow Airport. It

         14  will take only 15 minutes to get there.

         15                 In the first full year of operation,

         16  in contrast to the Port Authority that only predicts

         17  7,000 riders, the Hethrow Express is expected to

         18  haul 16,400 riders, about 6 million a year, almost

         19  three times, make it two and a half times, let's be

         20  honest, the ridership that the port has projected.

         21                 It is interesting to see what

         22  traveler is using the Hethrow Express, because it

         23  might be applicable to New York. Here is the number.

         24  Fully 36 percent are business people, and 14 and a

         25  half percent tourists.
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          2                 British Domestic business people are

          3  23 and a half percent of users and leisure

          4  passengers nine percent, and only 14 percent, not 50

          5  percent, thank you. Only 14 percent are airline

          6  employees.

          7                 British Airport's Authority has tried

          8  to go ahead and extend the airport experience to the

          9  rail. Plans for the inauguration this summer is full

         10  baggage check-in for nine airlines at 27 counters.

         11  They will do this prior to boarding the train.

         12  Approximately 25 percent of all of Hethrow customers

         13  are expected to avail themselves of this pre-check

         14  in at the Paddington Station.

         15                 And this number is anticipated to

         16  increase the 50 percent for International travelers

         17  and 60 percent for domestic users.

         18                 In a few years, the Hethrow Express

         19  is going to be transformed into an integrated

         20  British Rail system. British Airways is now

         21  considering running as Eurostar, the London/Paris

         22  Tunnel Train, directly to Hethrow from Paris. It is

         23  physically possible.

         24                 What are the lessons to be learned

         25  from the Hethrow Express? First thing, British
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          2  Airport's Authority marketed the airport access as

          3  supporting the competitiveness of the Hethrow

          4  Airport against the competition of Paris Airports.

          5  They have also indicated and identifying generically

          6  London PLC, i.e., the economy of the London area, as

          7  principally benefitting from the heightened

          8  accessibility to the airport.

          9                 After the Eurostar is placed into

         10  Heathrow, British Airports Authority wants to link

         11  the new terminal 5 to the rest of South and West

         12  England.

         13                 It is conceivable by 2008, up to 21

         14  trains an hour connected to all areas in Britain

         15  would be arriving or departing from this

         16  international gateway in Great Britain.

         17                 The Hong Kong Airport Express opened

         18  July 6th. It was part of a $20 billion airport core

         19  program that that city put into place to make it

         20  competitive with everywhere else in the world, $20

         21  billion.  The rail infrastructure alone cost $4.6

         22  billion, and it has already carried 36,000 daily

         23  riders. It operates 18 hours every eight minutes,

         24  from 6:00 in the morning, until 1:00 at night.

         25                 On a heavy day, on a heavy day,
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          2  one-seat ride to Calhoun in Hong Kong Central,

          3  82,000 riders a day, folks. Compare that with our

          4  7,000, opening year on the Airtrain.

          5                 There are a lot of lessons to be

          6  learned from Hong Kong too. Although the airport

          7  express is a new undertaking, the mass transit

          8  railway also allowed the tracks to be used by local

          9  trains. They go over the same tracks, while the

         10  interior doesn't have plush seats, while it doesn't

         11  have LCD seats, it is 25 percent cheaper. So, it is

         12  used both for the airport express and local service,

         13  something that the air train Van Wyck link will not

         14  provide.

         15                 Let's look at San Francisco, whose

         16  system is now in construction. I would take extreme

         17  disagreement with Mr. Russell or Mr. Ward, and I

         18  would suggest that San Francisco will be the

         19  premiere airport access system in the United States.

         20                 Why do I say this? This 1.2 billion

         21  8.6 mile bay area rapid transit extension will begin

         22  operations in December of 2001. Now, I was a mere

         23  shavetail in the air force in the late 1960s in

         24  California serving my country in a small southeast

         25  Asian war which many people have forgotten.
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          2                 One of the things I did in graduate

          3  school was write a paper for the Seton Hall Journal

          4  of Business where I tried to look at what was

          5  happening all over the world and also in California,

          6  where the bay area rapid transit system opened in

          7  1972, was the first non-automobile-related rapid

          8  transit system to be constructed in California at

          9  that time in probably over 35 years.

         10                 It has been an overwhelming success.

         11  So, it comes as no great surprise that the planning

         12  authorities, along with the ATA, when they decided

         13  to have an airport access system in California,

         14  rather than overlaying yet another technological

         15  wonder on that area, decided to go ahead and extend

         16  Bart (phonetic) which has tentacles all over the

         17  bay, over to Oakland, south to Freemont Bay, east to

         18  Walnut Creek, north through Berkeley and Richmond to

         19  Pittsburgh. They took a system that was already in

         20  operation and said let's let our people access SFO

         21  with a one-seat ride on a system that we built 30

         22  years ago, and low and behold that is what San

         23  Francisco is going to do.

         24                 Now, you might want to guess what

         25  type of ridership are we going to have in San
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          2  Francisco? It has, for your information, the seventh

          3  easiest airports in this nation. Like New York it is

          4  located in one of the geographically natural bays

          5  and rivers and oceans on this continent. What do

          6  they anticipate for their ridership? Twenty-thousand

          7  riders a day by 2010. Three times what New York is

          8  predicting with our Airtrain.

          9                 Additionally, the local commuter

         10  services, regional rail called Caltrain, which is

         11  the old Southern Pacific, San Francisco to San Jose

         12  service, will also be linked to Bart at Millbrae.

         13  What this will do will allow not only people in San

         14  Francisco to have a one-seat ride to the airport,

         15  but south of San Jose, albeit with an across the

         16  platform change at Millbrae to also get into San

         17  Francisco Airport.

         18                 What are the lessons to learn from

         19  San Francisco?

         20                 First, geographically they are

         21  constrained by both an ocean and a bay, and unlike

         22  most post Pacific Coast cities, commercial

         23  development was channeled into a relatively narrow

         24  land area.

         25                 Secondly, thanks to Bart, suburban

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            187

          1  FINANCE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  sprawl, especially in the East Bay, has been

          3  somewhat contained, and that is very similar to our

          4  satellite areas of White Plains, Stanford and

          5  Morristown, New Jersey.

          6                 Most importantly, the Bay Area

          7  Planners adopted, after much thought and discussion,

          8  to use the existing rail infrastructure to gather

          9  and disperse airline passengers to what they call

         10  the airport's front door.

         11                 At the end of the day, the Committee

         12  for Better Transit believes the Van Wyck segment of

         13  the Airtrain will be an embarrassment to both the

         14  City, the Borough of Queens and ultimately the

         15  Governor.

         16                 CBT thinks the well-respected

         17  financial times of London put it best when on

         18  November 19th, 1998, in a survey of world airports,

         19  highlighting the new Hethrow and Hong Kong link,

         20  they said the following, and I quote:

         21                 "But in truth, Airtrain must rank

         22  among the most pointless public transport schemes in

         23  recent years, providing little benefit to its

         24  traveling public despite its large cost."

         25                 Rather than connecting JFK with
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          2  Manhattan where most travelers want to go, Airtrain

          3  will call it six stops in the airport in the car

          4  rental lot before terminating at a Jamaica station,

          5  a sprawling railway junction in a remote area of

          6  Queens.

          7                 At Jamaica, passengers will have to

          8  pick up their bags and transfer to the Long Island

          9  railroad, a suburban railway system, hoping to find

         10  a seat on the busy commuter trains running into

         11  Manhattan's Penn Station.

         12                 Once there they will have to change

         13  to yet another means of transport to reach their

         14  final destination.

         15                 Mr. Cohen this morning has made that

         16  clear, and certainly the questions of Mr. McCaffrey

         17  brought that out.

         18                 Finally, they say, airline passengers

         19  are highly resistant to changing modes of transport

         20  because they tend to be laden with baggage. So, it

         21  is hard to see what benefits Airtrain will bring

         22  anyone, other than airport workers who are expected

         23  to be among the main users.

         24                 CBT would like the joint committees

         25  to closely examine the stated objections to this
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          2  ULURP proceeding, and recommend to the City Council

          3  what the Van Wyck elevated segment of the Airtrain

          4  be dropped from the project and that the on-airport

          5  loop and the Howard Beach segment be completed.

          6                 We would urge the City Council to

          7  provide the leadership to refocus JFK airport access

          8  initiative unsensible, affordable, one-seat ride

          9  plans, such as that of the Apple Corridor.

         10                 Already endorsed by many major civic

         11  community and elected officials, the Apple Corridor

         12  can mitigate most of the shortcomings inherent in

         13  the Airtrain project and do so in a timely and

         14  cost-effective manner.

         15                 The City Council is the only

         16  government entity left in the ULURP process that can

         17  still point out that the Airtrain is not a wise use

         18  of funds.

         19                 Indeed the passenger facility charge

         20  is a tax, a $3 departure tax, on air travelers that

         21  will be paid both by residents and non-residents

         22  alike, for many years to come to pay for the

         23  Airtrain.

         24                 As a new millennium dawns, New York

         25  must be well positioned to compete in the global
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          2  economic marketplace, against the wide variety of

          3  new entrants on the world stage.

          4                 Our City has traditionally invested

          5  in the best available technology, especially our

          6  infrastructure for transportation. Bridges, tunnels,

          7  subways and roadways, and they still remain a

          8  subject of great civic pride.

          9                 We owe it to future generations to

         10  continue that trend. To do less will be mortgaging

         11  both the cities and these new residents' economic

         12  future and enuring the sacrifices for all of us

         13  which we have incurred in the past.

         14                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         15  address you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you very

         17  much, gentlemen. I appreciate your time.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 Mark Kulewicz and Sean Walsh. Would

         20  you each identify yourselves.

         21                 MR. WALSH: My name is Sean Walsh, I

         22  am President of the Queens Civic Congress.

         23                 MR. KULEWICZ: My name is Mark

         24  Kulewicz, I am the Director of Traffic Engineering

         25  for the Automobile Club of New York, which is the
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          2  AAA affiliate for the New York metropolitan area.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, Mr. Walsh.

          4                 MR. WALSH: Thank you. I want to thank

          5  the Chairman and Committees today for the

          6  opportunity to come and testify.

          7                 The airports are an important element

          8  in New York City's economy. It is our gateway, it is

          9  our openway, it is also a very important part of the

         10  Queens economy, both LaGuardia and Kennedy Airports.

         11                 The Queens Civic Congress is

         12  comprised of 92 civic associations in Queens and has

         13  been at the forefront of attempting to get a

         14  one-seat ride to both LaGuardia and to Kennedy

         15  Airport.

         16                 Today I would like to just focus a

         17  few moments and not reiterate the arguments you have

         18  already heard today, but to focus on the economic

         19  balance.

         20                 The question really before this

         21  Committee today is whether this is worth building.

         22                 First of all, let's distinguish the

         23  particular links. The Queens Civic Congress, the

         24  people of Queens, I think everyone is in favor of

         25  the loop within the airport and the connection to
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          2  Howard Beach.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: That is clearly

          4  not the issue. Obviously the entire issue is now the

          5  Van Wyck link.

          6                 MR. WALSH: The Van Wyck link.

          7                 To speak about just on the Van Wyck

          8  link, the question is what is the balance and what

          9  is the gain for this in particular.

         10                 Let me start off by talking about

         11  some of the possible negatives that you have to

         12  consider here. It is going to take two to five years

         13  to build this particular link, and one aspect that

         14  has not been discussed about it today is not just

         15  the passengers that go through JFK, but the air

         16  cargo industry that is at JFK, is I think ranked

         17  either third or fourth in the world right now as a

         18  depot for access, both airfreight coming in and

         19  leaving. There is one road that you can take for

         20  truck traffic through Queens to get to the airport

         21  and that is the Van Wyck Expressway. That is a very

         22  crucial link that we have now. And any of you that

         23  have traveled on the Van Wyck Expressway with three

         24  full operational 12 foot plus lanes already know it

         25  is a jammed highway as it is, and there is no other
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          2  way for truck traffic to get to that location.

          3                 If we take that Van Wyck Expressway

          4  and you notice to the Port Authority slide they

          5  described they are going to add a third lane, that

          6  third lane is only going to be about ten feet wide,

          7  maybe 11 feet wide at most. That is a lane the truck

          8  traffic will not be taking. They will not stay in

          9  that lane, they won't fit in that lane.

         10                 We are going to over a two- to

         11  five-year period choke JFK freight cargo system, and

         12  maybe lose our leverage in New York City. And maybe

         13  that will shift to Newark or upstate or Philadelphia

         14  or Baltimore and we will lose those in-coming

         15  freight systems. There is a cost there. You have to

         16  ask the Port Authority how much they expect to lose

         17  by closing down the Van Wyck.

         18                 There is another cost, a local cost

         19  to the community surrounding this area. Certainly,

         20  going through this situation for two and a half

         21  years to five years of building this is going to

         22  have a tremendous negative impact in that community.

         23  What is that going to do to this community? How many

         24  homes will be lost? How many people will move? How

         25  many W-2s will be lost to the City?
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          2                 Balance this against what are we

          3  going to gain from this, is it worth suffering,

          4  losing some rail freight? Is it worth suffering for

          5  the community in particular through this period?

          6  This is a train to no place.

          7                 I don't think I have to say very much

          8  more, but I think it is embarrassing after the

          9  presentation you just heard by CBT and others, about

         10  the other cities, how many people they are going to

         11  move, we are only going to move 4,000 people.

         12  According to the best estimates of the Port

         13  Authority, you can't count the people that already

         14  live in the Jamaica area that will take this instead

         15  of taking their cars to the airport.

         16                 They don't count. That is not going

         17  to change the economy whatsoever. So you are talking

         18  about do those 4,000 people who are going to take

         19  this system change the Jamaica economy? Are they

         20  going to get off? No, I don't think so.

         21                 The question is, are we going to have

         22  a one-seat ride? We need a one-seat ride. It is

         23  desperate that we need a one-seat ride. One, a

         24  selfish way to keep the airport successful. Which

         25  airport, if you had to pick between the two right
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          2  now, needs the one seat ride and the easiest one to

          3  build it? LaGuardia. It has a lot of business

          4  traffic, we need to take the traffic off the Grand

          5  Central and to move those businesses in and out of

          6  the City.

          7                 I held a number of conferences in New

          8  York City where people travel from all over the

          9  world to come to these hi-tech conferences, and I

         10  will tell you this: The biggest problem is getting

         11  in and out of New York City. You are going to lose

         12  that kind of business and that kind of trade if you

         13  don't keep the one-seat rider.

         14                 What does the Port Authority do? It

         15  chooses to go and build a link that only goes to

         16  Jamaica. No one is taking their bags, and we have

         17  heard the scenarios before, through this whole

         18  route. What are the guarantees. To the communities,

         19  there are no real jobs, most of this is all

         20  automated. Most of this is prefabbed work. There

         21  will be very few jobs.

         22                 We are suggesting building something

         23  bigger and better and creating more jobs, and a more

         24  dynamic economy.

         25                 We can certainly see that the Port

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            196

          1  FINANCE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  Authority has not even invested well in this

          3  particular project. They have gone out on a limb and

          4  may have made a tragic mistake by committing PFC

          5  money off-site. Instead of swapping the money, as

          6  has been already described to you, and using money

          7  for un-site projects, they decided to lose a court

          8  case in Washington. Where does that leave us? We

          9  have to go back in front of the FAA and have more

         10  hearings.

         11                 This is a travesty. We are losing

         12  time. We are losing effort. We would like the

         13  Council to take a strong effort in this hand and

         14  move this forward so we can have a first class,

         15  first rate ride, and you have heard one example

         16  given here today which we would like to support.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, sir.

         19                 Mr. Kulewicz. By the way, I read your

         20  report and it was very informative. Thank you.

         21                 That was distributed to everybody

         22  here.

         23                 MR. KULEWICZ: Okay, glad to hear it.

         24  So, I won't go into too much detail then.

         25                 AAA is a motorist organization and it
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          2  is interesting that at this point in today's hearing

          3  and in many hearings we really haven't talked about

          4  motorists, we just heard a little bit about the

          5  trucking industry, and the motorists are an

          6  afterthought, and maybe that is not such a good

          7  thing for many reasons, and maybe we want to

          8  consider traffic flow and the impacts of this

          9  construction a little more closely and not focus

         10  entirely on the Transit aspects of it.

         11                 Because highway access to an airport

         12  is very important. One of the reasons that Newark is

         13  striving is that it has very good highway access.

         14  New Jersey Turnpike provides terrific highway

         15  access. New York City does not have a lot of

         16  highways that trucks can go on in the first place,

         17  they can't go on the Belt Parkway, it is the Van

         18  Wyck, the LIE, I mean there are just a few roads,

         19  and the more local the roads are, people don't want

         20  their cars and their trucks on them.

         21                 One approach to this is to make these

         22  highways more suitable to handle traffic.

         23                 So, just briefly, what will the Van

         24  Wyck be like during construction during those four

         25  years? Well, it is bad now, it will be worse. I will
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          2  give you one or two examples of why.

          3                 When you have three lanes on a

          4  highway and you take one out of Commission, as will

          5  happen every day in the off-peak periods on the Van

          6  Wyck, you don't lose one-third of the capacity, you

          7  lose 50 percent of the capacity on that road. It is

          8  a traffic engineering fact. You will only be able to

          9  move half of the vehicles that you now move through

         10  there and you know that it is not all that good

         11  right now. That is a prescription for a big problem.

         12                 When you remove shoulders on a

         13  highway, and before I worked for AAA I used to work

         14  for Sperry Systems Management, and I worked on the

         15  Van Wyck Surveillance and Control System, the one

         16  that has television cameras, an early example of

         17  surveillance on a highway, to try to deal with

         18  incidents and breakdowns and accidents and move them

         19  quickly.

         20                 Well, any time there is a crash on

         21  the Van Wyck as it is now, forget it, the highway is

         22  lost and everyone diverts to every local road they

         23  can find and they don't have much success there.

         24                 Well, if you have no shoulders, there

         25  is nowhere for anyone to pull off to the side of the
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          2  road and any breakdown or any accident is magnified

          3  and that is what you are going to be seeing for four

          4  years, because you will have only limited number of

          5  breakdown locations.

          6                 The service road to the Van Wyck are

          7  not useful, particularly north of Atlantic Avenue,

          8  to carry diverted traffic. The local communities I

          9  know do not want that traffic up there, but even if

         10  they go up there, they will have no success in

         11  getting through Atlantic Avenue, Jamaica Avenue,

         12  because of the movements there and the design of the

         13  lane configurations. You can't move any traffic on

         14  the service roads and you never will. And as I said,

         15  the community doesn't want that traffic up there

         16  anyway. So, you can forget the Van Wyck for four

         17  years as being any kind of real mover of traffic.

         18                 So, AAA members tell us, okay, we

         19  will put up with some of that pain. We won't like

         20  it, but when we get something better at the end,

         21  this is a great thing and we will be happy to use

         22  that new and improved facility.

         23                 So what will the Van Wyck as a

         24  highway be like when this project is done? Well, it

         25  will be worse. It will be worse. And the Port
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          2  Authority tells us that the level of service F, the

          3  number of hours operating at level service F -- and

          4  all you need to know about that, it is a technical

          5  highway term, but it is kind of like grammar school

          6  and high school, you get an F you fail. The number

          7  of hours operating level service F on the Van Wyck

          8  will increase dramatically when this project is

          9  done. Van Wyck is not going to be a very good

         10  highway for anyone to use, after $600 million is

         11  spent on this project.

         12                 So, that is what you have to look

         13  forward to. And of course JFK, and I am no expert on

         14  what this means for the airport, but they are

         15  projecting tremendous growth in the airline traffic,

         16  but how is it going to get there when the highway is

         17  worse than it is now, and we have an Airtrain that

         18  carries 300 passengers per hour. I haven't heard

         19  that number too much, but I would just put that into

         20  a little bit of perspective. Three-hundred

         21  passengers or people per hour moved on a

         22  transportation facility is so small as to be

         23  meaningless. A highway lane moves over 2000 people

         24  an hour. The lanes on the Van Wyck right now, each

         25  of them move over 2000 people per hour. That is

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            201

          1  FINANCE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  compared to 300 on this new facility.

          3                 That gives you an idea where you are

          4  going. Let me give you some comparisons just briefly

          5  of that 300 number.

          6                 So, 2000 people an hour run on a

          7  regular lane. Three-thousand people an hour are now

          8  moving on the Suffolk County HOB lane on the Long

          9  Island Expressway, some people feel that is not

         10  successful. The Shirley Highway, which is an HOV

         11  lane bus facility in Washington DC moves 8,300

         12  people an hour. Eight-thousand more people per hour

         13  than the Airtrain is projected to move, and the

         14  Lincoln Tunnel, which is a bus facility, moves over

         15  20,000 people per hour, compared to 300. These are

         16  the kinds of numbers that we are comparing for our

         17  $600 million investment.

         18                 These are not good numbers and they

         19  are really not justifiable from a cost benefit

         20  standpoint.

         21                 We at AAA, we don't know much about

         22  transit. We know that our members use it and support

         23  transit facilities and we are not here to oppose a

         24  transit link to JFK. We are in agreement with the

         25  Committee for Better Transit that we heard, their
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          2  project seems to make some sense.

          3                 We do believe that there is a real

          4  need to look at the Van Wyck Expressway, the highway

          5  facility, and look at the possibility of investing

          6  in that as a highway facility. What can we do to

          7  improve capacity on the Van Wyck that if we can get

          8  people to JFK, and also so that we can support the

          9  movement of goods and of people who are not going to

         10  JFK, who are getting no benefit for the 600 million.

         11                 Thank you for allowing us to speak

         12  today.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you very

         14  much, gentlemen.

         15                 The next three people are John

         16  Steinberg, Zaff Khan, and Jack Cherry.

         17                 MR. STEINBERG: Chairman Berman and

         18  Chairman O'Donovan, thank you for the opportunity to

         19  speak this afternoon. I am John Steinberg, I am Vice

         20  President with Greater Jamaica Development

         21  Corporation. I am appearing for our President, Carl

         22  Tarry, who is out of town today.

         23                 I have distributed some prepared

         24  remarks.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I have reviewed
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          2  it already.

          3                 MR. STEINBERG: Okay. I would like to

          4  just focus on one aspect of those remarks, which is

          5  limited to the economic development consideration of

          6  the Airtrain. I don't need to belabor all of the

          7  transportation issues which have been discussed at

          8  length.

          9                 However, a few points came up from

         10  the previous speakers and I just would like to rebut

         11  them, if I may.

         12                 I have been advised that the mention

         13  of the last speaker about level of service F on the

         14  Van Wyck Expressway when the Airtrain is completed,

         15  I presume that is in 2003. What he didn't tell you

         16  is that without the Airtrain, the level of service

         17  would be G or H, which is worse.

         18                 Secondly, for the record, the speaker

         19  before made a comment that the Airtrain, I think he

         20  was referring to the link of the Van Wyck from the

         21  JFK to Jamaica, was a train to no place. For the

         22  record, Jamaica is some place, and an extraordinary

         23  place in terms of rail transit, and I would just ask

         24  you to take into consideration a gentleman who makes

         25  a statement like that, what else did he misrepresent
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          2  to you. The publication in London that refers to

          3  Jamaica as a remote part of Queens obviously has

          4  never been west of the temps, we have more rail

          5  infrastructure in Jamaica, than almost any place in

          6  the country, except maybe Penn Station and Penn

          7  Central.

          8                 So, the other thing that really

          9  bothers me as an economic development professional

         10  who works in Jamaica, is to hear this referred to as

         11  the Van Wyck El. It is a misstatement to refer to

         12  this modern elevated structure as an El. The El that

         13  we all know and love from 1920s, is a steel on steel

         14  infrastructure that wobbles with every breeze, has

         15  no sound baffling, it has nothing to do with late

         16  20th Century technology and if you call it an el,

         17  you are using the wrong language and you are

         18  misleading. So, I don't think it should be referred

         19  to that way.

         20                 Now, turning -- oh, the other point

         21  is, people talk two to five years of disruption on

         22  the Van Wyck. I am advised that the construction

         23  schedule is as follows:

         24                 At Greater Jamaica we are very

         25  cognizant of our neighbors along the Van Wyck who
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          2  will be disturbed by the construction of this new

          3  facility, which we think in the end will be a great

          4  benefit to this area. But the facts are, for six

          5  months they are going to put on shoulders. For 18

          6  months they are going to build the structure, the

          7  elevated structure.

          8                 For another six months they are going

          9  to lay the track on top of that structure. Then they

         10  are off the Van Wyck. That totals to 30 months,

         11  which is two and a half years, not five years.

         12                 Now, I would like to talk a little

         13  bit about economic development.

         14                 As a preface, everybody would love to

         15  see a one-seat ride here. We would all love that.

         16  Personally, I commute from Manhattan to Jamaica. I

         17  change trains three times a day and I don't think

         18  much of it, it is just part of living here. It would

         19  be great if we had a one-seat ride. It is 1999, we

         20  don't have a two-seat ride to the airport right now.

         21  You guys deal in the art of the possible. This is

         22  the art of the possible. Let's build the two-seat

         23  ride now, let's plan for the one-seat ride in 2010,

         24  or whatever, and let's get on with it.

         25                 We have hired Price Waterhouse
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          2  Coopers, which has a special office in Belgium,

          3  preferrably Belgium, which studies air transport

          4  throughout the world, and they are about 70 percent

          5  completed with a study of what are the economic

          6  development implications for Jamaica Center of

          7  having a rail connection to Kennedy Airport. And

          8  they were visiting us just a few weeks ago, we took

          9  them to meet Borough President Shulman and the

         10  Empire State Development Corporation, and on the

         11  issue of jobs, they say that for every million

         12  passengers that a facility adds, that equates to

         13  4,000 direct and indirect jobs for the environs of

         14  the airport.

         15                 So, when you think about the 4,000

         16  construction jobs which are considerable for this

         17  project, they are on and off within 30 months.

         18                 This is 40,000 permanent jobs year in

         19  and year out from 2003 until kingdom come.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I hope you are

         21  right. I really do.

         22                 We have serious questions about that.

         23  We have raised those questions, and my concern is

         24  the lack of substantative response to these issues.

         25                 MR. STEINBERG: Okay, well I hope I
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          2  can give some flesh to what I am saying, and also I

          3  would like to add that when this Price Waterhouse

          4  Report is complete, Mr. O'Donovan, since we are both

          5  in the economic development area here, we would love

          6  to come and brief you about it, because there is

          7  really some exciting stuff that is being developed

          8  here and we sincerely believe that the potential for

          9  this remote part of Queens is really fantastic. And

         10  I think the Council could be an important part in

         11  making that happen.

         12                 Let me just say a few more things. We

         13  urge the Committees to support the Port Authority's

         14  plan as a much needed boost for economic development

         15  and for the national and international, competitive

         16  position of our City.

         17                 JFK Airport is singular among

         18  airports of world class cities in the small quantity

         19  of airport-related development that it has spawned.

         20  This is probably due in part to the famous access

         21  problems that have troubled JFK.

         22                 Price Waterhouse is studying Newark

         23  and the area around Philadelphia, both of which have

         24  been growing and we view as competitors.

         25                 Price Waterhouse is telling us that
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          2  with its new connectivity to JFK, eight minutes

          3  away, on two-minute headways, Jamaica will be a

          4  potent competitor for international businesses or

          5  airport sensitive businesses in need of back office

          6  or so-called middle office space.

          7                 Also, the fundamentals look good for

          8  corporate training center, hotel conference center,

          9  and perhaps some high value added manufacturing.

         10                 There was a question before about all

         11  of these people schlepping their bags to the

         12  airport, are they really going to get off in Jamaica

         13  and by a dress? Well, probably some of them will if

         14  there is a delay or they have a little time, but

         15  really the economic development impact is not the

         16  passengers, per se, it is the businesses that are

         17  dependent on the airport that need ready access for

         18  their staffs to fly out to Kansas City or London or

         19  whatever.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Once again, we

         21  hope that you are right.

         22                 MR. STEINBERG: Being just 30 minutes

         23  by LIRR from almost any point in Nassau and 22

         24  minutes to Penn Station, the Jamaica station area,

         25  if properly redeveloped and planned, could be a
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          2  smart location for companies desirous of capturing

          3  the rich labor market between Manhattan and Suffolk.

          4  Creating a new business district in Jamaica Center

          5  will permit less stressful reverse community and

          6  efficiently use LIRR and subway excess capacity.

          7                 Jamaica Central location promises

          8  employees a far shorter commute time. The time

          9  saving will be a precious commodity in the 21st

         10  Century.

         11                 Price Waterhouse is telling us that a

         12  lot of employers are complaining that the New York

         13  area is less competitive in a tight labor market

         14  because employees resent community an hour and a

         15  half each day.

         16                 Well, if we had a business district

         17  in Jamaica where you would only commute a half hour

         18  each day, what a difference.

         19                 The subways in the early part of the

         20  century transform Jamaica from a bucolic town to a

         21  bustling regional center. Airtrain promises to

         22  transform it again, if we plan for it and have the

         23  vision to capitalize on the exceptional transit

         24  asset that the Port Authority is bringing to

         25  Jamaica.
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          2                 Under federal law, Jamaica Station of

          3  the Airtrain will be considered literally part of

          4  JFK Airport, its tenth terminal. Please recommend to

          5  your colleagues to approve this ULURP action. You

          6  will be setting in motion a public works project

          7  that will benefit our entire region.

          8                 Equally importantly to those of us

          9  who care about Southeast Queens, you will be opening

         10  the door to the transformation of Jamaica Center,

         11  into a first class, we hope worldclass, gateway to

         12  New York and the United States, hard-wired by three

         13  miles of high-tech track, not an el, into the

         14  growing global economy.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, sir.

         17                 Mr. Cherry, or Mr. Kahn, who is next?

         18                 MR. CHERRY: Good afternoon. My name

         19  is Jack Cherry. I am the owner of Cherry Office

         20  Products. We are located in Southeast Queens on the

         21  Van Wyck Expressway.

         22                 For many years we at Cherry Office

         23  Products have made attempts to do business with JFK

         24  Airport as a whole, with no results.

         25                 Along comes Slattery, Skansca and
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          2  Port Authority, and they have asked us to do

          3  business with them. Last year, 1998, we were able to

          4  hire more people from our community, bring them in

          5  to train them on how to set up furniture and to make

          6  some money over the summertime.

          7                 At the present time we are supplying,

          8  Slattery, Skansca, Bombardier, and others at JFK,

          9  with their office supplies. I am here, you know,

         10  strictly on economic reasons, to keep my business

         11  afloat and to make jobs available for people in our

         12  community.

         13                 Let me again say that my business is

         14  located directly on the Van Wyck Expressway. I have

         15  been a resident of Southeast Queens for all of my

         16  life. I was born and raised in Southeast Queens.

         17                 I think that with the economic impact

         18  that this program will bring, the Air-rail will

         19  bring into Southeast Queens, whether it be in Howard

         20  Beach, or whether it be -- wherever you decide it is

         21  going to be set up, I do hope that there is a part

         22  of which small businesses, like myself and others,

         23  can benefit as a result of this coming into our

         24  neighborhood.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, sir.

          3                 Mr. Kahn, do you want to add

          4  anything?

          5                 MR. KAHN: Yes, sir.

          6                 My name is Zaff Khan, and I live in

          7  Richmond Hill, New York.

          8                 This train is coming directly in our

          9  neighborhood. I believe that this train will be very

         10  useful for our community, especially for people that

         11  live in Richmond Hill and the Jamaica area, the Indo

         12  Caribbean American.

         13                 As you walk through Kennedy Airport

         14  corridor, 90 percent of the low-paying jobs are held

         15  by the Indo Caribbean Americans. From the people of

         16  the community, to the security guard, this train

         17  will be a means of transportation for us to travel

         18  back and forth, just like you and your subway

         19  system.

         20                 We would love to have a station at

         21  Linden Boulevard, but in absence of this station it

         22  is not enough to go against this Air-rail system.

         23                 The construction of this train will

         24  bring hundreds of high-paying jobs, union jobs, to

         25  our area - something we badly need.
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          2                 Slattery representatives have

          3  indicated to me that there will be more than 50

          4  million that will come to our community in direct

          5  employment or in contract work, and I will support

          6  that.

          7                 And a Council Member had asked with

          8  regards to whether or not Slattery would just give

          9  lip service or whether it would really hire minority

         10  - well, we have already seen the benefit from this

         11  system.

         12                 September 12th, last year, Imperial

         13  Development and Construction Corp of Richmond Hill,

         14  New York, was awarded $820,000 in contract work, for

         15  the development of the main display office at Archer

         16  Avenue. I am sure most of you know the center.

         17                 The following is a list of people who

         18  have benefit from the community.

         19                 Ramhi Trahune of Jamaica, New York.

         20  His combined total benefit was 78,000, and I support

         21  that.

         22                 Homilis Ramdier (phonetic), Richmond

         23  Hill, New York. Combined total of $23,000. I support

         24  that.

         25                 Daniel Rucham (phonetic), of Jamaica,
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          2  New York. Combined total of salary was $12,600, and

          3  I support that.

          4                 Anti Bach (phonetic), of Richmond

          5  Hill New York, combined total of $28,000 in

          6  community project, and I will support that.

          7                 Janet Plumming (phonetic), from

          8  Jamaica, New York, $42,000.

          9                 Campi Electric (phonetic), from

         10  Jamaica, New York, $140,000.

         11                 Cherry Furniture (phonetic), my

         12  colleague, $20,000.

         13                 In addition, this project has been

         14  bringing a lot of business to the local community

         15  restaurants in the Liberty corridor. Many of those

         16  restaurants are thriving now, and they are not

         17  closing the door after two or three months.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Kahn, I hope

         19  you are right.

         20                 MR. KAHN: I hope so, too, sir.

         21                 There are about 50,000 of our people

         22  that live in the Richmond Hill, Jamaica community,

         23  and if there is any one group that is going to be

         24  affected by this traffic and the noise this train

         25  will cause it is use, the Indo Caribbean American.
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          2  But the benefits outweigh the inconvenience.

          3                 A new Jamaica Station at Sutphin

          4  Boulevard and Archer Avenue will uplift that area

          5  and make it thriving again. Quick access to and from

          6  the airport, high-paying construction jobs, will be

          7  of tremendous benefit to our community.

          8                 Council Member, I ask you to vote for

          9  this project. And there might be those who stand to

         10  gain, I would say you are standing on the wrong side

         11  of history, and you will be remembered that way.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, sir.

         13                 Okay, there is not going to be a vote

         14  today, and this Committee will not have a vote.

         15  Ultimately there might very well be a vote but

         16  certainly not at this level.

         17                 All right, now, ladies and gentlemen,

         18  Council Member White, he just got a phone call, he

         19  stepped out, asked that I call certain people who

         20  did not provide prior expressions of a willingness

         21  to be heard. I will also tell you that the purpose

         22  of this -- I am going to call several people, but

         23  the purpose of this meeting is to deal with the

         24  economic and financial assets of the proposal. The

         25  community involvement will subsequently be heard at
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          2  the Land Use Committee. So that might be the reason

          3  why nobody got back to you on this subject.

          4                 Nevertheless, I will call several

          5  people, but because it wasn't scheduled, I would ask

          6  that you just verbalize your opinion in less than a

          7  minute, and that will be it, okay?

          8                 As long as we do that -- you will

          9  have an opportunity when the matter gets to the Land

         10  Use Committee, to be heard extensively,  because

         11  that is when we deal with the community aspects.

         12                 Okay, Raphael Smalling. Also, come

         13  up, Juan Valcarel, and Ruth Duberry.

         14                 Sir, identify yourself, and if you

         15  would, in less than a moment.

         16                 MR. SMALLING: Yes, sir. I am a home

         17  owner, I live on Van Wyck Expressway. We, as

         18  residents of the affected area in Southeast Queens,

         19  have been struggling to prevent the destruction of

         20  our neighborhood with the construction of the Van

         21  Wyck El. By destruction I mean the following:

         22                 Doing construction of the Van Wyck

         23  Service Road -- of the Van Wyck Service Road will

         24  most certainly be changed to a no parking zone. A

         25  problem which will turn our streets into a parking

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            217

          1  FINANCE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

          2  lot.

          3                 Consider the loss of time to just

          4  exit one's driveway.

          5                 The possibility of damages to homes

          6  due to pile driving and other activity during the

          7  five years of construction. Heavy trucks on local

          8  streets may cause damages to water pipes, houses in

          9  the area may lose value because the train will not

         10  make a stop on the Van Wyck, therefore, you won't be

         11  able to use it.

         12                 Also, noise pollution due to the pile

         13  driving and the noise will continue when the train

         14  is up and running up and down every few minutes day

         15  and night.

         16                 Medical costs --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Smalling,

         18  would you conclude.

         19                 MR. SMALLING: -- The elderly

         20  suffering respiratory diseases.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Smalling,

         22  please conclude.

         23                 MR. SMALLING: One thing, please.

         24                 Why should we believe that more than

         25  a token job will be given to benefit our community
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          2  when they have got none from the airport section

          3  which are on the construction as we speak? To know

          4  what will happen in the future is to judge from what

          5  has happened in the past. When airport 2000 started

          6  at JFK, members of the minority contractors --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Smalling, you

          8  are taking time away from people behind you. I asked

          9  you to conclude.

         10                 MR. SMALLING: -- So when did the Port

         11  Authority --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You are abusing

         13  the courtesy of this Chair, Mr. Smalling.

         14                 MR. SMALLING: Okay, thank you, sir.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you.

         17                 MS. DUBERRY: Council member, can I

         18  just say something before you begin with the next

         19  person?

         20                 The gentleman in your office, I can't

         21  call his name right now, but I spoke to him a couple

         22  of times on the phone, is it Rogers? Well, anyway,

         23  to make a long story short, we faxed in a list to

         24  you --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: That might be the
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          2  case, Ma'am --

          3                 MS. DUBERRY: May I just finish? When

          4  we came in we had a press conference on the steps,

          5  we came straight up as a group and into the room and

          6  no one directed us to sign any slips. That is the

          7  only reason we didn't sign in.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Ms. Duberry, I

          9  understand that.

         10                 MS. DUBERRY: Fine.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: And even though

         12  it is not on my list, I am attempting to try and

         13  accommodate that fact.

         14                 MS. DUBERRY: One minute compared to

         15  an hour and a half --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Well, I

         17  understand that, Ma'am. But you understand that the

         18  meeting is, for all intents and purposes, we have

         19  concluded this.

         20                 Now, also you should understand that

         21  you are going to have another opportunity to come

         22  back because your testimony appropriately belongs

         23  there.

         24                 MS. DUBERRY: I have some economic

         25  development issues in my statement.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Just a second.

          3                 I have indicated because it wasn't

          4  scheduled I will give everybody up to one moment. I

          5  am doing the best I can and it is just not fair at

          6  this point for me to do otherwise. If you don't want

          7  to testify it is your call.

          8                 MR. VALCAREL: My name is Juan

          9  Valcarel, and I live close to the Van Wyck, half a

         10  block away from the Van Wyck, and I have questions

         11  for the Port Authority in reference to this project.

         12                 How cost efficient is this project,

         13  especially going to the Van Wyck?

         14                 Another question that I have, how did

         15  they determine that the Greater Jamaica Development

         16  is going to have an economic impact on them, how

         17  they arrived at this conclusion? Since so many funds

         18  have been allocated to the Greater Jamaica

         19  Development Corporation before and still they are

         20  trying to develop, they haven't fully developed.

         21                 Another question that I have for the

         22  Port Authority is, how come they never demonstrated

         23  any interest to the colleges, to York College or any

         24  high school in the Jamaica area, and now suddenly

         25  there is interest to develop? That is all my
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          2  questions for now. Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: That's a fair

          4  question.

          5                 Ms. Duberry, do you want to be heard?

          6                 MS. DUBERRY: Yes, I do.

          7                 Dear Councilman, look at Jamaica,

          8  perhaps billions has been spent there, we have York

          9  College, we have a new courthouse, a Social Security

         10  building and in-coming food and drug administration,

         11  and another courthouse building, and we also have a

         12  relatively new four-track subway. Yes, these are

         13  good things. But if public expenditure were the only

         14  requirement for redevelopment of Jamaica, it would

         15  have been revitalized years ago.

         16                 However, office space in Jamaica has

         17  shrunk, and our major department stores are but

         18  memories. Obviously something is missing and we all

         19  know it is not the Airtrain.

         20                 Downtown Brooklyn is another older

         21  business district, fighting to survive and grow. In

         22  recent years it has seen substantial private office

         23  space built and rented there.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Metrotech.

         25                 MS. DUBERRY: Metrotech, yes.
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          2                 There is a luxury hotel on Jay

          3  Street, the Marriott. Downtown Brooklyn still has a

          4  branch of a major department store, Macy*s. This was

          5  done without the numerous public project cited

          6  above. It was also accomplished without benefit of

          7  an air train.

          8                 The nature and scope of commercial

          9  activity has changed in Jamaica, and we will take

         10  substantial private investment, as was the case in

         11  downtown Brooklyn it will take to turn Jamaica

         12  around. That may not even be possible when one

         13  considers the new clusters of office space which

         14  have developed along the Whitestone Expressway.

         15                 Downtown Flushing has changed

         16  significantly in ethnic make-up, yet it flourishes

         17  without an Airtrain.

         18                 It is ironic that we were once told

         19  that the Jamaica Avenue elevated train needed to be

         20  removed to establish an environment for which

         21  redevelopment, among other things, would increase

         22  property values there.

         23                 I think we all realize that when

         24  transportation comes via houses, and the people that

         25  live there are not allowed to use it, that doesn't
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          2  raise your property value, it decreases the property

          3  value.

          4                 And I would like to say one other

          5  thing. We have had the Jamaica Hub with all of the J

          6  and the K and the E, I can't even recall them right

          7  now, because I am a little whatever, and the buses

          8  and the Long Island Railroad, and for about 30 years

          9  since I have been, or longer than that, in my house

         10  in Jamaica, they have talked about redeveloping

         11  South Jamaica and the main part of Jamaica up on

         12  Jamaica Avenue. Why has that not happened? You need

         13  a train to do that?

         14                 But anyway, I would just like to say,

         15  look through the smoke and beyond the mirror and

         16  there you will gaze upon the truth. Airtrain is not

         17  the answer to the question that has not been asked.

         18                 What about the hopes and dreams of

         19  the Van Wyck communities? One other thing that I

         20  will give to you for the record. They talk about

         21  jobs and they talk about Skansca, Skansca is

         22  involved with Bay Shore Concrete in Virginia and a

         23  part of the concrete floor of the train that the

         24  rails have to be on for the train to ride, are all

         25  being put together and brought up in the water -- I
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          2  am so messed up now I can't even say what I want to

          3  say.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: In Virginia?

          5                 MS. DUBERRY: Yes, from Virginia. So,

          6  they are getting the jobs, not here, not our

          7  contractors, not our women and minorities.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Is that a

          9  newspaper clipping?

         10                 MS. DUBERRY: Yes, I am going to leave

         11  it with you. It was sent to me from Virginia.

         12                 In conclusion, I ask that this

         13  project not be forced upon us when its benefits are

         14  so flimsy, and its impact on our community so

         15  devastating. I ask that the City Council vote down

         16  this project or at least put it on hold until the

         17  conclusion of an open and objectively conducted

         18  one-seat ride study.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, Ma'am.

         21                 All right, is there a Charles Lucas,

         22  Frieda Lattimer and Margo Hill and Marie Alston.

         23                 Once again, I apologize, but I would

         24  ask that you restrict your testimony to one moment.

         25                 Go ahead, sir.
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          2                 MR. LUCAS: I am Charles Lucas,

          3  President of the South Ozone Park Coalition, as well

          4  as a member of Concerned Neighbors of Southeast

          5  Queens.

          6                 I was going to give you a real

          7  nightmare of a scenario regarding the possibility of

          8  what could happen with Kennedy Airport in relation

          9  to the homes that were being destroyed on the Van

         10  Wyck Expressway, but particularly, since we are

         11  interested in the matter of finances and costs,

         12  there are a number of things we did not hear today.

         13                 Now, we in Southeast Queens certainly

         14  are mindful of the devastating affects the Port

         15  Authority high rail will have on Southeast Queens

         16  Community.

         17                 But we have not translated this

         18  travesty in dollars and cents.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I would say that

         20  at the beginning of this session I raised the

         21  question of the comparative loss of dollars for the

         22  home owners, as opposed for the cost for doing the

         23  job, and they said there is a commensurate economic

         24  impact on the people who own homes in the area.

         25                 MR. LUCAS: Let me raise this. The
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          2  Port Authority talks about, and the figure was

          3  mentioned here today, 11,000 ridership on that

          4  particular rail.

          5                 Now we question whether 11,000 of

          6  ridership will be sufficient to support the rail. No

          7  figures were shown to indicate that it would.

          8                 What will be the annual expense of

          9  operating this rail? If the project is completed,

         10  what revenues will be received based on fares?

         11                 And I have no idea as to what kind of

         12  scheme they have put together as far as fare and

         13  tolls. Fares and tolls may be insufficient and there

         14  would be losses of money.

         15                 If there is loss of money, who in the

         16  end becomes responsible for that? The City becomes

         17  responsible because they are our landlords. We

         18  become responsible because we are taxpayers, which

         19  means our taxes will go up and we will have to pay

         20  for the shortcomings of the Port Authority.

         21                 I say to you, there should be a chart

         22  somewhere to show us how the fares were put together

         23  and whether the fares will cover the maintenance of

         24  this system.

         25                 I am requesting, and I hope that you
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          2  as a City Council, you as Chairman of the Finance,

          3  you as the Chairman of the Development Committee,

          4  will vote against this facility coming to Southeast

          5  Queens.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, sir.

          8                 Ma'am.

          9                 MS. LATTIMER: My name is Frieda

         10  Lattimer, and I am the President of the Square Deal

         11  Civic Association.

         12                 You have heard reasons why we, the

         13  residents and the taxpayers of Southeast Queens,

         14  support the Port Authority's Airtrain Project. The

         15  full impact of the project's construction is

         16  unknown, as the transportation plan has neither been

         17  completed nor presented to the public.

         18                 In order to mitigate the impact of

         19  construction on traffic, it will have to be directed

         20  elsewhere. Naturally roadway delays will

         21  automatically encourage drivers to find alternate

         22  routes through other communities. Several additional

         23  Queens and Brooklyn community boards should have

         24  voted on this project because diverted traffic,

         25  including trucks and tractor trailers will pass
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          2  through neighborhoods not adjacent to JFK.

          3                 Manhattan boards whose residents

          4  would be better served by a one-seat ride should

          5  also have voted.

          6                 I have a copy of my entire speech,

          7  but in the context of a one-minute, I would like to

          8  say that the Van Wyck portion of the project should

          9  have been voted on as a separate portion and should

         10  not have been linked to the Howard Beach segment.

         11  They are independent and should have been treated as

         12  such.

         13                 And in the speech this morning when

         14  Councilwoman Clarke made a question concerning home

         15  owners, I live one block in and that was one of my

         16  questions to Port Authority. I live one block in

         17  from the Van Wyck Expressway, I would like to know

         18  when are they going to question those homeowners.

         19                 I went in to a homeowners' meeting,

         20  however, the information that they gave us there,

         21  they must think we were born last night, because I

         22  was born at night does not mean I was born last

         23  night.

         24                 The information that they have given

         25  us would not stand up in a child's kangaroo court.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Well, first of

          3  all, Ms. Lattimer, may I ask that you submit your

          4  statement to us, and I would also ask that when this

          5  matter goes before Land Use, that you reiterate your

          6  testimony in-depth.

          7                 MS. SOBERS: My name is Myrtle Sobers.

          8  Today I am reading on behalf of Vice President Ms.

          9  Marie Austin, who was unable to be here this

         10  morning.

         11                 I ask that the City Council vote

         12  against the Port Authority's construction of an

         13  elevated train above the Van Wyck Expressway. I ask

         14  that to save our community from an organization that

         15  does not know what it is doing. Although the Port

         16  Authority has some experience operating a railroad

         17  path, it has never built one, and I would not trust

         18  it with building one now, especially in our

         19  community.

         20                 When one considers the precarious

         21  position of the Port Authority, then the City and we

         22  the taxpayers should be very much concerned, we may

         23  end up subsidizing on a per passenger basis the

         24  Airtrain users to a greater degree than we subsidize

         25  path riders today.
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          2                 Let's give this one-seat ride study a

          3  chance, see what it says before we give the okay. A

          4  project that we may have to pay for after the Port

          5  Authority is history.

          6                 I ask that the ULURP process be

          7  halted and then restarted once the results of the

          8  one-seat ride study is complete.

          9                 I, too, live on the Van Wyck

         10  Expressway.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I want to repeat

         12  again that this is not part of the ULURP process.

         13  That is why I would ask that you repeat your

         14  testimony before the appropriate City Planning

         15  Commission meetings and the City Council Land Use

         16  Committee.

         17                 MS. SOBERS: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Would someone get

         19  up and give this lady a seat, please, so she can be

         20  by a mic.

         21                 You don't have to all go. Maybe it is

         22  something that you said.

         23                 All right, your name, Ma'am.

         24                 MS. HILL: I hope you can hear me, I

         25  have laryngitis, but I was determined to be here.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You sound good.

          3                 MS. HILL: You can hear me, all right.

          4  I want to keep it very short.

          5                 I have heard that --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Did you give us

          7  your name?

          8                 MS. HILL: Oh, I am sorry.

          9                 My name is Margo Hill. There have

         10  been many references made about the one-seat ride

         11  from JFK to Manhattan. There is a one-seat ride and

         12  the Port Authority has authorized through bus

         13  service. Various bus services coming into Manhattan,

         14  which will come from several hotels and also from

         15  the Port Authority is a one-seat ride. It takes you

         16  from that particular place. Yes, it takes longer,

         17  and also the amount of a limousine --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Ma'am, if you

         19  would feel better you could give us your testimony

         20  and it will become part of the record.

         21                 MS. HILL: I just wanted to make this

         22  point clear, that in the Rockaways now also they are

         23  considering revitalizing it with permanent jobs,

         24  that will not be part of the Airtrain. And I will

         25  tell you at a later date how to say it much better.
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          2                 Thank you for your time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 Ladies and gentlemen, this will

          6  conclude this current part of this session.

          7                 Your name please, Ma'am?

          8                 MS. WARD: My name is Ruby Ward, and I

          9  am president of the Concerned Neighbors of Southeast

         10  Queens, and I want to say to you, you have been

         11  shown all kinds of pictures today about different

         12  things, and we want you to see the real pictures and

         13  what it is all about. Those are our homes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: We made that

         15  assumption, Ma'am.

         16                 MS. WARD: All right. I just wanted

         17  you to know that these are our homes and when they

         18  said that they can't afford to do the project, to

         19  run the train a different way is because it is too

         20  much money. Now, they may not look like $600 million

         21  homes, but to us they are.

         22                 So, this is what we really want to

         23  get across to you today, and me to them, whoever we

         24  are supposed to be talking to. But I want you to

         25  know, if you let the Port Authority build this el on
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          2  the Van Wyck, what you are saying is it is okay for

          3  them to drop the value of those people's homes. You

          4  are saying to us it is all right for our streets to

          5  become more jammed and for our children to suffer

          6  even more with the asthma that is in the

          7  neighborhood, in the area. If they build this thing,

          8  this is going to block the view of many people.

          9                 If you see those houses up top there,

         10  that that thing is going to come up to the top of

         11  those houses. When you come home in the evening,

         12  undressing people, they can look over in your

         13  window, and nobody needs this.

         14                 If I bought a home and the train was

         15  there, I would know what to expect. But once I am

         16  there, I don't expect nothing like that to be built.

         17  And they didn't even come to the community to sit

         18  down to try and make any kind of discussion out of

         19  this, they just took it for granted, wrote out what

         20  they wanted to, voted it out and shoved it down our

         21  throats and say this is what you must have.

         22                 But no, we don't want this, and that

         23  is what I wanted to get across today. We don't want

         24  this and we hope that you will not allow them to

         25  come into our community. We are dependent on you.
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          2  You are sitting there and we are looking to you who

          3  will help us out. We have been to everybody, we have

          4  been out in droves and in numbers and we have talked

          5  to our elected officials. We have talked and we have

          6  gone every place that we know how and now we are

          7  here to you.

          8                 We are saying to you, whatever input

          9  you have, please, please don't let them shove this

         10  down our throats.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right, thank

         12  you.

         13                 Ladies and gentlemen, if I can have

         14  your attention. I have to leave now, Council Member

         15  White, who is still here, will listen to the balance

         16  of your testimony, if you want to testify any

         17  further.

         18                 Councilman White was the one that

         19  prevailed upon us to listen to your testimony today

         20  because of the fact that you were here. So, I

         21  apologize but I was supposed to leave by 2:00. So,

         22  as I indicated, Councilman White, who knows a lot of

         23  the people, will be here to receive your testimony.

         24                 I also again want to tell you that

         25  your testimony appropriately belongs before the Land
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          2  Use Committee that will handle the ULURP process.

          3  So, I again urge you to come back and testify at

          4  that time.

          5                 So, please at this time excuse me, I

          6  have to leave. Councilman White is going to take the

          7  Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Ladies and

          9  gentlemen, I am the Chairman of the Economic

         10  Development, I want to comment about Councilman

         11  White, and I appreciate Councilman White bringing --

         12  this is his district, his community generally, and

         13  for sponsoring the resolution that put this issue on

         14  board the Finance Committee and the Economic

         15  Development Committee.

         16                 As Chairman Berman had said and I had

         17  said, and I know Councilman White will repeat it, is

         18  that the ULURP process must go on. And one, you must

         19  testify before the Department of City Planning. Two,

         20  when it comes back here to the City Council, to our

         21  Committee on Planning, Land Use, and that is the

         22  ULURP procedure. We are not involved in the ULURP

         23  procedure per se, but we certainly are very much

         24  aware of economic development benefits, or not

         25  benefits, that is why we are here in the Finance
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          2  Committee, the financial benefits or maybe not that

          3  big of a benefit.

          4                 So, that is why we are holding this

          5  hearing today. It was a lengthy hearing, it was an

          6  all day hearing. We are listening to you. The Port

          7  Authority gave us the pros, the cons, and we are

          8  still going to listen because that is our job.

          9                 So, we appreciate you coming down,

         10  Councilman White, you did a wonderful job.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: And I

         13  appreciate you bringing the folks down here for us

         14  to listen to them.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Thank you very

         16  much, Mr. Chairman.

         17                 Thank you, everybody.

         18                 MR. HERCULES: I would just like to

         19  make one comment.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Please. State

         21  your name and make your comment.

         22                 MR. HERCULES: My name is Joe

         23  Hercules. With all of the hoopla they showed us

         24  there, one thing they left out was they are going to

         25  put power stations on the Van Wyck, they never
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          2  mentioned that. That is all I want to say.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Duly noted.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 MR. MOORE: Mr. White, my name is

          7  Elija Moore, and I live on the Van Wyck. I would

          8  like to say that I have been at this location for 38

          9  years. My wife and I have made our home better now

         10  than when we bought it in 1960. We did this by

         11  renovating the exterior, interior, the lawns, the

         12  flower gardens, as substantial capital outlays, and

         13  over the years our property appreciated to around

         14  200 or more thousands of dollars.

         15                 Since the news of the certainty of

         16  the light rail system, a neighbor of mine has tried

         17  to sell her property, she wants to get away.

         18                 And she cannot sell this property at

         19  a fair price due to this terrible intrusion into our

         20  beloved neighborhood.

         21                 Who in their right minds wants to buy

         22  a home with the equivalent of a two-lane highway a

         23  few hundred or less feet rising above the highway at

         24  about 50 or 60 feet in front of their home.

         25                 Considering this already congested
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          2  Van Wyck, is legions of 18-wheelers using the

          3  service road where I am located, plus the added

          4  nuisance of a train passing our home every two or

          5  three minutes, this is really sticking it to our

          6  community.

          7                 Now, I would like to ask you, since

          8  my property value is falling, why is it that just a

          9  little while ago I was notified that my property

         10  taxes were increased? It seems to me that this is

         11  backwards. I should be paying less property taxes;

         12  is that not so?

         13                 Can you guarantee that my property

         14  value shall not decrease further during and after

         15  the construction of this monstrosity?

         16                 Thank you very much for allowing me

         17  to add my grievance.

         18                 Thank you very much.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WHITE: Well, first

         20  off, I want to thank you for your comments. I cannot

         21  give you such guarantees. I wish that I could, and I

         22  would.

         23                 To those of you who traveled and took

         24  from your busy day today, as I have said at many of

         25  the community meetings, that I would prevail upon
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          2  the Chairman of the Economic Development Committee

          3  to see that you are heard.

          4                 This was not a meeting just of the

          5  Economic Development Committee, it was a joint

          6  meeting, so time was of the essence in terms of the

          7  lack of time.

          8                 But I want to thank the Chairperson,

          9  Mr. O'Donovan, for being here and convening such a

         10  meeting along with Mr. Berman, as well as the legal

         11  counsel, who really did a yeoman's job in trying to

         12  work it out, and as was said before, the Land Use

         13  Committee and the direction that you were given, I

         14  hope that you would take time and avail yourself of

         15  that opportunity as well.

         16                 So, I just wanted to let you know

         17  that Chairman O'Donovan really knows what the issues

         18  are and was really sensitive enough to see to it

         19  that we had such a hearing.

         20                 I want to thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON O'DONOVAN: Thank you,

         22  Councilman White.

         23                 Again, thank you for pressing for

         24  this meeting and I know you are doing what you can

         25  for your constituents.
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          2                 Thank you, ladies and gentlemen. This

          3  hearing is adjourned.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 2:40 p.m.)
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         19  set my hand this 20th day of April 1999.
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         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of
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         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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